IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

NO. 82208

Electronically Filed

BETTY CHAN; and ASIAN AMERICAN REALTY & IAORER £ 0529 P-m-

Brown
MANAGEMENT, Clerk of Supreme Court

Appellants,

VS.

WAYNE WU; JUDITH SULLIVAN; NEVADA REAL ESTATE CORP.; and
JERRIN CHIU,

Respondents.

APPELLANTS’ APPENDIX
(Volume 3)

Appeal from
the Eighth Judicial District Court sitting in Clark County, Nevada
District Court Case No.: A-16-744109-C
District Court Judge: Hon. Eric Johnson

R. DUANE FRIZELL, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9807
FRIZELL LAW FIRM, PLLC
400 N. Stephanie St., Suite 265
Henderson, Nevada 89014
Telephone (702) 657-6000
Facsimile (702) 657-0065
DFrizell@FrizellLaw.com

Attorney for Appellants

Docket 82208 Document 2021-15165


mailto:DFrizell@FrizellLaw.com

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify pursuant to NRAP 25(c), that on May 26, 2021, I served a

true and correct copy of the forgoing APPELLANTS’ APPENDIX (Volume 3),
together with any and all exhibits and attachments, via the Supreme Court’s

Electronic Filing System:

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.
Nevada State Bar No. 6076
THOMAS R. GROVER, ESQ.
Nevada State Bar No. 12387
KEITH D. ROUTSONG, ESQ.
Nevada State Bar No. 14944
BLACKROCK LEGAL, LLC
10155 W. Twain Ave., Suite 100
Las Vegas, Nevada 89147
Telephone (702) 855-5658
Attorneys for Respondents

[/ Aigiw Niw
AIQIN NIU

An employee of
FRIZELL LAW FIRM, PLLC




Chan, et al. v. Wu, et al.

Nevada Supreme Court Case No. 82208 (8th Jud. Dist. Ct. Case No. A-16-744109-C)

Appendix (Chronological Index)

VOL| DATE DOCKET TEXT/DESCRIPTION BATES NOS
Volume No. 1
1 9/27/2016 |Complaint Appx000001-
Appx000010
1 11/15/2016 |Amended Complaint Appx000011-
Appx000018
1 11/21/2016 |Affidavit of Service Appx000019-
Appx000022
1 11/21/2016 |Affidavit of Service Appx000023-
Appx000026
1 11/21/2016 | Affidavit of Service Appx000027-
Appx000030
1 11/21/2016 |Affidavit of Service Appx000031-
Appx000034
1 12/1/2016 |Affidavit of Service Appx000035-
Appx000038
1 12/6/2016 |Answer and Counterclaim Appx000039-
Appx000053
1 12/7/2016 |Certificate of Service Appx000054 -
Appx000055
1 12/19/2016 |Reply to Counterclaim Appx000056-
Appx000060
1 1/13/2017 |Motion for Stay Pending Arbitration Appx000061 -
Appx000065
1 2/2/2017  |Opposition to Motion to Stay Pending Arbitration and Appx000066-
Countermotion to Dismiss with Prejudice or in the Alternative for | Appx000077
Summary Judgment
1 Exhibit 1 - City-Data.com Forum Appx000078-
Appx000079
1 Exhibit 2 - Forms Associated with Purchase Agreement Appx000080-
Appx000107
1 Exhibit 3 - Addendum to Purchase Agreement and Escrow Appx000108-
Instructions Sales Summary Appx000110
1 Exhibit 4 - Hall letter to First American Title Appx000111-
Appx000113
1 Exhibit 5 - Code of Ethics and Standards of Practice of the Appx000114-
National Association of Realtors Appx000117
1 Exhibit 6 - The Code of Ethics - Our Promise of Professionalism |Appx000118-
Appx000121
1 2/6/2017 | Certificate of Service Appx000122-
Appx000123
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Chan, et al. v. Wu, et al.

Nevada Supreme Court Case No. 82208 (8th Jud. Dist. Ct. Case No. A-16-744109-C)

Appendix (Chronological Index)

VOL| DATE DOCKET TEXT/DESCRIPTION BATES NOS
1 2/7/12017 | Certificate of Service Appx000124-
Appx000125
1 2/7/2017  |Supplement to Opposition to Motion to Stay Pending Arbitration |Appx000126-
and Countermotion to Dismiss with Prejudice or in the Appx000127
Alternative for Summary Judgment
1 Exhibit 1 - Affidavit of Jerrin Chiu Appx000128-
Appx000131
1 2/10/2017 |Amended Reply to Counterclaim Appx000132-
Appx000136
1 2/14/2017 |Plaintiff/Counterdefendants Reply to Opposition to Motion to Appx000137-
Stay Pending Arbitration and Opposition to Appx000146
Defendants/Counterclaimants Countermotion to Dismiss with
Prejudice or in the Alternative for Summary Judgment
1 Exhibit - Declaration of Betty Chan in Support of Reply to Appx000147-
Opposition to Motion to Stay Pending Arbitration and Opposition | Appx000150
to Countermotion to Dismiss with Prejudice or in the Alternative
for Summary Judgment
1 2/27/2017 |Minutes of 02/27/2017 hearing, Plaintiffs' Motion for Stay Appx000151-
Pending Arbitration--Defendants' and Counterclaimants' Appx000152
Opposition to Motion to Stay Pending Arbitration and
Countermotion to Dismiss with Prejudice or in the Alternative for
Summary Judgment
1 3/30/2017 |Order Granting Motion to Stay and Denying Motion to Dismiss |Appx000153-
and Motion for Summary Judgment Appx000154
1 4/3/2017  |Notice of Entry of Order Granting Motion to Stay and Denying  |Appx000155-
Motion for summary Judgment Appx000159
1 7/18/2018 |Motion to Vacate or Modify Arbitration Award Appx000160-
Appx000175
1 Exhibit 1 - Code of Ethics and Standards of Practice of the Appx000176-
National Association of Realtors Effective January 1, 2015 Appx000182
1 Exhibit 2 - Request and Agreement to Arbitrate (PO0001 - Appx000183-
P0044) Appx000227
Volume No. 2
2 Exhibit 2 Continued- Request and Agreement to Arbitrate Appx000228-
(P0O045 - PO105) Appx000288
2 Exhibit 3 - Response and Agreement to Arbitrate (D0O001 - Appx000289-
D0100) Appx000389
2 Exhibit 4 - 04/20/2018 GLVAR letter to Nevada Real Estate Appx000390-
Corporation Appx000393
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Chan, et al. v. Wu, et al.

Nevada Supreme Court Case No. 82208 (8th Jud. Dist. Ct. Case No. A-16-744109-C)

Appendix (Chronological Index)

VOL| DATE DOCKET TEXT/DESCRIPTION BATES NOS
2 Exhibit 5 - 04/27/2018 GLVAR letter to Nevada Real Estate Appx000394-
Corp. Appx000397
2 Exhibit 6 - Code of Ethics and Arbitration Manual Appx000398-
Appx000459
Volume No. 3
3 Exhibit 7 - 5/17/2018 Asian American Realty (Chan) letter to Appx000460-
GLVAR Appx000464
3 8/6/2018 |Opposition to Motion to Vacate or Modify Arbitration Award and |Appx000465-
Countermotion to Recognize Wu as the Procuring Cause, for Appx000492
Summary Judgment, and for Attorney Fees
3 Exhibit A - Gmail email 11/2/15 Appx000493-
Appx000494
3 Exhibit B - Gmail email 11/2/15 Appx000495-
Appx000496
3 Exhibit C - Affidavit of Jerrin Chiu Appx000497-
Appx000500
3 Exhibit D - City-Data.com Forum Appx000501-
Appx000502
3 Exhibit E - Forms Associated with Purchase Agreement Appx000503-
Appx000530
3 Exhibit F - Addendum to Purchase Agreement and Escrow Appx000532 -
Instructions Appx000533
3 Exhibit G - Gmail - 1/27/2016 Chan Email to Chiu Appx000534-
Appx000535
3 Exhibit H - 3/24/2016 Hall Letter to First American Title Appx000536-
Appx000538
3 Exhibit | - 2/5/16 Chan email to "aaroffer". Appx000539-
Appx000540
3 Exhibit J - 7/19/17 Myers email to Harper Appx000541 -
Appx000545
3 Exhibit K - 7/19/2017 Myers email to Harper Appx000546-
Appx000548
3 Exhibit L - 9/27/2016 Complaint Appx000549-
Appx000558
3 Exhibit M - 11/15/2016 Amended Complaint Appx000559-
Appx000367
3 Exhibit N - Duties Owed by a Nevada Real Estate Licensee Appx000568-
Appx000570
3 Exhibit O - 11/30/15 Chan email to Chiu Appx000571-
Appx000572
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Nevada Supreme Court Case No. 82208 (8th Jud. Dist. Ct. Case No. A-16-744109-C)

Appendix (Chronological Index)

VOL| DATE DOCKET TEXT/DESCRIPTION BATES NOS
3 Exhibit P - 1/25/2016 Cham email to Chiu Appx000573-
Appx000574
3 Exhibit Q - Request and Agreement to Arbitrate (P0001 - Appx000575-
P0005) Appx000580
3 Exhibit R - 4/27/2018 GLVAR letter to Nevada Real Estate Corp. Appx000581-
Appx000584
3 Exhibit S - 5/17/2018 Chan letter to GLVAR Appx000585-
Appx000589
3 Exhibit T - Code of Ethics and Arbitration Manual Appx000590-
Appx000591
3 8/15/2018 |Reply in Support of Motion to Vacate or Modify Arbitration Appx000592-
Award and Opposition/Motion to Strike Improper Countermotion |Appx000608
3 Exhibit 8 - Supplemental Declaration of Betty Chan Appx000609-
Appx000615
3 8/22/2018 |Minutes of 8/22/2018 Hearing as to Plaintiff's Reply in Support |Appx000616-
of Motion to Vacate or Modify Arbitration and Opposition/Motion |Appx000617
to Strike Improper Countermotion
3 8/22/2018 |Transcript of Hearing: All Pending Motions Appx000618-
Appx000648
3 9/5/2018  |First Supplement to Countermotion to Recognize Wu as the Appx000649-
Procuring Cause, for Summary Judgment, and for Attorneys Appx000661
fees
3 Exhibit A - 05/01/2017 Minutes Appx000662-
Appx000664
3 Exhibit B - Request and Agreement to Arbitrate (PO001 - PO00S5)| Appx000665-
Appx000670
3 Exhibit C - 2/5/2016 Chan email to "aaroffer" Appx000671-
Appx000672
3 Exhibit D - face page only, exhibit missing Appx000673
3 9/12/2018 |Supplement to First Supplement to Countermotion to Recognize |Appx000674-
Wu as the Procuring Cause, for Summary Judgment, and for Appx000675
Attorney Fees
3 Exhibit D - Affidavit of Michael A. Olsen, Esq. Appx000676-
Appx000690
3 9/18/2018 |Order Denying Motion to Vacate or Modify Arbitration Award Appx000691-
Appx000694
Volume No. 4
4 9/18/2018 |Notice of Entry of Order Appx000695-
Appx000701
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Chan, et al. v. Wu, et al.

Nevada Supreme Court Case No. 82208 (8th Jud. Dist. Ct. Case No. A-16-744109-C)

Appendix (Chronological Index)

VOL| DATE DOCKET TEXT/DESCRIPTION BATES NOS
4 9/21/2018 |Certificate of Service Appx000702-
Appx000703
4 10/17/2018 | Transcript of Hearing: Plaintiffs' Motion to Extend Briefing on Appx000704-
Order Shortening Time and continue Hearing Date Appx000707
4 10/25/2018 | Plaintiffs/Counterdefendants Betty Chan and Asia American Appx000708-
Realty & Property Management's Supplement to Plaintiffs Appx000727
Opposition Defendants/Counterclaimants Wayne Wu, Judicith
Sullivan, Nevada Real Estate Corp., Jerrin Chiu, KB Home
Sales-Nevada, Inc.'s: (1) First Supplement to Countermotion to
Recognize Wu as the Procuring Cause, for summary Judgment,
and for Atorney Fees (Filed 09/05/18) and (2) Supplement to
First Supplement to Cuntermotion to Recognize Wu as the
Procuring Cause fo Summary Judgment, and for Attorneys fees
(Filed 09/12/18)
4 Exhibit 1 - Declaration of Betty Chan Appx000728-
Appx000736
4 Exhibit 2 - Declaration of Betty Chan in Support of Reply to Appx000737-
Opposition to Motion to Stay Pending Arbitration and Opposition | Appx000741
to Countermotion to Dismiss with Prejudice or in the alternative
for Summary Judgment
4 Exhibit 3 - Supplemental Declaration of Betty Chan Appx000742-
Appx000745
4 Exhibit 4 - 11/2/2015 Chiu email to Chan Appx000746-
Appx000748
4 Exhibit 5 - 12/30 text string Appx000749-
Appx000750
4 Exhibit 6 - 1/15 text string Appx000751-
Appx000754
4 10/29/2018 |Reply to Plaintiff/Counterdefendants Supplement to Plaintiffs Appx000755-
Opposition to Defendants/Counterclaimants 91) First Appx000761
supplement to Countermotion to Recognize Wu as the
Procuring Cause, for Summary Judgment, and for Attorneys
Fees and (2) Supplement to First Supplement to Countermotion
to Recognize Wu as the Procuring Cause for Summary
Judgment, and for Attorney Fees
4 10/30/2018 | Certificate of Service Appx000762-
Appx000763
4 10/31/2018 |Memorandum of Costs and Disbursements Appx000764
4 Exhibit 1 - Goodsell & Olsen Invoices Appx000765-
Appx000779
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Nevada Supreme Court Case No. 82208 (8th Jud. Dist. Ct. Case No. A-16-744109-C)

Appendix (Chronological Index)

VOL| DATE DOCKET TEXT/DESCRIPTION BATES NOS
4 10/31/2018 | Transcript of Hearing: Defendants and Counterclaimants Wayne | Appx000780-
Wu, Judith Sullivan, Nevada Real Esate Corp. and Jerrin Chiu's |Appx000815
Opposition to Motion to Vacate or Modify Arbitration Award and
countermotion to Recognize Wu as the Procuring Cause, for
Summary Judgment and for Attorney Fees
4 3/22/2019 |Order Granting Defendants Countermotion for Summary Appx000816-
Judgment and Attorney Fees and Costs Appx000822
4 3/22/2019 |Notice of Entry of Order Appx000823-
Appx000831
4 3/25/2019 |Certificate of Service Appx000832-
Appx000833
4 4/17/2019 |Transcript of Hearing: Defendants' Motion for Writ of Execution |Appx000834-
Appx000859
4 4/22/2019 |Notice of Appeal Appx000860
4 4/24/2019 |Notice of Appearance Appx000861-
Appx000862
4 5/1/2019  |Minutes re Motion to Stay Execution on OST, Partial Opposition |Appx000863-
to Plaintiff's Moiton to Stay Execution Pending Appeal (on an Ex |Appx000864
Parte Application for an Order Shortening Time) and Demand
for Supersedeas Bond and Countermotion to Amend Order)
4 5/1/2019 | Transcript of Hearing: Motion to Stay Execution on OST, Partial |Appx000865-
Opposition to Plaintiff's Moiton to Stay Execution Pending Appx000880
Appeal (on an Ex Parte Application for an Order Shortening
Time) and Demand for Supersedeas Bond and Countermotion
to Amend Order)
4 5/1/2019  |Order on Plaintiffs' Motion to Stay Execution Pending Appeal Appx000881-
Appx000882
4 5/1/2019  |Notice of Entry of Order on Plaintiff's Motion to Stay Execution |Appx000883-
Pending Appeal Appx000886
4 5/7/2019  |Plaintiffs' Notice of Posting Supersedeas Bond Appx000887-
Appx000891
4 1/7/2020  |Plaintiffs' Motion to Formally Resolve Motion for Appx000892-
Reconsideration and to Certify Judgment as Final (on an Appx000899
Application for an Order Shortening Time)
4 Exhibit 1 - Order Granting Defendants Countermotion for Appx000900-
Summary Judgment and Attorney Fees and Costs Appx000907
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Chan, et al. v. Wu, et al.

Nevada Supreme Court Case No. 82208 (8th Jud. Dist. Ct. Case No. A-16-744109-C)

Appendix (Chronological Index)

VOL| DATE DOCKET TEXT/DESCRIPTION BATES NOS
4 Exhibit 2 - Motion to Vacate entry of Order or Motion for Appx000908-
extension of time to file reconsideration to the entry of Order Appx000912
Granting Defendants Counter Motion for Summary Judgment
and Attorney Fees and Costs
4 Exhibit 3 - Register of Actions Appx000913-
Appx000920
4 Exhibit 4 - 4/1/2019 Minutes re Plaintiff's Motion for Appx000921-
Reconsideration Appx000923
4 Exhibit 5 - 4/22/2019 Notice of Appeal Appx000924-
Appx000925
4 Exhibit 6 - 5/1/2019 Order on Plaintiffs' Motion to stay Execution | Appx000926-
Pending Appeal Appx000928
Volume No. 5
5 Exhibit 7 - Plaintiffs' Notice of Posting Supersedeas Bond Appx000929-
Appx000934
5 Exhibit 8 - 11/14/2019 Order to Show Cause Appx000935-
Appx000937
5 Exhibit 9 - Plaintiffs-Appellants’ Response to Order to Show Appx000938-
Cause Appx000947
5 Exhibit 10 - 12/16/19 Frizell email to Olsen Appx000948-
Appx000952
5 1/16/2020 |Opposition to Plaintiffs' Motion to Formally Resolve Motion for  |Appx000953-
Reconsideration and to Certify Judgment as Final (on an Appx000967
Application for an Order shortening Time) and Countermotion
for Summary Judgment on Abuse of Process Claim
5 Exhibit 1 - 4/27/18 GLVAR letter to Nevada Real Estate Corp.  |Appx000968-
Appx000974
5 Exhibit 2 - 9/18/18 Order Denying Motion to Vacate or Modify Appx000975-
Arbitration Award Appx000979
5 Exhibit 3 - Request and Agreement to Arbitrate (PO01 - PO03) |Appx000980-
Appx000983
5 Exhibit 4 - Order Granting Defendants Countermotion for Appx000984-
Summary Judgment and Attorney Fees and Costs Appx000991
5 Exhibit 5 - 3/24/2016 Hall letter to First American Title Appx000992-
Appx000994
5 Exhibit 6 - Amended Complaint Appx000995-
Appx001003
5 Exhibit 7 - 2/5/2016 Chan email to "aaroffer" Appx001004-
Appx001005
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Chan, et al. v. Wu, et al.

Nevada Supreme Court Case No. 82208 (8th Jud. Dist. Ct. Case No. A-16-744109-C)

Appendix (Chronological Index)

VOL| DATE DOCKET TEXT/DESCRIPTION BATES NOS
5 1/22/2020 |Minutes re Plaintiffs' Motion to Formally Resolve Motion for Appx001006-
Reconsideration and to Certify Judgment as Final (on an Appx001007
Application for an Order Shortening Time) . . . Opposition to
Plaintiff's Motion to Formally Resolve Motion for
Reconsideration and to Certify Judgment as Final (on an
Application for an Order Shortening Time) and Countermotion
for Summary Judgment on Abuse of Process Claim
5 1/22/2020 |Transcript of Hearing: All Pending Motions Appx001008-
Appx001017
5 3/10/2020 |Order on Plaintiffs' Motion to formally Resolve Motion for Appx001018-
Reconsideration and to Certify Judgment as Final and Appx001022
Countermotion for Summary Judgment on Abuse of Process
Claim
5 3/10/2020 |Notice of Entry of Order on Plaintiffs' Motion to formally Resolve |Appx001023-
Motion for Reconsideration and to Certify Judgment as Final Appx001030
and Countermotion for Summary Judgment on Abuse of
Process Claim
5 4/6/2020 |Plaintiff's Amended Notice of Appeal Appx001031-
Appx001033
5 6/4/2020 |Motion for Summary Judgment, or in the alternative, for Appx001034-
Contractual Award of Attorney's Fees, for Writ of Execution on  |Appx001050
Plaintiff's Commissions Awarded by GLVAR Arbitration Panel
and Release of bond Deposited on Appeal
5 Exhibit 1 - 4/27/18 GLVAR letter to Nevada Real Estate Corp.  |Appx001051-
Appx001057
5 Exhibit 2 - 9/18/18 Order Denying Motion to Vacate or Modify Appx001058-
Arbitration Award Appx001062
5 Exhibit 3 - Order Granting Defendants Countermotion for Appx001063-
Summary Judgment and Attorney Fees and Costs Appx001070
5 Exhibit 4 - Request and Agreement to Arbitrate (PO001 - PO003) |Appx001071-
Appx001074
5 Exhibit 5 - 3/24/2016 Hall letter to First American Title Appx001075-
Appx001077
5 Exhibit 6 - 2/5/2016 Chan email to "aaroffer" Appx001078-
Appx001079
5 Exhibit 7 - 5/14/2020 Order Dismissing Appeal Appx001080-
Appx001084
5 6/9/2020 |Supreme Court Clerk's Certificate, Judment Dismissing Appeal |Appx001085-
Appx001089
5 6/9/2020  |Remittitur Appx001090
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Nevada Supreme Court Case No. 82208 (8th Jud. Dist. Ct. Case No. A-16-744109-C)

Appendix (Chronological Index)

VOL| DATE DOCKET TEXT/DESCRIPTION BATES NOS
5 6/30/2020 |Transcript of Hearing: Plaintiff's Motion to Strike or in the Appx001091-
Alternative to Extend Briefing and Continue the Hearing On Appx001096
Defendant's Motion for Summary Judgment
5 7/8/2020  |Plaintiff's Opposition to Defendant's Motion for summary Appx001097-
Judgment, or in the Alternative, for Contractual Award of Appx001120
Attorney's Fees, for Writ of Execution on Plaintiff's Commissions
Awarded by GLVAR Arbitration Panel and Release of Bond
Deposited on Appeal and Countermotion for Summary
Judgment on Defendants' Abuse of Process Counterclaim
5 Exhibit 1 - Order Granting Defendants Countermotion for Appx001121-
Summary Judgment and Attorney Fees and Costs (filed Mar. Appx001128
22, 2019)
5 Exhibit 2 - Motion to Vacate Entry of Order or Motion for Appx001129-
Extension of Time to File Appx001133
5 Exhibit 3 - Register of Actions (dated Jan. 7, 2020) Appx001134-
Appx001141
5 Exhibit 4 - Minute Order (dated Apr. 1, 2019) Appx001142-
Appx001144
5 Exhibit 5 - Notice of Appeal (dated Apr. 22, 2019) Appx001145-
Appx001146
5 Exhibit 6 - Order on Plaintiff's Motion to Stay Execution Pending |Appx001147-
Appeal (filed May 1, 2019) Appx001149
5 Exhibit 7 - Plaintiffs’ Notice of Posting Supersedeas Bond (filed |Appx001150-
May 7, 2019) Appx001155
5 Exhibit 8 - Supreme Court’s Order to Show Cause (filed Nov. Appx001156-
14, 2019) Appx001158
Volume No. 6
6 Exhibit 9 - Plaintiffs-Appellants’ Response to Order to Show Appx001159-
Cause (filed in Supreme Court Dec. 16, 2019) Appx001168
6 Exhibit 10 - Emails between counsel (Nov. 20, 2019 to Dec. 16, |Appx001169-
2019) Appx001173
6 Exhibit 11 - Opposition to Motion to Vacate or Modify Arbitration |Appx001174-
Award and Countermotion to Recognize Wu as the Procuring  |Appx001177
Cause, for Summary
Judgment, and for Attorney Fees (filed Aug. 6, 2018) [excerpts]
6 Exhibit 12 - Transcript (Oct. 31, 2018) [excerpts] Appx001178-
Appx001188

Appendix (Chronological Index) - Page 9 of 12




Chan, et al. v. Wu, et al.

Nevada Supreme Court Case No. 82208 (8th Jud. Dist. Ct. Case No. A-16-744109-C)

Appendix (Chronological Index)

VOL| DATE DOCKET TEXT/DESCRIPTION BATES NOS
6 Exhibit 13 - Declaration of Betty Chan in Support of Reply to Appx001189-
Opposition to Motion to Stay Appx001193
6 Exhibit 14 - Supplemental Declaration of Betty Chan (dated Appx001194-
Aug. 15, 2018) Appx001197
6 Exhibit 15 - Declaration of Betty Chan (dated Jan. 21, 2020) Appx001198-
Appx001205
6 Exhibit 16 - Text messages between Chan and Jana, an agent |Appx001206-
at KB Homes Appx001207
6 Exhibit 17 - Order Dismissing Appeal (entered May 14, 2020) |Appx001208-
Appx001212
6 Exhibit 18 - Defendants’ Reply to Plaintiffs-Appellants Response |Appx001213-
to Order to Show Cause Appx001229
6 Exhibit 19 - Email from Betty Chan to GLVAR giving notice of  |Appx001230-
intent to appeal arbitration Appx001231
6 Exhibit 20 - Email from Betty Chan to GLVAR requesting Appx001232-
arbitration (dated June 11, 2016). Appx001233
6 Exhibit 21 - Defendant Wayne Wu'’s agreement with KB Home |Appx001234-
Las Vegas Inc. (dated Jan. 8, 2016). Appx001235
6 7/13/2020 |Reply in Support of Motion for Summary Judgment, or in the Appx001236-
alternative, for Contractual Award of Attorney's Fees, for Writ of |Appx001249
Execution on Plaintiff's Commissions Awarded by GLVAR
Arbitration Panel andRelease of Bond Deposited on Appeal and
Opposition to Countermotion for Summary Judgment on
Defendant's Abuse of Prosess Counterclaim
6 Exhibit 1 - 2/5/2016 Chan email to "aaroffer" Appx001250-
Appx001252
6 Exhibit 2 - Request and Agreement to Arbitrate Appx001253-
Appx001255
6 Exhibit 3 - 5/14/2020 Order Dismissing Appeal Appx001256-
Appx001260
6 Exhibit 4 - 5/1/19 Order on Plaintiffs' Motion to Stay Execution |Appx001261-
Pending Appeal Appx001263
6 Exhibit 5 - Code of Ethics and Standards of Practice Appx001264-
Appx001267
6 Exhibit 6 - the Code of Ethics - Our Promise of Professionalism |Appx001268-
Appx001271
6 Exhibit 7 - Blackrock Legal Invoices Appx001272-
Appx001332
6 7/15/2020 |Certificate of Service Appx001333-
Appx001334
6 7/21/2020 |Minutes, All Pending Motions Appx001335-
Appx001336
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Chan, et al. v. Wu, et al.

Nevada Supreme Court Case No. 82208 (8th Jud. Dist. Ct. Case No. A-16-744109-C)

Appendix (Chronological Index)

VOL| DATE DOCKET TEXT/DESCRIPTION BATES NOS
6 7/21/2020 |Transcript of Hearing: All Pending Motions Appx001337-
Appx001354
6 8/11/2020 |Memorandum for Production of Invoices for Attorney's Fees and |Appx001355-
Costs Appx001363
6 Exhibit 1 - Submitted in camera Appx001364
6 8/12/2020 |Certificate of Service Appx001365-
Appx001366
6 8/12/2020 |Notice of Production of Documents for In Camera Review Appx001367-
Appx001368
Volume No. 7
7 Exhibit 1 - Blackrock Invoices Appx001369-
Appx001401
7 8/13/2020 |Certificate of Service Appx001402-
Appx001403
7 9/9/2020 |Plaintiffs' Opposition to Defendants’ Memorandum for Appx001404-
Production of Invoices for Attorney's Fees and Costs and Appx001414
Countermotion to have Defendants' Invoices Filed and made
Part of the Public Record
7 9/20/2020 |Reply in Support of Memorandum for Production of Invoices for |Appx001415-
Attorney's Fees andCosts Appx001425
7 9/11/2020 |Certificate of Service Appx001426-
Appx001427
7 9/30/2020 |Minute Order - all Pending Motions Appx001428-
Appx001429
7 9/30/2020 |Transcript of Hearing: Plaintiff's Opposition to Defendant's Appx001430-
Memorandum for Production of Invoices for Attorney's Fees and |Appx001452
Costs andCountermotion to Have Defendant's Invoices Filed
and made part of the Public Record.
7 11/18/2020 | Transcript of Hearing: Order/Case Status Appx001453-
Appx001455
7 11/23/2020 |Order Granting in Part Defendant's Motion for Summary Appx001456-
Judgment, or in the Alternative, for Contractual Award of Appx001464
Attorney's Fees, for Writ of Execution on Plaintiff's Commissions
Awarded by GLVAR Arbitration Panel, and Release of Bond
Deposited on Appeal and Order Granting Plaintiffs'
Countermotion for Summary Judgment
7 11/23/2020 |Notice of Entry of Order Appx001465-
Appx001475
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Appendix (Chronological Index)

VOL| DATE DOCKET TEXT/DESCRIPTION BATES NOS
7 11/24/2020 |Certificate of Service Appx001476-
Appx001477
7 12/8/2020 |Plaintiff's Notice of Appeal Appx001478-
Appx001480
7 12/8/2020 |Plaintiff's Amended Notice of Appeal Appx001481-
Appx001483
7 12/9/2020 |Court Minutes, Motion to Stay Appx001484-
Appx001485
7 12/9/2020 |Transcript of Hearing: Plaintiffs' Motion to Stay Execution Appx001486-
Pending Appeal (on an Ex Parte Application for an Order Appx001502
Shortening Time)
7 12/22/2020 |Notice of Cross Appeal Appx001503-
Appx001504
7 12/22/2020 | Certificate of Service Appx001505-
Appx001506
7 1/14/2021 |Order on Plaintiffs' Motion to Stay Execution Pending Appeal Appx001507-
Appx001515
7 2/1/2021 Plaintiffs' Notice of Posting Supersedeas Bond Appx001516-
Appx001519
7 2/1/2021 Notice of Entry of Order on Plaintiff's Motion to Stay Execution |Appx001520-
Pending Appeal Appx001530
7 5/26/2021 |Register of Actions Appx001531-
Appx001539

Appendix (Chronological Index) - Page 12 of 12




Chan, et al. v. Wu, et al.
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Appendix (Alphabetical Index)

VOL| DATE DOCKET TEXT/DESCRIPTION BATES NOS
1 11/21/2016 |Affidavit of Service Appx000019-
Appx000022
1 11/21/2016 |Affidavit of Service Appx000023-
Appx000026
1 11/21/2016 | Affidavit of Service Appx000027-
Appx000030
1 11/21/2016 |Affidavit of Service Appx000031-
Appx000034
1 12/1/2016 |Affidavit of Service Appx000035-
Appx000038
1 11/15/2016 |Amended Complaint Appx000011-
Appx000018
1 2/10/2017 |Amended Reply to Counterclaim Appx000132-
Appx000136
1 12/6/2016 |Answer and Counterclaim Appx000039-
Appx000053
1 12/7/2016 |Certificate of Service Appx000054 -
Appx000055
1 2/6/2017 | Certificate of Service Appx000122-
Appx000123
1 2/7/12017 | Certificate of Service Appx000124-
Appx000125
4 9/21/2018 |Certificate of Service Appx000702-
Appx000703
4 10/30/2018 | Certificate of Service Appx000762-
Appx000763
4 3/25/2019 |Certificate of Service Appx000832-
Appx000833
6 7/15/2020 |Certificate of Service Appx001333-
Appx001334
6 8/12/2020 |Certificate of Service Appx001365-
Appx001366
7 8/13/2020 |Certificate of Service Appx001402-
Appx001403
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VOL| DATE DOCKET TEXT/DESCRIPTION BATES NOS
7 9/11/2020 |Certificate of Service Appx001426-
Appx001427
7 11/24/2020 | Certificate of Service Appx001476-
Appx001477
7 12/22/2020 | Certificate of Service Appx001505-
Appx001506
1 9/27/2016 |Complaint Appx000001-
Appx000010
7 12/9/2020 |Court Minutes, Motion to Stay Appx001484-
Appx001485
3 9/5/2018  |First Supplement to Countermotion to Recognize Wu as the Appx000649-
Procuring Cause, for Summary Judgment, and for Attorneys Appx000673
fees
6 8/11/2020 |Memorandum for Production of Invoices for Attorney's Fees and |Appx001355-
Costs Appx001364
4 10/31/2018 |Memorandum of Costs and Disbursements Appx000764-
Appx000779
7 9/30/2020 |Minute Order - all Pending Motions Appx001428-
Appx001429
1 2/27/2017 |Minutes of 02/27/2017 hearing, Plaintiffs' Motion for Stay Appx000151-
Pending Arbitration--Defendants' and Counterclaimants' Appx000152
Opposition to Motion to Stay Pending Arbitration and
3 8/22/2018 |Minutes of 8/22/2018 Hearing as to Plaintiff's Reply in Support |Appx000616-
of Motion to Vacate or Modify Arbitration and Opposition/Motion |Appx000617
4 5/1/2019  |Minutes re Motion to Stay Execution on OST, Partial Opposition |Appx000863-
to Plaintiff's Moiton to Stay Execution Pending Appeal (on an Ex |Appx000864
5 1/22/2020 |Minutes re Plaintiffs' Motion to Formally Resolve Motion for Appx001006-
Reconsideration and to Certify Judgment as Final (on an Appx001007
6 7/21/2020 |Minutes, All Pending Motions Appx001335-
Appx001336
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VOL| DATE DOCKET TEXT/DESCRIPTION BATES NOS
1 1/13/2017 |Motion for Stay Pending Arbitration Appx000061 -
Appx000065
5 6/4/2020  |Motion for Summary Judgment, or in the alternative, for Appx001034-
Contractual Award of Attorney's Fees, for Writ of Execution on |Appx001084
Plaintiff's Commissions Awarded by GLVAR Arbitration Panel
and Release of bond Deposited on Appeal
1 7/18/2018 |Motion to Vacate or Modify Arbitration Award Appx000160-
Appx000464
4 4/22/2019 |Notice of Appeal Appx000860
4 4/24/2019 |Notice of Appearance Appx000861-
Appx000862
7 12/22/2020 |Notice of Cross Appeal Appx001503-
Appx001504
4 9/18/2018 |Notice of Entry of Order Appx000695-
Appx000701
4 3/22/2019 |Notice of Entry of Order Appx000823-
Appx000831
7 11/23/2020 |Notice of Entry of Order Appx001465-
Appx001475
1 4/3/2017  |Notice of Entry of Order Granting Motion to Stay and Denying  |Appx000155-
Motion for summary Judgment Appx000159
5 3/10/2020 |Notice of Entry of Order on Plaintiffs' Motion to formally Resolve |Appx001023-
Motion for Reconsideration and to Certify Judgment as Final Appx001030
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VOL| DATE DOCKET TEXT/DESCRIPTION BATES NOS
4 5/1/2019  |Notice of Entry of Order on Plaintiff's Motion to Stay Execution |Appx000883-
Pending Appeal Appx000886
7 2/1/2021 Notice of Entry of Order on Plaintiff's Motion to Stay Execution |Appx001520-
Pending Appeal Appx001530
6 8/12/2020 |Notice of Production of Documents for In Camera Review Appx001367-
Appx001401
1 2/2/2017  |Opposition to Motion to Stay Pending Arbitration and Appx000066-
Countermotion to Dismiss with Prejudice or in the Alternative for |Appx000121
3 8/6/2018 |Opposition to Motion to Vacate or Modify Arbitration Award and |Appx000465-
Countermotion to Recognize Wu as the Procuring Cause, for Appx000591
5 1/16/2020 |Opposition to Plaintiffs' Motion to Formally Resolve Motion for  |Appx000953-
Reconsideration and to Certify Judgment as Final (on an Appx001005
Application for an Order shortening Time) and Countermotion
3 9/18/2018 |Order Denying Motion to Vacate or Modify Arbitration Award Appx000691-
Appx000694
4 3/22/2019 |Order Granting Defendants Countermotion for Summary Appx000816-
Judgment and Attorney Fees and Costs Appx000822
7 11/23/2020 |Order Granting in Part Defendant's Motion for Summary Appx001456-
Judgment, or in the Alternative, for Contractual Award of Appx001464
1 3/30/2017 |Order Granting Motion to Stay and Denying Motion to Dismiss |Appx000153-
and Motion for Summary Judgment Appx000154
5 3/10/2020 |Order on Plaintiffs' Motion to formally Resolve Motion for Appx001018-
Reconsideration and to Certify Judgment as Final and Appx001022

Countermotion for Summary Judgment on Abuse of Process
Claim
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VOL| DATE DOCKET TEXT/DESCRIPTION BATES NOS
4 5/1/2019  |Order on Plaintiffs' Motion to Stay Execution Pending Appeal Appx000881-
Appx000882
7 1/14/2021 |Order on Plaintiffs' Motion to Stay Execution Pending Appeal Appx001507-
Appx001515
1 2/14/2017 |Plaintiff/Counterdefendants Reply to Opposition to Motion to Appx000137-
Stay Pending Arbitration and Opposition to Appx000150
5 4/6/2020 |Plaintiff's Amended Notice of Appeal Appx001031-
7 12/8/2020 |Plaintiff's Amended Notice of Appeal Appx001481-
Appx001483
4 1/7/2020  |Plaintiffs' Motion to Formally Resolve Motion for Appx000892-
Reconsideration and to Certify Judgment as Final (on an Appx000952
Application for an Order Shortening Time)
7 12/8/2020 |Plaintiff's Notice of Appeal Appx001478-
Appx001480
4 5/7/2019  |Plaintiffs' Notice of Posting Supersedeas Bond Appx000887-
Appx000891
7 2/1/2021 Plaintiffs' Notice of Posting Supersedeas Bond Appx001516-
Appx001519
7 9/9/2020 |Plaintiffs' Opposition to Defendants’ Memorandum for Appx001404-
Production of Invoices for Attorney's Fees and Costs and Appx001414
5 7/8/2020  |Plaintiff's Opposition to Defendant's Motion for summary Appx001097-
Judgment, or in the Alternative, for Contractual Award of Appx001235
4 10/25/2018 | Plaintiffs/Counterdefendants Betty Chan and Asia American Appx000708-
Realty & Property Management's Supplement to Plaintiffs Appx000754
7 5/26/2021 |Register of Actions Appx001531-
Appx001539
5 6/9/2020 |Remittitur Appx001090
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VOL| DATE DOCKET TEXT/DESCRIPTION BATES NOS
7 9/20/2020 |Reply in Support of Memorandum for Production of Invoices for |Appx001415-
Attorney's Fees andCosts Appx001425
6 7/13/2020 |Reply in Support of Motion for Summary Judgment, or in the Appx001236-
alternative, for Contractual Award of Attorney's Fees, for Writ of | Appx001332
3 8/15/2018 |Reply in Support of Motion to Vacate or Modify Arbitration Appx000592-
Award and Opposition/Motion to Strike Improper Countermotion |Appx000615
1 12/19/2016 |Reply to Counterclaim Appx000056-
Appx000060
4 10/29/2018 |Reply to Plaintiff/Counterdefendants Supplement to Plaintiffs Appx000755-
Opposition to Defendants/Counterclaimants 91) First Appx000761
supplement to Countermotion to Recognize Wu as the
Procuring Cause, for Summary Judgment, and for Attorneys
Fees and (2) Supplement to First Supplement to Countermotion
3 9/12/2018 |Supplement to First Supplement to Countermotion to Recognize |Appx000674-
Wu as the Procuring Cause, for Summary Judgment, and for  |Appx000690
1 2/7/2017  |Supplement to Opposition to Motion to Stay Pending Arbitration |Appx000126-
and Countermotion to Dismiss with Prejudice or in the Appx000131
Alternative for Summary Judgment
5 6/9/2020 |Supreme Court Clerk's Certificate, Judment Dismissing Appeal |Appx001085-
Appx001089
3 8/22/2018 |Transcript of Hearing: All Pending Motions Appx000618-
Appx000648
5 1/22/2020 |Transcript of Hearing: All Pending Motions Appx001008-
Appx001017
6 7/21/2020 |Transcript of Hearing: All Pending Motions Appx001337-
Appx001354
4 10/31/2018 | Transcript of Hearing: Defendants and Counterclaimants Wayne | Appx000780-
Wu, Judith Sullivan, Nevada Real Esate Corp. and Jerrin Chiu's |Appx000815
4 4/17/2019 |Transcript of Hearing: Defendants' Motion for Writ of Execution |Appx000834-
Appx000859
4 5/1/2019 |Transcript of Hearing: Motion to Stay Execution on OST, Partial |Appx000865-
Opposition to Plaintiff's Moiton to Stay Execution Pending Appx000880
7 11/18/2020 | Transcript of Hearing: Order/Case Status Appx001453-
Appx001455
4 10/17/2018 | Transcript of Hearing: Plaintiffs' Motion to Extend Briefing on Appx000704-
Order Shortening Time and continue Hearing Date Appx000707
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7 12/9/2020 |Transcript of Hearing: Plaintiffs' Motion to Stay Execution Appx001486-
Pending Appeal (on an Ex Parte Application for an Order Appx001502
5 6/30/2020 |Transcript of Hearing: Plaintiff's Motion to Strike or in the Appx001091-
Alternative to Extend Briefing and Continue the Hearing On Appx001096
7 9/30/2020 |Transcript of Hearing: Plaintiff's Opposition to Defendant's Appx001430-
Memorandum for Production of Invoices for Attorney's Fees and |Appx001452
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Asian American Realty & Property Management

4651 Spring Mountain Road #B1 Las Vegas NV 89102
Office (702) 222-0078 Fax (702) 993-6866 Email: 702aar@gmail.com

May 17 2018

Chris Bishop
President, GLVAR
Via email: chris.bishop@cbvegas.com

Ingrid Trillo

Director, Professional Standards
GLVAR

Via email: itrillo@glvar.org

Copy sent via Certificate of Mailing on 5/17/2018 to
GLVAR

6360 S Rainbow Blvd

Las Vegas NV 89118

Re: Arbitration #16201 A —Betty Chan/Asian American Realty & Property Management
Vs. Wayne Wu, Agent and Judith Sullivan/Nevada Real
Estate Corp

I am responding to the amended letter for Notice of Award of Arbitrators from Ms. Trillo
dated 5/4/2018. Please be advised that I am going to continue my pending litigation case
No. A-16-744109-C in District Court to vacate the Arbitration hearing and Awards.

I will not engage a procedure review with GLVAR because:

1) Procedure deficiency

a) Ms. Trillo rejected my request for a new hearing and that I can only file a procedural
review. She said only items relating to procedural deficiency can be discussed.

There was only one item being arbitrated, “who deserves to be the procuring cause for the
commission” In my humble opinion, it should not be just discussing procedures. Every
words, every document, every procedure are essential to the decision of the Arbitration.

If there were a procedural deficiency, there would be a domino effect that will affect the
outcome of the whole hearing.

The panel members should be very familiar with the procedure or at least there should be

a little gathering or rehearsal type to refresh every one position or procedure before the
hearing.
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At the start of the hearing, Chairman mentioned that all parties present to refer to a
document explaining procedure for hearing. None of all 12 people in the room had a
copy of the document. Counsel went out for 10 minutes and came back with nothing.
However the arbitration went on.

I am not a frequent flyer for arbitration. Last one I attended was from 25 years ago. Do 1
need to understand how the procedure goes today, I am sure I needed that. It also show
how sloppy and unprepared GLVAR was for the hearing. Will the panel members also
adopt the same attitude that the whole hearing was just a business as usual?

May be that was not considered to be a big deal for some. It was still considered as a
procedure deficiency. To me, this is a very big deal. All of us came here to show respect
to the rules and regulations of GLVAR and took it seriously dressed up and spent time
assembling all the documents hoping to get a fair and professional arbitration. It is
supposed to be better than going to court as only Realtors ourselves know what we are
talking about.

That started out to be a joke.

b) I saw one panel member’s eyes automatically shut down for 30 seconds. Twice! How
much focus that member could offer throughout the long and tedious hearing under the
member’s physical condition.

How about another member, the arbitration material seemed to be fresh from the
envelope, did not seem even one page was ever turned. How much that member had
treated the hearing as important as I had?

The Chairman obviously seemed to be new at this. He constantly referred to the notes and
needed to be reminded by another member what was missing. Throughout the hearing he
had focused more how to be a good chairman following the agenda rather than paying
attention of what I said and he stopped me twice from speaking. No offence. I just
reported how I felt about the arbitration.

The Counsel, whom I did not know who he was, spent half of his time texting and
working on his iphone when none of us was allowed to have our phone on.

Another member for personal reasons had to leave early.
One member suddenly walked in and asked if the arbitration had finished.

OMG!
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2) I was denied a due process and right to defend myself.

As I have mentioned above, Chairman had stopped me from speaking twice. Of course
he should stop me if I was talking something irrelevant, but I was trying to challenge the
respondents’ accusation in their response to the Arbitration. He lied about how much
effort he had contributed to help the buyer selecting between two lots. The truth was there
were no 2 lots. It was only one lot available for purchase when the buyer put a deposit
down on that only one lot less than 24 hours after my showing.

Chairman stopped me from speaking so I could not finish explaining why that was a
significant evidence proving their lies. I also could not finish challenging the rest of their
fake statements. The right to defend myself was deprived of because of Chairman’s
interruption.

That was why later in the end, Chairman came back with a question “which lot would 1
recommend” He should not ask that question if he understood or allowed me to continue
my defense. There was only one lot available to purchase, Respondent brought up two
lots just to confuse or cover up the truth that he did nothing to contribute the purchase. I
believed Chairman’s misunderstanding had played an important role to the panel's
decision.

3) It was not just a clerical mistake!

Not to mention that the award letter was sent out erroneously, as Ms Trillo said it did not
change the outcome; it was just a clerical mistake on the cover letter that she made. (In
other words, no big deal?)There was no apology and no explanation that went with the
letter.

I could not see how much respect and responsibility had been given to this arbitration
hearing. Overall speaking, it was not done properly, respectfully and professionally. How
could the panel arrive a fair and accurate conclusion based on all of the above?

Coupled with the above mentioned deficiencies, that was not just a clerical mistake. It

was a significant error more than harmless, a new hearing should be granted but I was
told no way.

Redacted Settlement Discussion

. Obviously I did not do this just for money. My attorney fees were already gone
above and beyond the commission.

Being in Service for 28 years, I felt obligated

a) to myself- protect my integrity and professionalism in the industry and restore my
self esteem. I was so insulted by the greedy buyer and the lying agent.
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b) to buyers- they have to respect the Realtors that they work with

c) to fellow Realtors- offering a kickback to steal other Realtors business is totally stupid
and unethical. To sign a registration lying about being the one showing the buyer at
his first visit so as cheating Builder for commission, that is a new low for all Realtors.

I am totally disappointed GLVAR has not changed a bit since my first arbitration 25
years ago. For whatever happened in the arbitration hearing, I could not trust GLVAR
would be capable of providing a professional hearing any more. As such, I resort to legal
action to fight for my obligations. I want that to be a known public record.

Thank you

Respectfully submitted,
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Electronically Filed
8/6/2018 5:55 PM
orP Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ. : 4 { g

Nevada Bar No. 6076

ROMAN C. HARPER, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 14374

Goodsell & Olsen, LLP

10155 W. Twain Ave., Suite 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89147

Tel:  (702) 869-6261

Fax: (702) 869-8243
mike@goodsellolsen.com
roman@goodsellolsen.com

Attorneys for Defendants/Counterclaimants
Wayne Wu, Judith Sullivan, Nevada Real Estate Corp.
and Jerrin Chiu

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

BETTY CHAN and ASIAN AMERICAN
REALTY & PROPERTY MANAGEMENT,

Case No: A-16-744109-C

Dept. No: XII
Plaintiffs/Counterdefendants,
V. OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO

VACATE OR MODIFY
WAYNE WU, JUDITH SULLIVAN, ARBITRATION AWARD AND

)
)
)
)
)
|
NEVADA REAL ESTATE CORP., JERRIN )
)
)
)
)
)
)

COUNTERMOTION TO
CHIU, KB HOME SALES — NEVADA INC., RECOGNIZE WU AS THE
PROCURING CAUSE, FOR
Defendants/Counterclaimants. SUMMARY JUDGMENT, AND
FOR ATTORNEY FEES

COMES NOW, Defendants and Counterclaimants, WAYNE WU (“Wu”), JUDITH
SULLIVAN (“Sullivan”), NEVADA REAL ESTATE CORP. (“NREC”) and JERRIN CHIU
(“Chiu”), by and through their attorney, Michael A. Olsen, Esq. of the law firm Goodsell &
Olsen, LLP, submit their Opposition to Motion to Vacate or Modify Arbitration Award and
Countermotion to Recognize Wu as the Procuring Cause, for Summary Judgment, and for
Attorney Fees and state as follows:

1/
1/
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BACKGROUND

This dispute arose when Betty Chan failed to meet the expectations of a potential client,
who was forced to hire another agent to help him find and purchase a house. Unfortunately, Ms.
Chan has exceeded expectations in fulfilling her promises to use litigation as a means to impose
unwarranted punishment on the defending parties by way of excessive legal fees and costs. The
underlying commission at issue in this litigation should rightfully be paid to Wayne Wu, the
agent that guided the buyer through the decision-making process and ultimately helped him
obtain his home. Because Ms. Chan has used litigation as a weapon to force needless costs on
her adversary out of spite, attorney fees should be awarded to the defending parties.

I. JERRIN CHIU ATTEMPTS TO USE BETTY CHAN TO PURCHASE A HOUSE
DURING A SHORT WINDOW AROUND THE NEW YEAR

On November 2, 2015, Dr. Jerrin Chiu emailed BETTY CHAN (“Chan”), officer and
registered agent of ASIAN AMERICAN REALTY & PROPERTY MANAGEMENT, a
corporation (“AAPM”), expressing interest in searching for a home to purchase while Dr. Chiu’s
parents were in town to visit in late December. In the November 2, 2015 email, Dr. Chiu
provided Chan with a relative price range, desired location, and expressed that he and his parents
would be available to look at homes from December 30, 2015 to January 1, 2016. He noted that
this might infringe on family time over the holidays.! Chan, with no objection to the days
indicated by Dr. Chiu, agreed to show him and his parents some options.>

A few weeks later, Dr. Chiu contacted Chan again, confirming that she would accompany
Dr. Chiu and his parents as they looked for a house. Chan confirmed the appointment. Dr. Chiu
and Dr. Chiu’s father, Dr. Kwang Chiu (“Kwang”) sought out Chan because she spoke Mandarin

Chinese, making it easier to communicate with Dr. Chiu’s parents. Dr. Chiu was also familiar

! Exhibit “A”.
2 Exhibit “B”.
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with Chan because Dr. Chiu had used Chan as a real estate agent before in 2013 when he
purchased a condo.

Chan admits that she did nothing to actually prepare for Dr. Chiu’s home search until the
day before he was supposed to begin viewing properties.®> Nonetheless, on December 30, 2015
Chan began to show Dr. Chiu and his parents some potential options to meet Dr. Chiu’s
conditions. Neither Dr. Chiu nor his parents ever entered into any form of written agreement
with Chan. Chan showed them several previously-owned homes. Chan tried to persuade Dr. Chiu
to purchase one of the previously-owned homes, but Dr. Chiu and his parents were not
interested.*

As the day progressed, Chan began to rush through showings. “We then went to Toll
Brothers. . . . We did not finish all the models. We were already very late for the 4th resale
appointment and also late for KB . .. .

Unsurprising, this rush continued as Chan took Dr. Chiu and his parents to Tevare at
Summerlin, a housing development by KB Home Sales — Nevada, Inc. (“KB Home
Development”). There, Chan showed Dr. Chiu and his parents three model home floor plans:
Model 1 (a single-story home); Model 2 (a two-story home); and Model 3 (another two-story
home). During this visit to the KB Home Development, Chan also showed Dr. Chiu a few empty
lots where the model home floor plans could be erected. It is important to note that the floor plan

and lot combination ultimately purchased by Chiu was not presented to him by Chan but rather

by the later retained agent, Wu.

3 Exhibit 2 of Motion to Vacate, P0011, Betty Chan Statement, “The Preparation.”

4 Chan attached documents to show a proposed route. The proposed route covered several
homes, none of which ultimately appealed to Chiu as demonstrated by his failure to purchase the
same. Thus, the options Chan unsuccessfully proposed to sell to Dr. Chiu included property at
Cannon Falls Avenue, Escondido Canyon Street, Asilo Blanco Avenue, Dove Meadow Way, and
Wonderful Day Drive.

> Exhibit 2 of Motion to Vacate, P0011, Betty Chan Statement, “The Showing.”
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During the December 30th visit to KB Home Development, Chan pressured Dr. Chiu to
purchase Lot 37 and to choose the Model 3 floorplan. Chan preferred Lot 37, claiming it would
give Dr. Chiu a better view of the Vegas Strip. However, Dr. Chiu was not interested in having a
view of the Vegas Strip, preferring to have a view of the mountains. He was also uninterested in
the KB Home options because the development was outside the area he wanted to live,
something he told Chan before the visit.

Additionally, Dr. Chiu disliked the Model 3 floorplan and expressed his distaste for the
layout. Dr. Chiu initially held some mild interest in the Model 2 floorplan, however Chan’s
persistent pitch to sell Dr. Chiu a previously-built home or her preferred combination of Lot 37
with the Model 3 floorplan, left Chiu, at the end of the day, uninterested and confused.

Moreover, Chan was unwilling to let Dr. Chiu’s interests govern the schedule. “I told
Buyer Jerrin that we had [an] appointment with another property at 1:30 pm and [were] already
late so we needed to hurry.”® Thus, Chan whisked Dr. Chiu and his parents away from the KB
Home Development. Chan concluded the day with an email whose subject line read “3 properties
we saw today.” Chan’s summary of the day identified only “3 properties that [Dr. Chiu] [was
purportedly] interested” in purchasing: listings 1594880, 1594035, and 1592526 (hereafter
“Three Resale Properties”).” None of these met Dr. Chiu’s needs or were purchased by him.

II. CHAN BECOMES NON-RESPONSIVE AFTER THE RUSHED AND
INCOMPLETE SHOWINGS OF DECEMBER 30, 2015

Despite Dr. Chiu’s expressed desire to finalize his home selection within a tight
timeframe, Chan became unresponsive after the initial rushed day of showings. This occurred
despite Dr. Chiu’s attempts to reach Chan. According to Chan, her non-responsive attitude
during the exact time frame Dr. Chiu needed to make his decision was due to her pursuit of

personal affairs, including going to see “fireworks” with her family. During arbitration, Chan

® Exhibit 2 of Motion to Vacate, P0012, Betty Chan Statement, “KB Home.”
7P0051, Exhibit “O”; see also Exhibit 2 of Motion to Vacate, P0059—62.

Page 4 of 28
3 Appx 000468




(GOODSELL & OLSEN

*

ATTORNEYS AT LLAW
10155 W. TWAIN AVE. STE. 100, LAS VEGAS, NV 89147

(702) 869-6261 TEL - (702) 869-8243 FAX

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

admitted that she failed and refused to respond to Dr. Chiu’s calls over the New Year’s holiday,
preferring instead to spend time with her visiting daughter.®

On December 31, 2015, Dr. Chiu and his parents—unaccompanied by the Chan who had
abandoned them, and was not returning calls—returned to the KB Home Development. They
called Chan at approximately 10:50 a.m., to express their desire to look at more options before
Dr. Chiu’s parents left town. Chan did not answer.

While waiting for Chan to return their call, Dr. Chiu and his parents, without the
assistance of any broker, met with a KB Home representative and were informed that if they did
not make a deposit towards a lot before the end of the day, they would be subject to the
development-wide price increase of $3,000.00.

Even though he had not yet decided to purchase a KB Home, Dr. Chiu—unable to
contact Chan—decided to make a fully refundable earnest deposit of $10,000.00 with KB Home
to avoid the price increase on the KB Home lots. The deposit was made because it was fully
refundable for fourteen (14) days. Therefore Dr. Chui, made the deposit with KB Homes based
on the representation that the refund could be returned for fourteen days should he opt not to
purchase from KB Homes.’

Notwithstanding the refundable deposit, Chiu was concerned with the KB Development’s
poor reputation and several poor online reviews regarding homes built by KB Homes. Thus, on
January 1, 2016 and due to Chan’s non-responsive behavior, Dr. Chiu posted a question on the
city-data.com website forum inquiring about the integrity of homes built by KB Homes.'°

On January 2, 2016, Kwang called Chan several times without answer and left a message.

Chan had previously been made aware that time was of the essence for Dr. Chiu and she knew

8 Exhibit 2 of Motion to Vacate, P0013—14, Betty Chan Statement, “Follow up.”
? Affidavit of Jerrin Chiu, Exhibit “C”.
10°A true and correct copy of the January 1, 2016 post is attached hereto as Exhibit “D”.
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that Kwang and his wife had to return to California in two days and needed an agent to help them
explore housing options and find a home to purchase.

On January 3, 2016, Kwang called Chan again and left another message. Dr. Chiu’s
parents had to leave, yet he still had not identified a house to purchase. Chan did not respond.
Despite the urgency Dr. Chiu had expressed in identifying a house to purchase, Chan admits that
she had no contact with Dr. Chiu from December 30, 2015 to January 5, 2016, the very days Dr.
Chiu had indicated they needed help locating a home.!!

ITII.DR. CHIU SEARCHES FOR SOMEONE TO ANSWER HIS QUESTIONS SO HE
CAN PURCHASE A HOUSE

Frustrated that Chan failed and refused to respond to their calls and messages and running
out of time to consider options together, Dr. Chiu and his parents began searching for other real
estate agents that could guide them through a purchase. Kwang started the search by calling a
few different agents, but none answered. Kwang remembered a former acquaintance who worked
in the Vegas area as a broker, Wayne Wu (“Wu”). Kwang located Wu’s number in a local
newspaper and called Wu at approximately 1:40 p.m. on January 3, 2016.

Kwang recommended Wu to Chiu because of his expertise in architecture, ability to
speak Mandarin, and his knowledge of the Chinese tradition of feng shui. Moreover, Wu was
responsive to concerns and willing to accommodate his schedule to Dr. Chiu’s short timeline
even though he had no prior notice.

On January 7, 2016, Dr. Chiu met with Wu at the KB Home Development. Dr. Chiu
expressed his frustrations in dealing with Chan, her forceful nature in trying to convince him to
buy one of the Three Resale Properties, her pushing him (in the alternative) to purchase a KB
Homes Model 3 floorplan, a plan Dr. Chiu was not impressed with, and her failure to respond to

phone calls and voice messages.

' See Exhibit 2 of Motion to Vacate, P0013—14, Betty Chan Statement, “Follow up.”
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Wau listened to Dr. Chiu’s criteria and began to identify properties that could potentially
satisfy Dr. Chiu’s objectives. Thus, he suggested Lot 43 and the Model 2 floorplan, a
combination that had never even been suggested by Chan. Wu explained the implications of
building the Model 2 floorplan on Lot 43, including how the combination would be effective at
bringing in natural light with an impressive view of the mountains in conformity with principles
of feng shui.

Dr Chiu found Wu’s analysis convincing; Wu was also able to satisfy his concerns about
KB Homes quality and access to the development, even though he initially deemed it to be
outside his desired area. Based on Wu’s recommendation, Chiu purchased Lot 43 with the Model
2 floorplan on January 8, 2016.'> Wu is the broker that procured the sale and the ONLY listed
Broker on the purchase agreement! and the addendum.!'* There is no mention of Chan in any of
the closing documents.

IV.CHAN USES THREATS AND DECEPTION TO ATTEMPT TO OBTAIN WU’S
COMMISSION

Chan recognizes that she knew at least by January 15, 2015 that Dr. Chiu had been forced
to find another real estate agent to meet his needs.'> After waiting another week, Chan decided to
go to KB Homes and attempt to unilaterally obtain the Commission for herself by claiming that

t.16 Ms. Chan could not produce

Dr. Chiu had signed a registration card appointing her as agen
the card and KB Homes was unable to locate such a document, which did not deter Chan from

trying to obtain Wu’s Commission by threatening Dr. Chiu.

12 Exhibit “C”.

13 A true and correct copy of the purchase agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit “E”.

% A true and correct copy of the addendum to the purchase agreement is attached hereto as
Exhibit “F”.

15 Exhibit 2 of Motion to Vacate, P0014—15, Betty Chan Statement, at “The Other Agent’s
Intrusion.”

16 See Exhibit 2 of Motion to Vacate, P0015, Betty Chan Statement, “Registration Card.”
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Chan next hired Jeffrey R. Hall, Esq. of Hutchison & Steffen to send a demand letter to
First American Title on March 24, 2016. Chan demanded she be paid Wu’s Commission and
claimed that “Mr. Chiu signed a broker registration identifying Ms. Chan as his agent on
[December 31, 2015].”!7 But Chan’s drive has really always been about punishing Wu for
providing services to the client she abandoned.

Honestly from day one i met you my focus is not the commission, i felt insulted and
humiliated, another agent dared challenge me and he really do not know who I am. I
have been really sad more than i am angry. Last night i read many court cases. Even
though my card has disappeared, it wont hurt me winning. I liked to teach them a lesson.
Life is not about money. So happen i do have few hundred thousand in hand thati can
use. If they are willing to go along with me to spend equal amount of money, then I will
be very happy to play their game. I got my direction last nite, so i felt peaceful now. All i
need KB to understand I don’t hate kb for this, and i need them to work with me on my
plan. Jana, i dont blame you either and take care of yourself.'®

Unaware of Chan’s ulterior motives, Wu, through counsel, requested a copy of the
purported registration card from Chan’s attorney on June 17, 2016. This request was renewed on
June 21, 2016. Counsel for Chan responded: “I asked my client for the document referred to.
She’s been out of town and advised that she’d need a week to get back and go through her files.”
Chan never had the registration card, which she knew and admitted as early as February 2016,
four months earlier. Apparently, her counsel figured out the same. After the week Chan
purportedly needed to get home and find the document, Wu suddenly received notice that her
counsel “no longer represent[ed] Betty Chan in this matter.”'® Mr. Hall had withdrawn as
counsel.

Pursuant to Mr. Hall’s confirmation that Chan was unrepresented, Chan was contacted

directly requesting the purported registration card on June 29, 2016. Chan’s response was to

17 Exhibit “H”; compare Exhibit “I” (showing Chan knew she did not have a registration card
on February 5, 2016).

'8 Exhibit “I”.

19 Email Chain between Laura Meyers, Michael A. Olsen, Esq., and Jeffrey Hall, Esq, attached
hereto as Exhibit “J”.
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inform that she had retained counsel that was currently out of town, but would follow up after
having a chance to review the file.?°

V. CHAN USES THE DISTRICT COURT, GLVAR, AND TWO ADDITIONAL LAW
FIRMS TO CHALLENGE PAYMENT OF WU’S COMMISSION

On September 27, 2016, Chan—now represented by Avece M. Higbee, Esq. of Marquis
Aurbach Coffing—committed an ethical violation of the GLVAR rules by filing a Complaint in
the Eighth Judicial District Court, prior to submitting the matter to GLVAR for mediation and
possible arbitration as required by rule.?! Ms. Chan caused Dr. Chiu and Wu to incur thousands
of dollars in attorney’s fees and costs by initiating this litigation, in direct violation of her
obligation to submit to arbitration. The claims listed in the Complaint (declaratory relief, breach
of contract, and unjust enrichment) certainly were intended to extort payment of the Commission
to Chan.?

Chan did not simply sue Wu. She also filed a frivolous action against Nevada Real Estate
Corp. (the real estate company where Wu works), Judith Sullivan (designated Realtor® and
officer of Nevada Real Estate Corp.), Dr. Chiu (the buyer), and KB Homes (the property
developer/seller). Again the filing before this Court is directly in violation of Chan’s obligation
to submit this matter to GLVAR for binding arbitration. It was only after Defendants sought to
dismiss this action that Chan filed a Motion to Stay, pending the outcome of the binding
arbitration. Now, that she is not happy with the finding of the panel of 3 arbitrators, following a

nearly 4 hour arbitration, she is attempting to take another bite at the apple.

20 Email Chain between Laura Meyers, paralegal and Betty Chan, attached hereto as Exhibit
“K”.
21 Arbitration Manual, Article 17, page 13 (“Realtors shall submit the dispute to arbitration in
accordance with the policies of the Board rather than litigate the matter.”); Part Ten — Arbitration
of Disputes, Section 53(a) The Award, page 150 (“The award shall be in writing and signed by
the arbitrators or a majority of them, shall state only the amount of the award, and, when so
signed and transmitted to each of the parties, shall be valid and binding and shall not be subject
to review or appeal.”).
22 See Complaint, 9 54-55; 64; 74, Exhibit “L>.
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On November 15, 2016, Chan submitted her Amended Complaint, alleging, without any
evidence, that Dr. Chiu sought out Wu in order to exclude Chan from the transaction because Wu
offered a “commission kick-back.” Chan further alleged that because Chan was the first to
introduce Dr. Chiu to the KB Home Development, Wu was not entitled to the subsequent
commission received, regardless of her abandonment and dereliction.”> Wu’s testimony during
arbitration directly refuted Chan’s unfounded allegations about him giving some kind of “kick
back.”

On December 6, 2016, Wu and Sullivan submitted their Answer and Counterclaim and
asserted that Dr. Chiu and Chan never entered a written agreement and that there was never a
meeting of the minds regarding the core terms of her representation. Dr. Chiu also asserted that
there was never any written or verbal agreement setting forth the terms of any agreement
between the parties. Wu and Sullivan further asserted that Chan fraudulently represented to Dr.
Chiu and to First American Title Company that she possessed a broker registration card
identifying her as Dr. Chiu’s agent without being able to produce any such document upon
challenge.>* Wu and Sullivan also noted that Chan had failed to bring this matter before the
GLVAR as is required of Realtors®.

On January 13, 2017, Chan, through counsel, filed her Motion for Stay Pending
Arbitration stating that Chan “submitted a claim for arbitration with the Greater Las Vegas
Association of Realtors® pursuant to the Code of Ethics and Arbitration Manual for the National
Association of Realtors®. In the event of disputes between Realtors®, Realtors® must submit
the dispute to arbitration in accordance with the policies of GLVAR.”?> However, Chan only
remembered the arbitration policy over a year after Dr. Chiu entered a contract to purchase his

home and months after having improperly filed the instant lawsuit.

23 See Chan’s Amended Complaint, Exhibit “M”.

24 See Exhibit “M”; Exhibit “H”.

25 See Motion for Stay Pending Arbitration, at 3:10-12.
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Ten days after the Motion for Stay, Chan’s second counsel, Avece Higbee, Esq.,
submitted her Motion to Withdraw as Counsel of Record for Plaintiffs Betty Chan and Asian
American Realty & Property Management. The motion requested that Avece Higbee, Esq. be
permitted to withdraw because of “differences with Plaintiffs concerning action to be taken”
going forward in the matter.

Wu and Sullivan opposed the motion and requested the Complaint be dismissed or
summary judgment be granted. Notwithstanding, Chan represented to the Court that there were
claims and parties that might remain unaffected by the potential arbitration. Accordingly, the
Court decided to stay the A-Case pending the outcome of arbitration to evaluate whether there
were any claims against any parties that should still be adjudicated after arbitration was
completed.

On May 1, 2017, the District Court held a status check due to Chan’s failure to provide
any evidence that she had filed for arbitration. Because the named plaintiffs in the A-Case
included a corporation, representation by counsel was required.?® Chan retained Todd E.
Kennedy, of Black & Lobello, her third law firm to handle the status check.

VI.CHAN REPUDIATES RESULT OF BINDING ARBITRATION

On July 10, 2017, Respondents were finally made aware of a filing with the Arbitration
Board. Of course, Chan did not recur to arbitration initially as required of all members of the
GLVAR. Notwithstanding, she did eventually submit to arbitration as she should have from the
outset. To initiate arbitration, Chan submitted her Request and Agreement to Arbitrate (Member)
(hereafter “Agreement to Arbitrate”). In the Agreement to Arbitrate, Chan recognized that “by
becoming and remaining a member of the Greater Las Vegas Association of Realtors®” she had

“previously consented to arbitration through the Association under its Rules and regulations.”?’

26 EDCR 7.42(b) (“A corporation may not appear in proper person.”).
27 Exhibit “Q”, P000].
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Further, Chan acknowledged that she sought arbitration of a “dispute arising out of the
real estate business as defined by Article 17 of the Code of Ethics” between her and Wu.?® She
claimed that there was “due, unpaid and owing to [her] . . . the sum of $13,795.32.”%° And the
scope of the arbitration was clearly laid out by Chan in the Agreement to Arbitrate.

I request and consent to arbitration through the Association in accordance with the
Code of Ethics and Arbitration Manual (alternatively, “in accordance with the
professional standards procedures set forth in the bylaws of the Board”). I agree to abide
by the arbitration award and, if [ am the non-prevailing party, to, within ten (10) days
following transmittal of the award, either (1) pay the award to the party(ies) named in the
award or (2) deposit the funds with the Professional Standards Administrator to be held in
an escrow or trust account maintained for this purpose. Failure to satisfy the award or to
deposit the funds in the escrow or trust account within this time period may be considered
a violation of a membership duty and may subject the member to disciplinary action at the
discretion of the Board of Directors consistent with Section 53, The Award, Code of Ethics
and Arbitration Manual.

In the event I do not comply with the award and it is necessary for any party to obtain
judicial confirmation and enforcement of the award against me, I agree to pay that party
costs and reasonable attorney’s fees incurred obtaining such confirmation and
enforcement.*’

Pursuant to the Agreement to Arbitrate, an arbitration was held before the GLVAR on or
about April 17, 2018. Following the nearly four hour arbitration the panel of arbitrators asked
each counsel if they had been given the opportunity to fully and fairly present their entire case.
Counsel for both parties responded in the affirmative. Because of a cover letter error in the
original transmission of the Award of Arbitrators (hereafter “Award”) on April 20, 2018, the
deadlines for challenges were extended to reflect re-transmission of the Award on April 27,
2018.

The award must be paid no later than 5:00 p.m. on May 7, 2018, either directly to the
Respondent or to the Greater Las Vegas Association of REALTORS®. The funds will be

deposited in a GLVAR escrow account and are held by GLVAR pending the outcome of a
procedural review and/or legal challenge. A request for procedural review must be filed

28 Exhibit “Q”, P0001, 4 3.
29 Exhibit “Q”, P0001, 9 4.
30 Exhibit “Q”, P0001, 9 5 (emphasis added).
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within twenty (20) days of the award. Alternatively, a notice of legal challenge must be
received within that same twenty (20) day period.*!

Notwithstanding her consent to the arbitration and the rules governing the same, Chan
has since repudiated the Award. On May 17, 2018, the last day for Chan to seek procedural
review of the arbitration, she defiantly declared “I will not engage [in] a procedur[al] review with
GLVAR . .. ."% After a diatribe of purported procedural deficiencies—which Chan refused to
actually raise before the GLVAR—Chan openly criticized the GLVAR.

I am totally disappointed GLVAR has not changed a bit since my first arbitration 25 years
ago. For whatever happened in the arbitration hearing, I could not trust GLVAR would be
capable of providing a professional hearing any more. As such, I resort to legal action to
fight for my obligations. I want that to be a known public record.*

Now, after refusing to follow proper procedure by filing a procedural review with
GLVAR and after allowing several more months to elapse, Chan has filed her present motion to

vacate award on June 18, 2018.

LEGAL ANALYSIS

Understanding the difficulties facing her in avoiding the result of arbitration, Chan now
seeks to overturn the Award. Quickly glossing over the actual standard that governs review of
arbitration awards, Chan hopes to garner support for her campaign to inflict unnecessary
litigation expenses on the Defendants, all without mentioning her “burden of proving, by clear
and convincing evidence, the statutory or common-law ground relied upon for challenging the
award.”*

I. CHAN HAS FAILED TO MEET ANY STANDARD ALLOWING REVIEW OF
THE ARBITRATION AWARD

31 Exhibit “R”.

32 Exhibit “S”.

33 Exhibit “S”.

34 See Health Plan of Nevada, Inc. v. Rainbow Medical, LLC, 120 Nev. 689, 695, 100 P.3d 172,
176 (2004).
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In order to effectively challenge an arbitration award a party must demonstrate (1)
applicable statutory grounds provided in NRS 38.241; (2) that the award was arbitrary,

capricious, or unsupported by the agreement; or (3) that the arbitrator manifestly disregarded the

law.>

Statutory grounds to vacate an arbitration award may apply if a contesting party

demonstrates by clear and convincing evidence that an “arbitrator exceeded his or her powers.”>®

This burden proves to be quite high as “Courts presume that arbitrators are acting within the

scope of their authority.”?’

However, allegations that an arbitrator misinterpreted the agreement or made factual or
legal errors do not support vacating an award as being in excess of the arbitrator's

powers. Arbitrators do not exceed their powers if their interpretation of an agreement, even
if erroneous, is rationally grounded in the agreement. The question is whether the
arbitrator had the authority under the agreement to decide an issue, not whether the issue
was correctly decided. Review under excess-of-authority grounds is limited and only
granted in very unusual circumstances. An award should be enforced so long as the
arbitrator is arguably construing or applying the contract. If there is a colorable
justification for the outcome, the award should be confirmed.>®

NRS 38.241 may also allow review of an arbitration award when the contesting party
demonstrates by clear and convincing evidence that the “award was procured by corruption,
fraud or other undue means.”** However, the contesting party must meet this burden by
demonstrating that the arbitration award was obtained by intentional misrepresentations related
to the arbitration proceedings.*’

As to common law grounds, to establish that an award was arbitrary, capricious, or

unsupported by the agreement to arbitrate, the contesting party must establish, by clear and

35 Clark County Education Association v. Clark County School District, 122 Nev. 337, 341-42;
131 P.3d 5, 8 (2006).

36 NRS 38.241(1)(d).

37 Health Plan of Nevada, Inc., 120 Nev. at 697, 100 P.3d at 178.

38 Health Plan of Nevada, Inc., 120 Nev. at 697-98, 100 P.3d at 178 (emphasis added) (citations
omitted).

39 NRS 38.241(1)(a).

40 See, e.g., Sylver v. Regents Bank, NA, 129 Nev. Adv. Op. 30, 300 P.3d 718 (2013).
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convincing evidence, that the award “was unsupported by substantial evidence.”*' “The
arbitrary-and-capricious standard does not permit a reviewing court to vacate an arbitrator’s
award based on misinterpretation of the law.”*?

Similarly, manifest disregard of the law “limits the reviewing court’s concern to whether
the arbitrator consciously ignored or missed the law.”** Thus, when reviewing an arbitration
award under the common law, “neither standard permits a reviewing court to consider the
arbitrator’s interpretation of the law.”** “When searching for a manifest disregard for the law, a
court should attempt to locate arbitrators who appreciate the significance of clearly governing
legal principles but decide to ignore or pay no attention to those principles.”*

Thus, “Nevada recognizes both common-law grounds and statutory grounds for

examining an arbitration award. However, the scope of judicial review of an arbitration

award is limited and is nothing like the scope of an appellate court’s review of a trial

court’s decision.”*¢

Because Chan, who now complains that the Award was not a proper interpretation of the
law, has failed to demonstrate clear and convincing evidence that any of these standards have
been met, the Award must be confirmed.

A. The GLVAR Did Not Exceed Its Power, Nor Was the Award Obtained by Fraud

The issue presented to the GLVAR by way of Chan’s Agreement to Arbitrate, contrary to
Chan’s post hoc simplification, was who was entitled to $13,795.32 pursuant to a “dispute
arising out of the real estate business.”*’ Although procuring cause was certainly briefed by the

parties, the GLVAR was not bound exclusively to make a determination of procuring cause, but

41 Clark County Education Association, 122 Nev. at 341-42; 131 P.3d at 8.

42 Clark County Education Association, 122 Nev. at 343-44; 131 P.3d at 9.

43 Clark County Education Association, 122 Nev. at 342; 131 P.3d at 9.

4 Clark County Education Association, 122 Nev. at 342; 131 P.3d at 9.

45 Clark County Education Association, 122 Nev. at 344; 131 P.3d at 10 (citation omitted).
46 Health Plan of Nevada, Inc., 120 Nev. at 695, 100 P.3d at 176.

7 Exhibit “Q”, at 9 3-4.
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rather had broad authority to arbitrate the issue of who should be entitled to any portion of the
$13,795.32 pursuant to the Arbitration Manual as demonstrated by Chan’s Agreement to
Arbitrate.

The Arbitration Manual lists a number of issues that may be subject to arbitration,
including disputes where multiple brokers claim to be owed money from a commission.*® The
Arbitration Manual recognizes that brokers may claim that they have a right to commission
proceeds due to the procuring cause standard.*’

The Nevada Supreme Court has determined how “a court . . . decide[s] which [broker]
was the ‘procuring’ or ‘inducing’ cause of the sale.”® To be the procuring cause of a sale, the
broker’s conduct must be more than merely trifling.”! “Merely introducing the eventual

purchaser is not . . . enough.”? A broker cannot be the procuring cause when it is shown that

they have “abandoned efforts or been helplessly ineffective.”>® Courts have also held that merely

introducing or alerting a prospective buyer that a property is available is usually insufficient to
constitute a procuring cause.>* Several jurisdictions have held that the broker’s efforts must be

the predominating cause of the sale.>> Clearly, given the division of the commission in this

case the Arbitrators found Wayne Wu to be both the procuring cause and the predominating

cause of the sale.

8 Code of Ethics and Arbitration Manual, Standard of Practice 17-4(1).

4 Code of Ethics and Arbitration Manual, Standard of Practice 17-4(1).

50 Bartsas Realty, Inc. v. Leverton, 82 Nev. 6, 9, 409 P.2d 627, 629 (1966) (citations omitted).

3! Bartsas Realty, Inc., 82 Nev. at 9, 409 P.2d at 6209.

32 Bartsas Realty, Inc., 82 Nev. at 9, 409 P.2d at 629.

>3 Bartsas Realty, Inc., 82 Nev. at 9, 409 P.2d at 630; see also Levy Wolf Real Estate Brokerage,
Inc. v. Lizza Industries, Inc., 500 N.Y.S. 2d 37, 118 A.D.2d 688 (N.Y. App. Div. 1986).

>4 See United Farm Agency of Alabama, Inc. v. Green, 466 So. 2d 118 (Ala. 1988); Greene v.
Hellman, 51 N.Y.2d 197, 412 N.E.2d 1301 (1980).

5> See Carmichael v. Agur Realty Co., 574 So. 2d 603 (Miss. 1990); Ham v. Morris, 711 S.W.2d
187 (Mo. 1986); A N Associates, Inc. v. Quotron Systems, Inc., 605 N.Y.S. 2d 178, 159 Misc.
2d 515, (Civ. Ct. N.Y. Cnty. 1993); Vincent v. Weber, 13 Ohio Misc. 280, 232 N.E. 2d 671
(Mun. Ct. 1965).
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Notwithstanding the authority to determine that one broker has acted as the procuring
cause, the Arbitration Manual explicitly confers authority to split an award.

While awards are generally for the full amount in question (which may be required by state
law), in exceptional cases, awards may be split between the parties (again, except where
prohibited by state law). Split awards are the exception rather than the rule and should be
utilized only when Hearing Panels determine that the transaction would have resulted only
through the combined efforts of both parties. It should also be considered that questions of
representation and entitlement to compensation are separate issues.>®

The authority of the GLVAR to split a commission adds an additional layer of
complexity to an arbitration proceeding determining the amounts of money to be allocated to

each party. “It is for the arbitrators to determine which issues were actually ‘necessary’ to the

ultimate decision.”’

Thus, an arbitration decision is final and conclusive because the parties have agreed that it
be so. By ensuring that an arbitrator's decision is final and binding, courts simply assure
that the parties receive the benefit of their bargain.

Moreover, "[a]rbitrators, unless specifically required to act in conformity with rules of law,
may base their decision upon broad principles of justice and equity, and in doing so may
expressly or impliedly reject a claim that a party might successfully have asserted in a
judicial action."

Parties who stipulate in an agreement that controversies that may arise out of it shall be
settled by arbitration, may expect not only to reap the advantages that flow from the use of
that nontechnical, summary procedure, but also to find themselves bound by an award
reached by paths neither marked nor traceable and not subject to judicial review. >

Arbitrators wield significant power to craft an award considering all legal, factual, and
equitable nuances in a matter. The GLVAR relies on this authority in providing arbitration
decisions.

The National Association’s Professional Standards Committee has consistently taken the

position that arbitration awards should not include findings of fact or rationale for the
arbitrators’ award among the reasons for this are the fact that arbitration awards are not

56 Code of Ethics and Arbitration Manual, Appendix II to Part Ten: Arbitration Guidelines

(Suggested Factors for Consideration by a Hearing Panel in Arbitration), at 158.
57 Hall v. Superior Court, 18 Cal. App. 4th 427, 436, 22 Cal. Rptr. 2d 376, 381 (1993).
38 Moncharsh v. Heily & Blase, 3 Cal. 4th 1, 10-11, 832 P.2d 899, 903—04 (1992).
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appealable on the merits but generally only on the limited procedural bases established in
the governing state arbitration statute; that the issues considered by Hearing Panels are
often myriad and complex, and the reasoning for an award may be equally complex and
difficult to reduce to writing; and that the inclusion of written findings of fact or rationale
(or both) would conceivably result in attempts to use such detail as “precedent” in
subsequent hearings which might or might not involve similar facts.>

Despite the authoritative finality that this gives to their decision, in the specific case of
the GLVAR a process for procedural review is nonetheless provided to the parties.

After the award has been transmitted to each of the parties, they have twenty (20) days to
request procedural review of the arbitration hearing procedure by the Board of Directors.
The non-prevailing party shall also have the same twenty (20) days following transmittal
of the award to notify the Professional Standards Administrator that a legal challenge to
the validity of the award has been initiated.

If no such procedural review is requested, the award becomes final and binding following
the twenty (20) day period. However, if procedural review is requested, the award is not
considered final and binding until after the Board of Directors has concluded that the
hearing was conducted in a manner consistent with the Board’s procedures and the parties
had been afforded due process.*’

In addition to the explicit provisions of the Arbitration Manual, the April 27, 2018 letter
communicating the Award put the parties on notice that “A request for procedural review must
be filed within twenty (20) days of the award. Alternatively, a notice of legal challenge must be
received within that same twenty (20) day period.”

In this matter, Chan explicitly refused to seek any procedural review of the Award before
the GLVAR. This even though Chan was advised that she had the right to raise any challenges
that she felt affected her due process or the fairness of the award. Of course, a procedural review
by the GLVAR would have done little to advance Chan’s plan to make defendants continue to

incur thousands of dollars in legal fees and costs. Nonetheless, Chan has waived the opportunity

59 Arbitration Manual, at Appendix II to Part Ten: Arbitration Guidelines (Suggested Factors for
Consideration by a Hearing Panel in Arbitration), Sample Fact Situation Analysis, page 162; see
also Arbitration Manual, Appendix V to Part Ten: Arbitration Hearing Checklist, (33), page 174
(“The award shall be in writing and signed by the arbitrators or a majority of them, and shall
state only the amount of the award, and when transmitted to each of the parties shall not be
subject to review or appeal.”).

80 Arbitration Manual, at Part Ten — Arbitration of Disputes, Section 53(c), page 150.
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to seek review of the Award, which became final and binding when Chan failed to bring a good
faith challenge through the procedural review process provided by the GLVAR.

By any means, Chan’s claim that the GLVAR exceeded its power relies on her faulty
reasoning that because “there is no contract between the two competing brokers” the arbitration
was merely an ethical formality requiring the GLVAR to engage exclusively in a procuring cause
analysis.®! As demonstrated by the Agreement to Arbitrate executed by Chan, the scope of the
arbitration conferred on the GLVAR the authority to address the distribution of $13,795.32 in
conformity with the Arbitration Manual. After substantial briefing and documentation was
submitted to the GLVAR, a hearing was conducted and the GLVAR reached clear findings.

The undersigned, duly appointed as the Hearing Panel to hear and determine an arbitrable
dispute between Betty Chan, Asian American Realty [Complainant] and Wayne Wu and
Judith Sullivan, Nevada Real Estate Corp [Respondent] certify that on April 17th, 2018,
we heard the evidence of the parties and having heard all the evidence and arguments of
the parties, a majority of the panel finds there is due and owing $3,448.83 to be paid by
Respondent to Complainant and the remaining $10,346.49 be paid to Respondent from title
company.®?

In conformity with GLVAR policy as established by the Arbitration Manuel, the Award
followed the binding principles and clearly pronounced the award of the Hearing Panel. Yet
Chan now argues that the only issue before the GLVAR was regarding procuring cause and
attempts to demonstrate that the final decision was a legal misinterpretation. Even if Chan could
demonstrate by clear and convincing evidence that the only issue before the GLVAR was to
determine procuring cause, which she cannot, a misinterpretation of the law is not a valid basis to
challenge an arbitration award under NRS 38.241. The GLVAR’s Award was rationally based in

the Agreement to Arbitrate and considered issues authorized by the Arbitration Manual. Thus,

the Award must be confirmed.

61 See Motion to Vacate, at 9:21-24.
%2 Exhibit “R”.
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To the extent that this Court is willing to entertain a modification of the Award to
eliminate division of the $13,795.32, said amount should be awarded entirely to Wu. Procuring
cause analysis would favor Wu, as implicitly indicated by the award. Although the GLVAR
decided to exercise its discretionary, equitable authority to divide the commission, it awarded a
much larger amount to Wu. Specifically, the Award orders that seventy-five percent (75%) of the
$13,795.32 be awarded to Wu.

The reason is clear: the GLVAR found Wu to be the predominating cause of the sale, and
accordingly awarded him with a predominating share of the commission. Because he was the
predominating cause of the sale, should the Court be inclined to limit the award of the
$13,795.32 to one individual, clearly the GLVAR in reviewing the facts concluded that Wu was
the procuring cause. Although the GLVAR decided to give a nominal twenty-five percent (25%)
portion of the funds to Chan, Wu asserts a counter-motion that any revision of the Award on
grounds related to procuring cause must order the full $13,795.32 be distributed to him.

B. The GLVAR’s Award Is Not Arbitrary and Capricious, Nor Was It Obtained by
Fraud

Chan falls woefully short of her burden to establish by clear and convincing evidence that
the Award was not supported by substantial evidence as required to demonstrate that it was
arbitrary and capricious. Although “the scope of judicial review of an arbitration award is limited

and is nothing like the scope of an appellate court’s review of a trial court’s decision,”

a party
seeking to fulfill their burden of proof in challenging an arbitration award must cite to a record.

Merely referring to previous briefing is not sufficient to allow review of a matter.®*

63 Health Plan of Nevada, Inc., 120 Nev. at 695, 100 P.3d at 176.
4 See Thomas v. State, 120 Nev. 37, 43, 83 P.3d 818, 822 (2004).
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GLVAR arbitration proceedings establish a method for parties to preserve a record. “The
Board shall have a court reporter present at the hearing or shall record the hearing. Parties may,
at the Board’s discretion, record the hearing or utilize a court reporter at their own expense.”®’

Use of the record is important in part due to the inability of a party to defeat an arbitration
award by raising arguments not previously raised. “Failure to raise the claim before the
arbitrator, however, waives the claim for any future judicial review.”®

Any other conclusion is inconsistent with the basic purpose of private arbitration, which is
to finally decide a dispute between the parties. Moreover, we cannot permit a party to sit
on his rights, content in the knowledge that should he suffer an adverse decision, he could
then raise the illegality issue in a motion to vacate the arbitrator's award. A contrary rule
would condone a level of “procedural gamesmanship” that we have condemned as
“undermining the advantages of arbitration.”®’

Like her attempt to invoke a statutory basis to challenge the Award, Chan attempts to
meet her burden of clear and convincing evidence under the arbitrary and capricious standard by
claiming the GLVAR was confined to a finding of procuring cause. “By failing to do so, and
indeed splitting the commission, the Panel has acted arbitrarily, manifestly disregarded the law,
and their action is unsupported by agreement.”%®

Just as she did before the GLVAR, Chan recites a purported laundry list of things she did
in her efforts to obtain a commission. She likewise ignores all the substantial evidence produced
to the GLVAR to demonstrate that it was Wu that actually assisted Dr. Chiu in determining
which house to purchase when Chan disappeared after pushing one of Three Resale Properties on
Dr. Chiu.

Indeed, Chan fails to even cite to the record of the hearing or offer any explanation that

can disturb the presumption that the Award was based on substantial evidence and must be

85 Arbitration Manual, at Part Seven — Arbitration General Provisions, Section 31. Conduct of
Hearing, page 137.

6 Moncharsh v. Heily & Blase, 3 Cal. 4th 1, 31, 832 P.2d 899, 918 (1992).

7 Moncharsh, 3 Cal. 4th at 30, 832 P.2d at 917.

%8 Motion to Vacate, at 11:3-5.
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affirmed. Nor does Chan provide any citation to any record to demonstrate any fraudulent
conduct in the arbitration proceedings, which are also presumed to have proceeded in the normal
course. Chan cannot point to a procedural challenge wherein she alleged any irregularity because
she intentionally refused to pursue any such challenge.

Notwithstanding her failure to cite the underlying record, Chan has identified language in
a contract to which she is not a party in an effort to undermine the Award with arguments she did
not raise before the GLVAR although it was available to Chan at that time.®” This new argument
is not properly before the Court as it raises issues waived by Chan in the arbitration itself. Chan
must not be allowed to continue the procedural gamesmanship that she has manifested
throughout these proceedings in an attempt to drive up the costs. To the extent Chan felt any of
the arguments she now raises for the first time had any merit, these should have been raised
before the GLVAR, not waived by waiting to use the arguments after the binding arbitration
Award was entered.

Moreover, the arbitration was not limited in scope as suggested by Chan despite her
Agreement to Arbitrate; it was within the authority of the GLVAR to hear all evidence regarding
the real estate dispute that arose between the parties and adjudicate the dispute accordingly. The
GLVAR did review all the evidence and heard arguments from the parties. It had substantial
evidence before it to find that Wu worked with Dr. Chiu to identify and complete a real estate
transaction that would meet Dr. Chiu’s needs. Because Chan has failed to show any proof that
the GLVAR lacked substantial evidence she has not met her burden of clear and convincing
evidence and the Award must be affirmed nor demonstrated any fraud in the arbitration
proceeding. The Award must be confirmed.

C. The GLVAR Did Not Manifestly Disregard the Law

%9 See Motion to Vacate, at 13:14 — 24 (recognizing that Chan was not a party to the agreement
which she now uses for the first time in her ongoing procedural gamesmanship).
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Again relying on her overly narrow focus on procuring cause, Chan claims that “the
Award manifestly disregards the law . . . because it . . . makes an implicit finding that cannot
exist: more than one procuring cause.”’® Chan fails to demonstrate that the Award actually relies
on the implication that she urges be deduced based on her post hoc simplification of the
arbitration proceedings. As the procuring cause, the GLVAR awarded the majority (75%) of the
$13,795.32 to Wu, but also exercised its authority under the Arbitration Manual to split the
Award and provide Chan with the nominal remainder.

And the GLVAR’s decision to do so is not subject to review where, as is this case here,
nothing has been done to meet the burden of proving by clear and convincing evidence that the
GLVAR was attempting to flaunt and openly disregard legal authority. Although Chan insists
that the GLVAR can be implied to have misinterpreted the law, mere misinterpretations of the
law do not constitute manifest disregard for the law for purposes of overturning the Award. As
such the Award must be confirmed.

II. COUNTERMOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

Chan, a member of the GLVAR, was required to “submit the dispute to arbitration in
accordance with the polices of the [GLVAR] rather than litigate the matter.” Not only was Chan
required to submit to arbitration rather than litigate this matter before the District Court, such
arbitration was binding. By filing her Complaint with this Court, Chan deliberately violated
Local, State, and National codes of ethics. Chan ignored the mandate to arbitrate the matter
before the GLVAR, wasting both this Court’s time and resources. Not only did Chan waste this
Court’s resources and time, but Chan has also filed this matter before the Court to harass and

unnecessarily drive up Defendants’ cost of defense.

70 Motion to Vacate, at 12:3—4.
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A party is entitled to summary judgment when there are no genuine issues of material
fact in dispute and the moving party is entitled to summary judgment as a matter of law.”! In

Wood v. Safeway, Inc., 121 P.3d 1026 (2005), the Nevada Supreme Court stated that a factual

dispute is “genuine” when the evidence is such that a rational trier of fact could return a verdict
for the nonmoving party.””> Once the moving party has shown that there is no genuine dispute as
to material facts, the burden shifts to the nonmoving party to set forth specific facts
demonstrating the existence of a genuine issue for trial or have summary judgment entered
against that party.”> In meeting this burden, the nonmoving party, “is not entitled to build a case
on the gossamer threads of whimsy, speculation and conjecture.””*

The Award represents the final, binding resolution of the entire real estate dispute
between the parties in this matter. The Award necessarily precludes any additional review of this
case except under NRS 38.241 or the two common law grounds. Because Chan has failed to
justify any relief under any of these standards, the Award must stand. And since no material facts
are or can be disputed in light of the Award, summary judgment should be granted in favor of

Defendants and against Plaintiff.

II.COUNTERMOTION THAT FEES BE AWARDED AGAINST CHAN PURSUANT
TO EDCR 7.60(B) AND THE AGREEMENT TO ARBITRATE

Defendants request that the Court award its attorneys’ fees related to this litigation.
EDCR 7.60(b) allows the Court to “impose upon an attorney or a party any and all sanctions
which may, under the facts of the case, be reasonable, including the imposition of fines, costs or

99 ¢¢

attorney's fees when an attorney or a party without just cause” “[p]resents to the court a motion

"INRCP 56.

72 See also NRCP 56.

3 NGA #2. LLC v. Rains, 113 Nev. 1151, 1156, 946 P.2d 163, 166 (1997).

74 Collins v. Union Federal Savings and Loan Association, 99 Nev. 284, 302, 662 P.2d 610, 621
(1983) (citations omitted).
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or an opposition to a motion which is obviously frivolous, unnecessary or unwarranted” or “[s]o
multiplies the proceedings in a case as to increase costs unreasonably and vexatiously.””
Moreover, in the Agreement to Arbitrate Chan explicitly agreed that “In the event I do

not comply with the award and it is necessary for any party to obtain judicial confirmation and

enforcement of the award against me, I agree to pay that party costs and reasonable

attorney’s fees incurred obtaining such confirmation and enforcement.”’°

“[T]n determining the amount of fees to award, the court is not limited to one specific
approach; its analysis may begin with any method rationally designed to calculate a reasonable

amount . . . .””7 Nevada courts have long relied upon the factors in Brunzell v. Golden Gate Nat'l

Bank to determine reasonability of fees, including:

(1) the qualities of the advocate: his ability, his training, education, experience,
professional standing and skill; (2) the character of the work to be done: its difficulty, its
intricacy, its importance, time and skill required, the responsibility imposed and the
prominence and character of the parties where they affect the importance of the litigation;
(3) the work actually performed by the lawyer: the skill, time and attention given to the
work; (4) the result: whether the attorney was successful and what benefits were derived. 8

Any attorney fee award must be based on a Brunzell analysis.

A. Brunzell Factor #1: “the qualities of the advocate: his ability, his training,
education, experience, professional standing and skill””®

Counsel for Petitioner, Michael A. Olsen, Esq. is a founding partner of his firm and has
been a member of the State Bar of Nevada for over twenty years. He is a graduate of Utah State
University and BYU’s J. Reuben Clark Law School. His abilities as an advocate have been
recognized through numerous awards and honors, and Mr. Olsen’s abilities have been honed
through, among other experience, regular appearances in the Eighth Judicial District Court on

contested matters.

75 EDCR 7.60(b)(1), (3).

76 Exhibit “Q”, P0001, 9 5 (emphasis added).

7 Shuette v. Beazer Homes Holding Corp., 121 Nev. 837, 864, 124 P.3d 530 (2005).
78 Brunzell v. Golden Gate Nat'l Bank, 85 Nev. 345, 349, 455 P.2d 31, 33 (1969).

7 Brunzell, 85 Nev. at 349.

Page 25 of 28

3 Appx 000489




(GOODSELL & OLSEN

*

ATTORNEYS AT LLAW
10155 W. TWAIN AVE. STE. 100, LAS VEGAS, NV 89147

(702) 869-6261 TEL - (702) 869-8243 FAX

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Roman C. Harper, Esq. is a graduate of the University of North Carolina and BYU’s J.
Reuben Clark Law School.

B. Brunzell Factor #2: “the character of the work to be done: its difficulty, its
intricacy, its importance, time and skill required, the responsibility imposed and the
prominence and character of the parties where they affect the importance of the
litigation”8?

This matter has involved unnecessary briefing and research, motion practice before this
Court before Chan made any attempt to arbitrate this matter, followed by refusal by Chan to
comply with the Award. Chan completely disregarded the requirement of seeking procedural
review of the Award before the GLVAR, and now seeks to prolong this matter further by
continuing litigation before this Court without any legal basis to do so.

The time expended to oppose the current motion to vacate and litigate before this court at
all would not have been required had Chan followed her ethical duty to arbitrate and complied
with GLVAR procedures subsequent to the Award. Yet Chan has demonstrated absolute resolve
in making these proceedings as expensive and harmful to the Defendants as she possibly can. 8!
Individuals with a right to a commission like Wu should not be forced to incur legal fees and
costs that far exceed the commission to protect their right to the same. Nor should Chan be
permitted to use the judiciary as an indiscriminate weapon against anyone who dare contradict

her.

C. Brunzell Factor #3: “the work actually performed by the lawyer: the skill,
time and attention given to the work”%?

Chan’s attempt to obtain funds to which she is not entitled and litigate against Defendants
has required investment of a substantial amount of time and effort to prepare and provide a

proper defense, including against motion practice unwarranted under the GLVAR ethical rules

80 Brunzell, 85 Nev. at 349.
81 Exhibit “I” (“So happen i do have few hundred thousand in hand that i can use. If they are
willing to go along with me to spend equal amount of money, then I will be very happy to play

their game.”).
82 Brunzell, 85 Nev. at 349.
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binding on Chan. Now, Plaintiff seeks to set aside the arbitration Award because it ruled against
her. Defendants’ counsel have been required to invest numerous hours in defending against the
improper attempts to use this Court to deprive Wu of funds that should be properly distributed to
him.

D. Brunzell Factor #4: “the result: whether the attorney was successful and
what benefits were derived”?

Defendants have already been successful in demonstrating to the GLVAR that they were
entitled to the majority of the funds at issue in this matter. Specifically, $10,346.49 of
$13,795.32 was awarded to Wu. Defendants also prevailed previously in demonstrating that
arbitration was required and that Chan had failed to proceed with arbitration instead of filing the
complaint that initiated this action. Chan specifically acknowledged in the Agreement to
Arbitrate that fees and costs incurred to enforce the Award against her would be payable by her.

While “good judgment would dictate that each of these factors be given consideration by

»84 each

the trier of fact and that no one element should predominate or be given undue weight,
factor strongly supports an award of attorneys’ fees and costs in favor of Defendants. Thus,
Defendants request an award of attorney fees and costs pursuant to EDCR 7.60(b) and the

Agreement to Arbitrate.

CONCLUSION

This Court should deny Chan’s Motion to Vacate, confirm the Award, and enter
summary judgment in this matter. The Award properly disposed of the underlying issues in this
matter in accordance with the Arbitration Manual and the Agreement to Arbitrate submitted by
Chan to the GLVAR. Chan has done nothing to demonstrate that any statutory or common law
grounds exist, let alone by clear and convincing evidence, to justify vacating the Award. To the

extent any modification to the Award is warranted, it should be modified to award the entire

8 Brunzell, 85 Nev. at 349.
8 Brunzell, 85 Nev. at 349—50.
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$13,795.32 to Wu as he was the procuring cause of the underlying real estate transaction.
Finally, Chan should be ordered to pay the fees, unnecessarily caused by her, which she also

agreed to pay by way of the Agreement to Arbitrate.

WHEREFORE, Defendants request the following relief:

1. That this Court deny Plaintiff’s Motion to Vacate or Modify Arbitration
Award;

2. That this Court enter an Order Granting Summary Judgment;

3. That this Court award Defendants the fees and costs they have been forced

to incur by Chan; and

4. For such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper.

DATED this 6th day of AUGUST 2018.

/s/ Roman C. Harper, Esq.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 6076

ROMAN C. HARPER, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 14374

GOODSELL & OLSEN, LLP

10155 W. Twain Ave., Suite 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89147

Attorneys for Defendants/Counterclaimants
Wayne Wu, Judith Sullivan, Nevada Real Estate
Corp. and Jerrin Chiu
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Beity Chan <aalender@gmail.com>

Lookihg for new house!

Jerrin Chiu <jchiuey@gmail.com> Mon, Nov 2, 2015 at 3:07 PM
To: Betty Chan <aalender@gmail.com>

Helio Betty,

How have you been? Hope all is well. So | am going to be looking for a new hause! 1 think you spoke with my dad last
month. So they are coming tc visit again at the end of this year. We were hoping that you can show us some houses
around new years time? We are free Dec 30 moming/aftemoon, and all day Dec 31 and Jan 1st. | know that is holidays
So you may be busy with family. But If you are free, maybe you can show us some houses? | will be laoking for around
$250-$400k house around boca park, preferably 5 miles within my work. Thanks Betty! Hope to talk to you soon.

Jerrin

-

- \5@
7
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Betty Chan <aalender@gmail.com>

Looking for new holusel

Betty Chan <aalender@gmail.com> Mon, Nov 2, 2015 at 4:28 PM
To: Jerrin Chiu <jchiuey @gmail.com>

Sure. Thank you for using my service again.
Betty
[Quoted text hidden]

L

A
\/\)\
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AFFIDAVIT OF JERRIN CHIU

State of A/J;Vﬂ&/ﬂ )
) ss:

County of C’,/al’k_, )

JERRIN CHIU, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that I am over the age of 18

years, have personal knowledge of and am competent to testify to the following facts.

1. [ have never been convicted of a felony.

2. [ currently live at 477 Cabrial Peak, Las Vegas, Nevada 89138.

3. I have personal knowledge of the facts stated in the Opposition to Motion to Stay
Pending Arbitration and Countermotion to Dismiss with Prejudice or in the Alternative for
Summary Judgment and believe them to be accurate.

4. [ emailed Betty Chan on November 2, 2015 requesting her assistance in looking
for real estate.

5. On December 30, 2015, Betty Chan picked up my parents and me and showed us
three previously-owned homes and three model homes at the Tevare KB Home Development in
Summerlin.

6. [ felt pressured to purchase Betty Chan’s preferred selection of Lot 37 and the
Model 3 floorplan. I did not like that option and declined moving forward with the purchase of a
home, or even making an offer on that date.

7. Initially, I lacked interest in the KB Home Development options because the
Development was located outside of the parameters [ gave to Betty Chan previously.

8. Despite being uncertain about buying a KB home, I submitted a refundable
$10,000.00 deposit to KB Home on December 31, 2015 because I was informed that I would

face a $3,000.00 price increase on the lots if I did not submit the deposit before the New Year. 1

Page 1 of 3
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would not have made the deposit but for being informed that it was refundable for 14 days if [
decided not to move forward with purchasing a home. Betty Chan was not taking our calls and
did not represent me in making the deposit with KB Homes on December 31, 2015.

9. My father, Kwang Chiu, called Betty Chan the morning of December 31, 2015
seeking further assistance from her. She did not respond to the call.

10. My father called Betty Chan several times and left a voice message on January 2,
2016. Again, Chan did not answer the January 2, 2016 calls.

11. My father called Betty Chan on January 3, 2016 and left a voice message. Betty
Chan did not answer.

12. I was frustrated with Betty Chan because she did not answer several phone calls
and voice messages from my father despite knowing that my parents were leaving town and time
was of the essence. It was due to her non-responsiveness that my parents and I determined to
seek assistance from another agent.

13. After calling a couple of other possible agents, my father recommended Wayne
Wau as a replacement real estate agent and called Wayne on my behalf.

14. I met with Wayne Wu on January 7, 2016 at the KB Home Development and
Wayne convinced me to purchase Lot 43 with the Model 2 floorplan.

/1

"

11

/!
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15. In addition to being the agent that actually presented me with a home/lot

combination that I was comfortable with, Mr. Wu was the only agent that actually performed any

work on negotiating a purchase contract, opening escrow and ultimately closing the purchase.

FURTHER YOUR AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

DATED this % day of FEBRUARY 2017.

SIGNED AND SWORN to before me
this day of FEBRUARY 2017.

{
" /A 'l A LR —
OTARY PUBLIT
County and State.

AR

HRERCCHIU

ARIANE SHUMWAY
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF NEVADA
9, APPT. No. 16-4048-1
MY APPT. EXPIRES OCTOBER 11, 2020

Page 3 of 3
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2212017 KB homes anyone? (to buy, living in, homeowner) - Las Vegas - Nevada (NV) - City-Data Forum

City-Data Forum > U.S. Forums > Nevada > Las Vegas User Name User Name
KB homes anyone? (to buy, living in, homeowner)

| Remember Me

ogin | tRegister]

Password

Please register to participate in our discussions with 2 million other members - it's free and quick! Some forums can only be seen by registered
members. After you create your account, you'll be able to customize options and access all our 15,000 new posts/day with fewer ads.

View detailed profile (Advanced) or search
site with

Search Forums (advanced)

o

§City, County or Zip Code H

Similar Threa

44 posts, read 28,609 times . » Anyone rentit
Reputation: 17 : homes" to ve

Advertisements

= Does anyone
Homes/First 1

. N . . . See also detai
Had a previous post about living in Tevare/Paseo village but didn't have many replies. I guess my follow up question is the home I

am looking for is made by KB homes which have gotten many bad reviews in the previous years. Can anyone give any insight
whether they are okay to buy now? or should I still stay clear from them? Thanks.

&% Rate this post positively

. ' ' ’ Location: Orange County Recently visit
jet757f 978 posts, read 1,283,645 bmes
Rep fon: 766

+ Las Vegas

1 bought a new one in Ca and thought it was fine. No problems,

€% Rate this post positively

| Recent article

3,475 posts, read 3,532,424 times i .
Everdeen Rapotation: 4531 ’ - » The National
: Feb 2
Knock on the doors of the other homeowners in the development and ask them.@g « Innovation in
2% Rate this post positively * Top furniture

« Men exercise

« Fed Palicy an¢

1,495 posts, read 1,758,070 dmes ‘
ye||OWbEI|e = Repu}tét;c;n: 3509 v '

One of the reasons you may not have received many replies is because per the TOS:

Quote:

‘ This is not the right place for consumer complaints. Such posts present defamation issues and they don't give the other side
the opportunity to present their side of the argument,

If anyone would like to chime in, please do so via direct message.

My posts as a Moderator are in RED.

Helpful links: FAQ ~ Forum Rules ~ TOS ~ Infractions and Thread Deletion FAQs
Full Mod List

~ If you're not kind on the internet, then you're not kind. ~

&4 Rate this post positively

Please register to post and access all features of our very popular forum. It is free and quick. Over $68,000 in prizes has already
been given out to active posters on our forum. Additional giveaways are planned.

Detailed information about all U.S. cities, counties, and zip codes on our site: City-data.com.
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Betty Chan <aaroffer@gmail.com>

Summerlin KB home purchase

Betty Chan <aaroffer@gmail.com> Wed, Jan 27, 2016 at 9:26 AM
To: Jerrin Chiu <Jdchiuey@gmail.com>

Cc: simpo43@gmail.com

Bece: jmeneff@kbhome.com, cmenair@kbhome.com

Dear Jerrin,

I still want to give you one last chance to fix your wrongdoings before | take you to court. Do not think | am bluffing, your
Dad has always said he likes my honesty.

I want you to take a step back and think about what you have been doing. .

To say | will not respond to your phone calls and emails are jokes of the century. Two years ago, if | could answer every
one of your Dad’ 35 phone calls a day, and | still have proof for that, do you think the jury will believe you cannot find
me or | do not respond after spending so much time to find you a house and before you put a deposit down? If you said
after you put your deposit down, then i disappear will be more convincing

1 talked to your Dad on the day he left, he asked me if | could kick back 1% because other agent did, 1 told him | never
kicked back because | think | make my clients money more than 1%, it was a provan record in your case.

However | do not want him to be unhappy as he had been regularly checking on me when | was very sick, so | agreed to
do a 1/2 % and if | did the loan, then 1 will agree to give 3/4%, and he said OK. So there is nothing like what you
accused that | did not communicate. So your agent created that allegation will not work. 1 still have your Dad's
messages and log on my phone, | fallowed up with you twice following the showings. Actually it was you that did not
respond. | texted you again after and we did talk.All on records. So there was o loss of contact since | shaw you the
house on 30th Dec. 1 will safekeep all this evidence for the Court.

I bet you the other Realtor did not tell you the consequence before you signed the contract. He put you in a very messy
situation just to make the commission, so he made you an unethical person, Further he taught you how to lie with all
those untrue accusation so now he makes you even worse, a LIAR. What does he has to lose, you become the target
of the lawsuit, and he just stands on the side folding his arms possibly enjoying his dreamn of his commission come true.

Can you see who that agent really is?! or is that you who really are?

If you lose in the lawsuit, and | promise you that you will. It was straight forward and simple, KB home only pays to the
agent that first brought in the client and that is me. Your unhappiness or your unsatisfaction of your agent has no effects
on their policy. Dont forget if you lost the case, you will have to pay my attomey feses too.

Once lawsuit starts then it will become a public record. Everyone knows that you are an unethical person and a liar and
ask for kickback, | honestly do not believe there will not be even a slightly effect on your professional image or career.

So who or what will you protect, your $3000 or more kickback, or your agent commission or your reputation? NOMNE of
them! ‘

If that was still your decision to move forward, | will not feel bad to play along, what do | have to lose? .

Afteralt buying a house should be happy and not miserabie and you do not want to carry that lawsuit nighmare for the
rest of your time living In that house,

This is not yet the end of It and ! do take this personally because | really do not want to take you to court. | do not
believe it is your decision to use another Realtor .| do not believe you are a person that you will lie fo make up story so
that you can get a kickback That is why [ write this email one last time. This is my last piece of advice to make you
money by saving you unnecessary attomey fees, time and reputation. | never have pointed you to a wrong direction. So
think and choosa wisely before it is too latel

A

3 Appx 000535

1 still encourgage you to talk to KB and let them handie rather than you all by yourselfi! If not, the next thing you hear
from me will be Summary of Complaint. You break my heart to have to take you to court!
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PECCOLE PROFESSIONAL PARK JEFFREY R. HALL

10080 WEST ALTA DRIVE, SUITE 200 PARTNER

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89145 JHALL@HUTCHLEGAL.COM
702.385.2500

FAX 702.385.2086 FILENO. 6495-001
HUTCHLEGAL.COM

March 24, 2016

First American Title

Karen Patton

8311 W. Sunset Road, #150
Las Vegas, NV 89113
kapatton stam.com

Re;: ESCROW NO. 112-249-8656

This firm represents Betty Chan with respect to the payment of a commission from the
sale of the property located at 477 Cabral Peak Street, Las Vegas, Nevada 89138. Ms. Chan was
the procuring cause of the sale of the home to Jerrin Chiu. She showed the property to Mr. Chiu
on December 31, 2015. Mr. Chiu signed a broker registration identifying Ms. Chan as his agent
on the same day. Subsequently, Mr. Chiu used a different broker, Wayne W, to close the
transaction despite Ms. Chan showing Mr. Chiu the property. Ms. Chan disputes any
commission payment to Mr. Wu since she was the procuring cause of the sale on the buyer’s side
of the transaction.

As you are aware, the broker who is the procuring cause of the sale is entitled to the
commission for the sale. See Schneider v. Biglieri, 94 Nev. 426, 427, 581 P.2d 8, 9 (1978);
Bartsas Realty, Inc. v. Leverton, 82 Nev. 6, 409 P.2d 627 (1966). The broker's presence at the
sale is not required for that broker to earn his or her commission. See Hortonv. Colbron, 60
Wyo. 263, 150 P.2d 315, 319 (1944). Ms. Chan became the procuring cause of the sale when
she showed the property to Mr. Chiu as Mr. Chiu’s broker.

By this correspondence, you have been made aware of Ms. Chan’s claim to the buyer’s
commission from the sale of at 477 Cabral Peak Street, Las Vegas, Nevada 89138 to Mr. Chiu.
In the event that buyer’s commission’s paid to anyone other than Ms. Chan as 2 result of this
transaction, we will pursue the recovery of that commission from the payee. Ms. Chan reserves
all rights against any party that pays or receives a buyer’s commission for this transaction to
anyone other than her.

LAS VEGAS RENO SALT LAKE CiTY PHQENIX
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First American Title
Karen Patton
Page 2

Please contact me if you have any questions regarding this matter.

ce: Wayne Wu
Anthony C. Gordon
Jerrin Chiu
Betty Chan

Sincerely yours,

HUT & STEFFEN

Jeffiey R. Hall
For the Firm
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6/29/2016 Gnail ~ {no subject)

Betty Chan <aaroffer@gmail.corm>

(no subject)

7025251268@mms. att.net <7025951268@mms.att.net> Fri, Feb 5, 2016 at 6:01 PM
To: aaroffer@gmail.com

Honastly from day one i met you my focus is not on the commission, i felt insulted and humiliated, another
agent dared challenge me and he really do not know who | am. | have been really sad more than i am angry.
Last night i read many court cases. Even though my card was disappeared, it wont hurt me winning. | liked to
teach them a lesson. Life is not about money. So happen i do havwe few hundred thousand in hand that i can
use. lf they are willing to go along with me to spend equal amount of money, then | will be very happy to play
their game. 1 got my direction last nite, so { felt peaceful now. All i need KB to understand | dont hate KB for
this, and i need them to worl¢ with me on my plan. Jana, i dont blame you either and take care of yourself.

hilps#imaiil.g cogle.comvimailiui tui=28ike=2efdbebabbiMew=pt&g =jenadqs=truedsearch=querybmsg= 152644fa333a34058s it = 152b44{a333a3405 \9\ n
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From: Laura Myers

To: Roman Harper
Subject: FW: Betty Chan/Wayne Wu (Escrow No. 112-249-8656)
Date: Wednesday, July 19, 2017 12:57:40 PM

Laura Myers
Paralegal to
Michael A. Olsen, Esq.

(GOODSELL & OLSEN

— i —

ATTORNEYS AT LAw

10155 W. Twain Ave., Suite 100
Las Vegas, NV 89147

Tel: (702) 869-6261

Fax: (702) 869-8243

Email: laura@goodsellolsen.com

From: Jeffrey Hall [mailto:JHall@hutchlegal.com]

Sent: Tuesday, June 28, 2016 4:14 PM

To: Mike Olsen <Mike@goodsellolsen.com>; Laura Myers <Laura@goodsellolsen.com>
Cc: Patton, Karen L. <KaPatton@firstam.com>

Subject: RE: Betty Chan/Wayne Wu (Escrow No. 112-249-8656)

Mr. Olsen, | no longer represent Betty Chan in this matter. You may contact her directly
regarding this matter at the following email address.

Betty Chan 702aar@gmail.com

From: Mike Olsen [mailto:Mike@goodsellolsen.com]
Sent: Wednesday, June 22, 2016 10:02 AM

To: Jeffrey Hall <JHall@hutchlegal.com>; Laura Myers <Laura@goodsellolsen.com>
Subject: RE: Betty Chan/Wayne Wu (Escrow No. 112-249-8656)

Mr. Hall:

| have to say | am more than a little disappointed that you would represent to the title company that
your client has a document proving that she was the agent of record on the above referenced
transaction when, in fact, you have never seen such a document. Since Mr. Wu was the agent that
procured the actual sale of the property we are in the process of pursuing the commission rightfully
due to him. In the event your client finds the alleged missing document, feel free to send it to us.
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Thanks

Michael A. Olsen, Esq.

GOODSELL & OLSEN
*

ATTORNETS AT LAWw

10155 W. Twain Ave., Suite 100
Las Vegas, NV 89147

Tel: (702) 869-6261

Fax: (702) 869-8243

Email: mike@goodsellolsen.com

This message and any file(s) or attachment(s) transmitted herewith are confidential, intended for the named
recipient only, and may contain information that is a trade secret, proprietary, protected by attorney work
product doctrine, subject to attorney-client privilege, or is otherwise protected against unauthorized use or
disclosure. This message and any file(s) or attachment(s) transmitted herewith are based on a reasonable
expectation of privacy consistent with ABA Formal Opinion No. 99-413. Any disclosure, distribution,
copying, or use of this information by anyone other than the intended recipient, regardless of address or
routing, is strictly prohibited. If you receive this message in error, please advise the sender by immediate
reply and delete the original message. Thank you. Goodsell & Olsen — Attorneys at law

From: Jeffrey Hall [mailto:JHall@hutchlegal.com]
Sent: Tuesday, June 21, 2016 6:03 PM

To: Laura Myers
Cc: Mike Olsen
Subject: RE: Betty Chan/Wayne Wu (Escrow No. 112-249-8656)

| asked my client for the document referred to. She’s been out of town and advised that
she’d need a week to get back and go through her files.

From: Laura Myers [mailto:laura@goodsellolsen.com]
Sent: Tuesday, June 21, 2016 5:07 PM

To: Jeffrey Hall <JHall@hutchlegal.com>
Cc: Mike Olsen <Mike@goodsellolsen.com>
Subject: RE: Betty Chan/Wayne Wu (Escrow No. 112-249-8656)

Mr. Hall,
I am following up on our request below. Please advise. Thanks.
Laura Myers

Paralegal to
Michael A. Olsen, Esq.
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(GOODSELL & OLSEN

— i T—

ATTORNETS AT LAwW

10155 W. Twain Ave., Suite 100
Las Vegas, NV 89147

Tel: (702) 869-6261

Fax: (702) 869-8243

Email: laura@goodsellolsen.com

From: Laura Myers

Sent: Friday, June 17, 2016 9:25 AM

To: 'JHall@hutchlegal.com' <JHall@hutchlegal.com>

Cc: Mike Olsen <Mike@goodsellolsen.com>

Subject: Betty Chan/Wayne Wu (Escrow No. 112-249-8656)

Mr. Hall,

Our firm has been retained by Wayne Wu in connection with the above referenced matter and we
have reviewed your March 24, 2016 correspondence to First American Title.

Would you mind providing us with the broker registration signed by Jerrin Chiu that you reference in
your correspondence? Thanks.

Laura Myers
Paralegal to
Michael A. Olsen, Esq.

(GOODSELL & OLSEN

— i —

ATTORNETS AT LAWw

10155 W. Twain Ave., Suite 100
Las Vegas, NV 89147

Tel: (702) 869-6261

Fax: (702) 869-8243

Email: Jaura@goodsellolsen.com

Jeffrey Hall
Partner

HUTCHISON & STEFFEN, LLC
(702) 385-2500

hutchlegal.com
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http://www.hutchlegal.com/

Notice of Confidentiality: The information transmitted is intended only for the person or entity to whom it is
addressed and may contain confidential and/or privileged material. Any review, retransmission, dissemination or
other use of, or taking any action in reliance upon, this information by anyone other than the intended recipient is
not authorized.

Jeffrey Hall
Partner

'.Ep

HUTCHISON & STEFFEN, LLC
(702) 385-2500

hutchlegal.com
Notice of Confidentiality: The information transmitted is intended only for the person or entity to whom it is
addressed and may contain confidential and/or privileged material. Any review, retransmission, dissemination or

other use of, or taking any action in reliance upon, this information by anyone other than the intended recipient is
not authorized.
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From: Laura Myers

To: Roman Harper
Subject: FW: Betty Chan/Wayne Wu (Escrow No. 112-249-8656)
Date: Wednesday, July 19, 2017 12:58:25 PM

Laura Myers
Paralegal to
Michael A. Olsen, Esq.

GOODSELL & OLSEN
*

ATTORNEYS AT LAw

10155 W. Twain Ave,, Suite 100
Las Vegas, NV 89147

Tel: (702) 869-6261

Fax: (702) 869-8243

Email: laura@goodsellolsen.com

From: Betty Chan [mailto:702aar@gmail.com]

Sent: Wednesday, June 29, 2016 12:21 PM

To: Laura Myers <Laura@goodsellolsen.com>

Subject: Re: Betty Chan/Wayne Wu (Escrow No. 112-249-8656)

Dear Laura,
Thank you for your notice.

| have retained Attorney Avece Higbee of Marquis Aurbach Coffing to reperesent me in this
litigation. Sheis currently out of town and will be back end of week.

She will be in contact with your firm once she settles down and get familiar with this
litigation.

Thank you
Betty Chan, CCIM, CPM, CRS

Broker
Asian American Realty & Property Management

On Wed, Jun 29, 2016 at 9:41 AM, Laura Myers <L aura@goodsellolsen.com> wrote:

Ms. Chan,

Our firm has been retained by Wayne Wu in connection with the above referenced matter
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and we have reviewed the March 24, 2016 correspondence that Jeffrey Hall, Esg. sent on
your behalf to First American Title.

Mr. Hall has advised us that he no longer respresents you in this matter and that we may

contact you directly. Would you mind providing us with the broker registration signed by
Jerrin Chiu that is referenced in Mr. Hall's correspondence? Thanks.

Laura Myers
Paralegal to
Michael A. Olsen, Esg.

(GOODSELL & OLSEN

— i T—

ATTORNEYS AT LAw

10155 W. Twain Ave., Suite 100
Las Vegas, NV 89147

Tel: (702) 869-6261

Fax: (702) 869-8243

Email: [aura@goodsellolsen.com

Betty Chan CCIM, CPM, CRS

Broker

Asian American Realty & Property Management
Office 702 222 0078

Fax 702 222 1772

"The Happiest Realtor in Las Vegas'
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10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
(702) 382-0711 FAX: (702) 382-5816

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING
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Electronically Filed

09/27/2016 04:46:09 PM

Marquis Aurbach Coffing

Avece M. Higbee, Esq. % t. %\M\»—'
Nevada Bar No. 3739

10001 Park Run Drive CLERK OF THE COURT

Las Vegas, Nevada 89145

Telephone: (702) 382-0711

Facsimile: (702) 382-5816

ahigbee(@maclaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

BETTY CHAN and ASIAN AMERICAN
REALTY & PROPERTY MANAGEMENT, A- 16- 744109- C
Case No.:

Plaintiff, Dept. No.:  X] |

VS.

WAYNE WU, JUDITH SULLIVAN, NEVADA | COMPLAINT

REAL ESTATE CORP., JERRIN CHIU, KB EXEMPT FROM ARBITRATION:
HOME SALES — NEVADA INC., DOES I REQUESTS INJUCTIVE RELIEF
through X, and ROES I through X,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT

Plaintiffs, Betty Chan and Asian American Realty and Property Management
(“Plaintiffs”) by and through the law firm of Marquis Aurbach Coffing, hereby allege and
complain against Defendants Wayne Wu, Judith Sullivan, Nevada Real Estate Corp. and Jerrin
Chiu (“Defendants’) as follows:

JURISDICTIONAL ALLEGATIONS

1. Plaintiff Betty Chan is a resident of the State of Nevada is and was doing business
as a licensed real estate broker for her company Asian American Realty & Property
Management.

2. Defendant Wayne Wu is a resident of the State of Nevada, is and was doing
business in the County of Clark as a real estate agent with Nevada Real Estate Corp.

3. Defendant Judith Sullivan is a resident of the state of Nevada and is the licensed

real estate broker for Nevada Real Estate Corp.

Page 1 of 8
MAC:14501-001 2873836_6
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Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
(702) 382-0711 FAX: (702) 382-5816

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING
10001 Park Run Drive
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4. Defendant Jerrin Chiu is a resident in the State of Nevada and does business in
Clark County as a licensed Optometrist.

5. Defendant KB Home Sales — Nevada Inc. (KB Homes™), is and was at all times
mentioned herein, conducting business in Clark County, Nevada.

0. The true names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, associate, or
otherwise of the Defendants named herein as DOES I through X, inclusive, and ROE
CORPORATIONS I through X, inclusive, are unknown to Plaintiff at this time, and therefore
Plaintiff sues said Defendants by fictitious names and will ask leave of the Court to amend this
Complaint to show the true names and capacities of Defendants when the same are ascertained.

7. The transactions which are the subject matter of the instant Complaint occurred in
Clark County, Nevada, and therefore, jurisdiction and venue are appropriate with this Court.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

8. Plaintiff Chan worked as the real estate agent for Defendant Jerrin Chiu on the
purchase of his first home in 2013.

9. In 2014, Defendant Jerrin Chiu again requested the assistance of Plaintiff Chan in
purchasing a second home.

10. In 2014, Plaintiff Chan showed some homes to Defendant Chiu but he did not
find anything he wanted to purchase.

11. In March 2015, Plaintiff Chan showed houses again and Defendant Jerrin Chiu
made an offer on a home in Desert Shores; Defendant Jerrin Chiu determined again not to
purchase the home.

12. On or about October 2, 2015, Dr. Kwang Chiu contacted Plaintiff Chan to make
an appointment for him and his son, Jerrin Chiu, to see homes in December 2015.

13.  Plaintiff Chan agreed to represent Defendant Chiu as the buyer.

14. Plaintiff Chan requested updated financial information for Defendant Chiu’s loan
pre-approval.

15. On or about November 11, 2015, Defendant Chiu emailed Plaintiff Chan

regarding his intention to purchase a house and listed out the criteria.

Page 2 of 8
MAC:14501-001 2873836_6

3 Appx 000551




Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
(702) 382-0711 FAX: (702) 382-5816

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING
10001 Park Run Drive

N

o R e & Y

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

16. On or about November 28, 2015, Defendant Chiu emailed Plaintiff Chan
concerning the location of a particular house he wanted to see.

17.  On or about November 29, 2015, Plaintiff Chan responded concerning the
viewing of the particular house.

18.  On or about December 29, 2015, Plaintiff Chan prepared for the showing of
homes to the Chiu family by pulling listings around Boca Park area.

19.  Five resale homes were targeted to fit Defendant Chiu’s criteria and Plaintiff
Chan contacted the listing agents for the resales to set appointments.

20.  Plaintiff Chan included the model homes in both a Toll Brothers development and
a KB Home development previously viewed by Plaintiff Chan.

21.  Plaintiff Chan checked the status of the listings, printed the information and
arranged a route for the efficient showing of the properties.

22.  On or about December 30, 2015, Plaintiff Chan picked up the Chiu family and
showed the resale homes, the Toll Brother models and the KB Homes models.

23. KB Homes offered to compensate brokers for bringing buyers to KB Home
Developments at Buyer’s first visit,

24. At the front office of KB Homes, Plaintiff Chan spoke to Cheryl and picked up a
price sheet.

25.  Plaintiff Chan then showed the model homes to the Chiu family and Defendant
Chiu liked the first and second model homes.

26.  Back at the KB Homes model home office, Plaintiff Chan requested a floor plan
and explained the buying process for a new home including the standards, elevations, prices,
location of the site, etc. to the Chiu family.

27.  Plaintiff Chan located a buyer registration card and Defendant Chiu filled in the
buyer portion and Plaintiff Chan filled in the realtor portion,

28. No KB Homes representative was to be found so Plaintiff Chan left the
registration card on the table in the KB Home front office to hurry to get the Chiu family to the

next appointment.
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29. Plaintiff Chan emailed Dr. Kwang Chiu the four resale listings that were viewed.

30, On or about December 31, 2015, Dr. Kwang Chiu called Plaintiff Chan and asked
if she could “kick back 1% of the commission” like the other agent offered him.

31. On or about January 5, 2016, Plaintiff Chan followed up with Defendant Chiu
about the KB Home properties.

32.  Defendant Chiu did not respond.

33, On or about January 15, 2016, Defendant Chiu admitted that he was using another
agent.

34, On or about January 22, 2016, Plaintiff Chan went to the KB Homes office and
learned that Defendant Chiu had indeed signed a contract on the property shown by Plaintiff
Chan with another agent on January 8, 2016.

35. On or about January 30, 2016, Plaintiff Chan went to the KB Homes office to
address the commission; both KB Homes representatives, Cheryl and Jana, stated that Defendant
Chiu told them Plaintiff Chan introduced him to KB Homes but that he determined to use
another agent.

36. On or about February 1, 2016, KB Homes Sales Manager, Lara McLaughlin,
contacted Plaintiff Chan on two occasions indicating she was looking into the commission
dispute.

37.  Plaintiff Chan made efforts to resolve the dispute concerning her involvement in
the transaction and the entitlement to the commission to no avail.

38.  On or about May 27, 2016, Defendant Chiu closed on the purchase of a home in
the KB Home community known as 477 Cabral Peak, Las Vegas, Nevada (“Property”).

39.  Upon information and belief, before paying a commission to an agent for the sale
of a KB home, KB Homes requires that that agent sign a registration upon the first visit with the
buyer to the property.

40.  Upon information and belief, Defendant Wayne Wu signed a registration card at

KB Homes knowing that Defendant Jerrin Chiu had first visited the Property with Plaintiff Chan.
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41.  Defendant Wayne Wu and Defendant Judith Sullivan on behalf of Defendant

Nevada Real Estate Corp claim to be entitled to the commission on the purchase and sale of the

Property.
42.  Upon information and belief, the commission is held with First American Title
Company.
43.  Plaintiffs were not paid any commission for the sale of the Property.
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(Declaratory Relief)

44,  Plaintiffs repeat and reallege the forgoing paragraphs as though fully stated
herein.

45. A genuine controversy exists in this matter.

46. Plaintiffs and Defendants Wu, Sullivan and Nevada Real Estate Corp. claim
adverse interests in the commission for the sale of the Property.

47.  Defendant Chiu sought the assistance of Defendant Wu due to Wu’s 1%
commission kickback effectively circumventing Plaintiff Chan from the transaction and from the
commission.

48. KB Homes offered the payment of a commission to brokers that brought buyers to
KB Home Developments to Buyers first visit.

49.  Plaintiff Chan brought Defendant Chiu to the KB Homes Development and
showed him the model homes to decide which floor plan to purchase.

50.  Defendant Chiu utilized another agent, Defendant Wayne Wu to write a contract
for the purchase of the Property located in the same KB Homes Development.

51.  Plaintiff Chan was the procuring cause of the sale of the Property but did not
receive the commission.

52.  Plaintiffs request a declaration from the Court that Plaintiffs are entitled to the
commission on the sale of the Property.

53. Plaintiffs request a declaration from the court that Defendants Wu, Sullivan and

Nevada Real Estate Corp. are not entitled to the commission on the sale of the Property.
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54.  Plaintiffs request a declaration from the court that Defendant KB Homes breached
its obligation to pay the commission to Plaintiffs.

55.  Plaintiffs request a declaration from the court that the commission be released
from the title company to Plaintiffs and any shortfall be paid by Defendants.

56. As a result of Defendants’ actions, Plaintiffs have been forced to retain the
services of an attorney to prosecute the instant action and therefore is entitled to reasonable

attorneys fees and costs.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

(Breach of Contract)

57.  Plaintiff Chan repeats, realleges, and incorporates each and every paragraph
contained above as though fully set forth herein.

58. KB Homes offered to compensate brokers for selling KB Homes to their buyers
upon their first visit.

59. Plaintiff Chan brought Defendant Chiu to the KB Homes community and showed
the model homes to Defendant Chiu to decide which floor plan to purchase.

60.  Plaintiff Chan and Defendant Chiu filled out a registration card providing their
information to KB Homes.

61.  Plaintiff Chan was the procuring cause of the sale of the Property to Defendant

Chiu.

62, Defendant purchased the Property which is located in the same KB Homes
community.

63. KB Homes failed to pay Plaintiffs the commission for the sale of the Property.

64. KB Homes breached its obligation to pay a commission to Plaintiffs.

63. As a result of KB Homes’ action, Plaintiff Chan has been damaged in excess of
$10,000.

66. It has been necessary for Plaintiff Chan to retain the services of an attorney and to

incur attorney’s fees and costs to prosecute this action, and therefore, Plaintiff is entitled to

reimbursement for those attorney’s fees and costs incurred herein.
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THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

(Unjust Enrichment)

67. Plaintiffs repeat, reallege, and incorporate each and every paragraph contained
above as though fully set forth herein.

68.  Plaintiff Chan was the procuring cause for the purchase of the Property by
Defendant Chiu.

69.  Defendant Wu interfered with the change of events set in motion by Plaintiff
Chan by offering to kickback 1% of the commission to Defendant Chiu.

70.  Defendant Chiu circumvented Plaintiff Chan’s ability to complete the transaction
when Defendant Chiu agreed to use Defendant Wu.

71.  Upon information and belief, Defendant Wu and Defendant Chiu made
misrepresentations to KB Homes concerning the initial showing of the Property.

.72. Plaintiff Chan did not receive a commission despite being the procuring cause of
the sale of the Property to Defendant Chiu.

73. Defendant Wu’s receipt of any commission would be unjust.

74. Plaintiff Chan is entitled to the payment of the commission.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for judgment against Defendants as follows:

1. For damages in excess of $10,000, plus interest.

2. For prejudgment and post judgment interest;

3. For a declaration that KB Homes breached the contract;

4, For a declaration that Plaintiffs are entitled to the commission on the sale of the
Property;
/1]
Iy
/1]
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5. For a declaration that Defendants Wu, Sullivan and Nevada Real Estate Corp. are
not entitled to the commission on the sale of the Property;

6. For attorney’s fees and costs; and

7. For any and other such relief as the Court deems just and proper.
Dated this ay of September, 2016.

Avege M. Higbﬁé, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 3739
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorneys for Plaintiff

Page 8 of 8
MAC:14501-001 2873836_6

3 Appx 000557




10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145

(702) 382-0711 FAX: (702) 382-5816

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

0 W

N 00 1 Oy

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Marquis Aurbach Coffing
Avece M. Higbee, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 3739
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 382-0711
Facsimile: (702) 382-5816
ahigbee@maclaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

BETTY CHAN and ASIAN AMERICAN

REALTY & PROPERTY MANAGEMENT,
Case No.:
Plaintiff, Dept. No.:

VS.

WAYNE WU, JUDITH SULLIVAN, NEVADA
REAL ESTATE CORP., JERRIN CHIU, KB
HOME SALES — NEVADA INC., DOES I
through X, and ROES I through X,

Defendants.

INITIAL APPEARANCE FEE DISCLOSURE

Pursuant to NRS Chapter 19, as amended by Senate Bill 106, filing fees are submitted for

parties appearing in the above-entitled action as indicated below:

2751 1 o o L S $270.00
Asian American Realty & Property Management.............ccoooviiiiiiiiiinicininnnennenn. $30.00
TOTAL REMITTIED ....cocoiiinniiiicisssniesssnrseessaresossorsnessssssssssnsasssssssasssssssssesnese $300.00
Dated this~ Z J ‘55‘ day of September, 2016.

MAR ACH COFFING

Avecq M. HigHee, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 3739
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorney for Plaintiff
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Electronically Filed

11/15/2016 11:05:38 AM
Marquis Aurbach Coffing

Avece M. Higbee, Esq. N
Nevada Bar No. 3739 % " M
10001 Park Run Drive '

Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 382-0711
Facsimile: (702) 382-5816

ahigbee@maclaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff

CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

BETTY CHAN and ASIAN AMERICAN
REALTY & PROPERTY MANAGEMENT,
Case No.: A-16-744109-C
Plaintiff, Dept. No.: X1I

VS.

WAYNE WU, JUDITH SULLIVAN, NEVADA | AMENDED COMPLAINT

REAL ESTATE CORP., JERRIN CHIU, KB | EXEMPT FROM ARBITRATION:
HOME SALES - NEVADA INC., DOES I REQUESTS DECLARATORY RELIEF
through X, and ROES I through X,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT

Plaintiffs, Betty Chan and Asian American Realty and Property Management
(“Plaintiffs”) by and through the law firm of Marquis Aurbach Coffing, hereby allege and
complain against Defendants Wayne Wu, Judith Sullivan, Nevada Real Estate Corp. and Jerrin
Chiu (“Defendants”) as follows:

JURISDICTIONAL ALLEGATIONS

1. Plaintiff Betty Chan is a resident of the State of Nevada is and was doing business
as a licensed real estate broker for her company Asian American Realty & Property
Management.

2. Defendant Wayne Wu is a resident of the State of Nevada, is and was doing
business in the County of Clark as a real estate agent with Nevada Real Estate Corp.

3. Defendant Judith Sullivan is a resident of the state of Nevada and is the licensed

real estate broker for Nevada Real Estate Corp.
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4. Defendant Jerrin Chiu is a resident in the State of Nevada and does business in
Clark County as a licensed Optometrist.

5. Defendant KB Home Sales — Nevada Inc. (“KB Homes™), is and was at all times
mentioned herein, conducting business in Clark County, Nevada.

6. The true names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, associate, or
otherwise of the Defendants named herein as DOES I through X, inclusive, and ROE
CORPORATIONS I through X, inclusive, are unknown to Plaintiff at this time, and therefore
Plaintiff sues said Defendants by fictitious names and will ask leave of the Court to amend this
Complaint to show the true names and capacities of Defendants when the same are ascertained.

7. The transactions which are the subject matter of the instant Complaint occurred in
Clark County, Nevada, and therefore, jurisdiction and venue are appropriate with this Court.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

8. Plaintiff Chan worked as the real estate agent for Defendant Jerrin Chiu on the
purchase of his first home in 2013.

9. - In 2014, Defendant Jérrin Chiu again requested the assistance of Plaintiff Chan in
purchasing a second home.

10. In 2014, Plaintiff Chan showed some homes to Defendant Chiu but he did not
find anything he wanted to purchase.

11. In March 2015, Plaintiff Chan showed houses again and Defendant Jerrin Chiu
made an offer on a home in Desert Shores; Defendant Jerrin Chiu determined again not to
purchase the home.

12. On or about October 2, 2015, Dr. Kwang Chiu contacted Plaintiff Chan to make
an appointment for him and his son, Jerrin Chiu, to see homes in December 2015.

13. Plaintiff Chan agreed to represent Defendant Chiu as the buyer.

14.  Plaintiff Chan requested updated financial information for Defendant Chiu’s loan
pre-approval.

15. On or about November 11, 2015, Defendant Chiu emailed Plaintiff Chan

regarding his intention to purchase a house and listed out the criteria.
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16. On or about November 28, 2015, Defendant Chiu emailed Plaintiff Chan
concerning the location of a particular house he wanted to see.

17. On or about November 29, 2015, Plaintiff Chan responded concerning the
viewing of the particular house.

18.  On or about December 29, 2015, Plaintiff Chan prepared for the showing of
homes to the Chiu family by pulling listings around Boca Park area.

19. Five resale homes were targeted to fit Defendant Chiw’s criteria and Plaintiff
Chan contacted the listing agents for the resales to set appointments.

20.  Plaintiff Chan included the model homes in both a Toll Brothers development and
a KB Home development previously viewed by Plaintiff Chan.

21.  Plaintiff Chan checked the status of the listings, printed the information and
arranged a route for the efficient showing of the properties.

22.  On or about December 30, 2015, Plaintiff Chan picked up the Chiu family and
showed the resale homes, the Toll Brother models and the KB Homes models.

23. KB Homes offered to compensate brokers for bringing buyers to KB Home
Developments at Buyer’s first visit.

24, At the front office of KB Homes, Plaintiff Chan spoke to Cheryl and picked up a
price sheet.

25. Plaintiff Chan then showed the model homes to the Chiu family and Defendant
Chiu liked the first and second model homes.

26. Back at the KB Homes model home office, Plaintiff Chan requested a floor plan
and explained the buying process for a new home including the standards, elevations, prices,
location of the site, etc. to the Chiu family.

27. Plaintiff Chan located a buyer registration card and Defendant Chiu filled in the
buyer portion and Plaintiff Chan filled in the realtor portion.

28. No KB Homes representative was to be found so Plaintiff Chan left the
registration card on the table in the KB Home front office to hurry to get the Chiu family to the

next appointment.
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29.  Plaintiff Chan emailed Dr. Kwang Chiu the four resale listings that were viewed.

30. On or about December 31, 2015, Dr. Kwang Chiu called Plaintiff Chan and asked
if she could “kick back 1% of the commission” like the other agent offered him.

31, On or about January 5, 2016, Plaintiff Chan followed up with Defendant Chiu
about the KB Home properties.

32.  Defendant Chiu did not respond.

33. On or about January 15, 2016, Defendant Chiu admitted that he was using another
agent.

34. On or about January 22, 2016, Plaintiff Chan went to the KB Homes office and
learned that Defendant Chiu had indeed signed a contract on the property shown by Plaintiff
Chan with another agent on January 8, 2016.

35. On or about January 30, 2016, Plaintiff Chan went to the KB Homes office to
address the commission; both KB Homes representatives, Cheryl and Jana, stated that Defendant
Chiu told them Plaintiff Chan introduced him to KB Homes but that he determined to use
another agent.

36. On or about February 1, 2016, KB Homes Sales Manager, Lara McLaughlin,
contacted Plaintiff Chan on two occasions indicating she was looking into the commission
dispute.

37.  Plaintiff Chan made efforts to resolve the dispute concerning her involvement in
the transaction and the entitlement to the commission to no avail.

38.  On or about May 27, 2016, Defendant Chiu closed on the purchase of a home in
the KB Home community known as 477 Cabral Peak, Las Vegas, Nevada (“Property™).

39. Upon information and belief, before paying a commission to an agent for the sale
of a KB home, KB Homes requires that that agent sign a registration upon the first visit with the
buyer to the property.

40.  Upon information and belief, Defendant Wayne Wu signed a registration card at

KB Homes knowing that Defendant Jerrin Chiu had first visited the Property with Plaintiff Chan.
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41.  Defendant Wayne Wu and Defendant Judith Sullivan on behalf of Defendant

Nevada Real Estate Corp claim to be entitled to the commission on the purchase and sale of the

Property.
42.  Upon information and belief, the commission is held with First American Title
Company.
43. Plaintiffs were not paid any commission for the sale of the Property.
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(Declaratory Relief)

44,  Plaintiffs repeat and reallege the forgoing paragraphs as though fully stated
herein.

45, A genuine controversy exists in this matter.

46. Plaintiffs and Defendants Wu, Sullivan and Nevada Real Estate Corp. claim
adverse interests in the commission for the sale of the Property.

47. Defendant Chiu sought the assistance of Defendant Wu due to Wu’s 1%
commission kickback effectively circumventing Plaintiff Chan from the transaction and from the
commission.

48. KB Homes offered the payment of a commission to brokers that brought buyers to
KB Home Developments to Buyers first visit.

49. Plaintiff Chan brought Defendant Chiu to the KB Homes Development and
showed him the model homes to decide which floor plan to purchase.

50.  Defendant Chiu utilized another agent, Defendant Wayne Wu to write a contract
for the purchase of the Property located in the same KB Homes Development.

51.  Plaintiff Chan was the procuring cause of the sale of the Property but did not
receive the commission.

52. Plaintiffs request a declaration from the Court that Plaintiffs are entitled to the
commission on the sale of the Property.

53. Plaintiffs request a declaration from the court that Defendants Wu, Sullivan and

Nevada Real Estate Corp. are not entitled to the commission on the sale of the Property.
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54. Plaintiffs request a declaration from the court that Defendant KB Homes breached
its obligation to pay the commission to Plaintiffs.

55.  Plaintiffs request a declaration from the court that the commission be released
from the title company to Plaintiffs and any shortfall be paid by Defendants.

56. As a result of Defendants’ actions, Plaintiffs have been forced to retain the
services of an attorney to proszcute the instant action and therefore is entitled to reasonable
attorneys fees and costs.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

(Breach of Contract)

57.  Plaintiff Chan repeats, realleges, and incorporates each and every paragraph
contained above as though fully set forth herein.

58. KB Homes offered to compensate brokers for selling KB Homes to their buyers
upon their first visit.

59. Plaintiff Chan brought Defendant Chiu to the KB Homes community and showed
the model homes to Defendant Chiu to decide which floor plan to purchase.

60.  Plaintiff Chan and Defendant Chiu filled out a registration card providing their
information to KB Homes.

61. Plaintiff Chan was the procuring cause of the sale of the Property to Defendant

Chiu.

62. Defendant purchased the Property which is located in the same KB Homes
community.

63. KB Homes failed to pay Plaintiffs the commission for the sale of the Property.

64. KB Homes breached its obligation to pay a commission to Plaintiffs.

65. As a result of KB Homes’ action, Plaintiff Chan has been damaged in excess of
$10,000.

66. It has been necessary for Plaintiff Chan to retain the services of an attorney and to

incur attorney’s fees and costs to prosecute this action, and therefore, Plaintiff is entitled to

reimbursement for those attorney’s fees and costs incurred herein.
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THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

(Unjust Enrichment)

67. Plaintiffs repeat, reallege, and incorporate each and every paragraph contained
above as though fully set forth herein.

68. Plaintiff Chan was the procuring cause for the purchase of the Property by
Defendant Chiu.

69. Defendant Wu interfered with the change of events set in motion by Plaintiff
Chan by offering to kickback 1% of the commission to Defendant Chiu.

70. Defendant Chiu circumvented Plaintiff Chan’s ability to complete the transaction
when Defendant Chiu agreed to use Defendant Wu.

71. Upon information and belief, Defendant Wu and Defendant Chiu made
misrepresentations to KB Homes concerning the initial showing of the Property.

72. Plaintiff Chan did not receive a commission despite being the procuring cause of

the sale of the Property to Defendant Chiu.

73. - Defendant Wu’s receipt of any commission would be unjust.
74.  Plaintiff Chan is entitled to the payment of the commission.
PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for judgment against Defendants as follows:

1. For damages in excess of $10,000, plus interest.

2. For prejudgment and post judgment interest;

3. For a declaration that KB Homes breached the contract;

4, For a declaration that Plaintiffs are entitled to the commission on the sale of the
Property;
/17
/17
i
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5. For a declaration that Defendants Wu, Sullivan and Nevada Real Estate Corp. are

not entitled to the commission on the sale of the Property;
6. For attorney’s fees and costs; and
7. For any and other such relief as the Court deems just and proper.

~yn
Dated this bday of November, 2016.

N

MARQL ISAURBACH COFFING

By >~ I

Avéce M. Higbee, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 3739
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorneys for Plaintiff
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- DUTIES OWED BY A NEVADA REAL ESTATE LICENSEE
This form does ntot constitule a contract for services nor an agreemént to pay conipeniation.
In Nevada, a real estate-licenscee is requiied to provide o form sefting forth the dutics owed by the licensee to:

a) Each party for whom the Heensee is acting as an.agout fivtlte real estate transaetion, and
b) I‘.uh unrepresented party to the real es{ate transaction, if any.

| Livensee: The licensee in the real estate trungaction iy . Batbty Cham et
whose. ficense number is 25444 . The licenses is acting for felient’s aami(s)) Jaxrin Ghiu

. whov is/ave the [ Soller/Landlord; [€] HuyerTenat,
Broker: 'The broker i » Betl:y’ Chisn ' » s Whose
company s . i i Aglan Rmariconn ggﬁg [ -

Licensee’s Duties Owid 10 All Partics:
A Nevada feal estate Heensee shall:
I. Notdoa! with any pdity 1o 4 vedl estate<ransaction in 4 mannet whmh is deceitful, fraydulent o dishﬁnLﬂ-
2. Exercige reasonuble skill ahd care with respect.to all partics &0 the real estate branyaction.
3. Disciose 1o each pasty to the rexl esinte transoation as-soon as pricifcable:
#. Auy maverial and relevant facts; data or information which Hoentsee knows, or with ressonable.eiré and dmusnu: b loensee
should know, whout the- propetty.
b, Each sowrce from which licensac will receive compensution.
4. Abide by -afl other dutles. responsibilities and dbligations required of she Jicensée'in.Jaw or regulations,

Licensee’s Dutics Owed to the Client:
A Nevada reat esiate lcgnsee shall:
I. Exercise reasanable skill and care to earry out the terms of the brokerage dreement and the licensee's dutics in the brokerage
agreetnent;
2. Mot disulose, exoept to. the leensee’s hrokér, confidential infonnation feliting . u clicnt for yeur after the evocatipiy or
tertnination of the brokirage agieeraent, ualess licendee Is required ro do 56 by cotirt order ox the client gives wtitten permission;
3. Scck asale, purchase, option, rentul or leuse of real propetty at the price and terms. stau:cl in me brokerage agreemeont orat a price
aceceptable Yo the clicnt;
+. Rresent all offers made to, or by the clieat ag soon-as praciicable, unless the client chiooses 1o waive the duty of the licensee o
present afl offers and signs n waiver of the duty on a form prescribed by the Division;
5. Disclose to the client materis! facts of which the licensee has knowledge cuncérming the. real tstaté transuction:
6. Advise the client 10 abtain advice from wn expert selating to myitters which are, beyand thie experiise of the licensees and
7. Account to the clieut for olf nfovey and property the Heensee réceives in whicl t}\c elisut may have an ipterest.

DutiesOwerd By & broker who assigns different licensees. '1[6‘ tiated with the beokérage to separate purties.

Each licensee shall notdisclase, excepy Lo the real estate broker, confidential informalion refating to-cligut,

Licensee Acting for Both Parties: You understand thar the Yicensee | e, MAY OF \( widy not, 1 dhie future dat
{"licts Inis) w0 A CHienr bt S

for two or nfore partied who have interests ddverse ta each other, (i dedng forthese pattiss, The licensee. hos a contlict of tnwrest. Before

u.lizensee may act for two ormore parties, the licenses must give you a *Cofisent to Act® fowrt o sign.

I'We acknowle;lgé receip{ of a copy of thix Tist of Hicengee dﬁﬁeﬁ,u and have vead and understand this disclosure,

W - .. OE/10/2015, i1 am_
Seller/Landlord Date Time “ BuyerTenant Dare Time:
Seller/Lundlord ' “Dare ST e ; ) Huyxrﬂ‘bnam. * Date " Time
Approved Nevads Real Esue Divisian Puge 1 of 1. 525
Replaces sil-previous versis ' Revised 10/2SK07T
This Porm prusentesd by Datty Chan | Asian RAsmerican Realty | 702-222-0078 | aar@aninnasarlicsnrealkby.con’ f#&,{}(‘\_f
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M Gm a“ Betty Chan <702aar@gmail.com>

3 properties we saw today

BETTY CHAN <emailnotification@intereaity.net> Wed, Dec 30, 2015 at 7:54 PM
Reply-To: BETTY CHAN <702aar@gmail.com>
To: BETTY CHAN <702aar@gmail.com>

This email was sent to:Jerrin Chiu <jchiuey@gmail.com>

Listings:1594880, 1594035, 1592526

Click here to view these listings If you are the email sender.

NOTE: The above link is spedifically for the email sender and helps prevent afteration of Client Gateway settings or listing hit counts. Links contained
In the email message below are intended for the email recipient and track each time they are accessed. For your convenience, the link above wil
display the listings in your default Full View repart, regardless of which report(s) you emailed: Also, you will receive only a single copy of this email
even if you sent the listings to multiple clients, each of whom will receive a distinctly separate email.

Hi Jerry
Here are the 3 properties that you are interested.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

04-SFR Brochure (Medium) View

Mobile-Friendly Vi

Betty Chan, CCIM,CPM,CRS

Broker

Asian American Realty & Property Management
4651 Spring Mountain Road, LV, NV 89102
phone 702-222-0078

fax 702-222-1772

email 702aar@gmail.com

"The Happiest Realtor in Las Vegas”

fax 702-222-1772

P0051 3 Appx 000572 f g " A
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M Gma“ Betty Chan <aaroffer@gmail.com>

Summerlin KB home purchase

Betty Chan <aaroffer@gmail.com> Mon, Jan 25, 2016 at 8:08 AM
To: Jemin Chiu <Jchiuey@gmail.com>
Cc: simpo43@gmail.com, jmcneff@kbhome.com

Hello Jemin,

Further to our conversation last week, | simply could not believe you dare do such an unethical thing to me. A
professional doctor is expected to hold a higher standard of ethic and professionalism. You did go back and buy at
Tevare KB home that | show you and you signed the registration on site on December 30 2015, but using another Realtor
that you do not even know to write up the contract, simply because you want his kickback of 1% based on your Dad's
disrespect of your life. Guess what, now this has become such a big mess for you! It could have been a happy
celebration for the hard work that you have achieved, now it is going to tum into a big mess for your reputation and
possibly a court case for both you and the Realtor. Just think about the attomey fees, will 1% kickabck be enough to
cover??

Think about this for a second, when | first met you, | consider you as part of my team being my daughter's co-worker. |
admired you to be very independent of yourself and | would like to help young people like you to build up your wealth and
your credit. A year ago, Instead of going along with your intended purchase of the condo on Chareston area for 80K
which stay about the same price today, | offered you my expertise to make a different choice and using my skill to
negotiate a better than the list price to get you this townhouse that you live in. Today the value of your townhouse at
least has gone up 20K in only a little over one year. | also saved you at least 3000 on the loan fees. In other words,
using me as your Realtor, | already helped you build up at least 23K equity plus the possible future appreciation of this
KB home. Can you imagine what you have lost over a $3000 kickback from a Realtor who has nothing to prove but
discounting himseif! '

The rule of our real estate industry to determine who should get paid is based on procuring clause, The builders make it
very clear that they only pay to the Realtor who first brought in the client. | know for a fact that | am the first and only
one that brought you to that KB home. So even though you have another Realtor write up the contract, he would not get
paid plus you would make him a lot of troubles on his license, and stupid Realtor, didn't he realize that? You really need
such a Realtor who could risk himself to only make few thousands more? Can you imagine what else he will not do to
you?!

You have the right to ask him to sell you any houses except those that | first show you. Honestly why you even bother
to make an appointment with me since few months ago to look at houses on that day, not only that, you already gave
me all the financial to start a loan to do this purchase since 2 months ago. Dont forget you and | have been looking for
your next house few times since last year. You use my expertise but use someone else to write up the contract just to
benefit yourself, that is the definition of unethical and immoral.

I have changed my life perspective since | have received a kidney from a generous and gracious donor. | would like to
settle thing rather than making things complicated for myself because | can better use my time to help people rather
than struggling over some nonsense on people who will never understand how fortunate that they have been taken care
of.

I am offering you a chance to clear this up with KB homes so that | can get the commission that | worked for. So,
please call KB home today to do the right thing.

| did a good job for your past purchase and sure | know how to do an equal if not a better job for myself.

If 1 did not hear from you, then | have no choice but to initiate whatever action deemed appropriate to protect myself
from being treated so ridiculously unfair. Whatever that outcome would be, you really do not need to have any trace of "
unethical behavior” on your resume for the rest of your career.

Betty Chan, CCIM, CPM, CRS

Broker

Asian American Realty & Property Management

P%ggige 702-222-0078 e
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3 Greater Las Vegas Association of REALTOI:‘-.,@

1750 E. Sahara AV., Las Vegas, NV 89104
(702) 784-5052

REQUEST AND AGREEMENT TO ARBITRATE (MEMBER)
PAGES 2, 3, 4 AND 5 MUST BE COMPLET. ED, SIGNED AND SUBMITTED
WITH A SUMMARY AND SUPPORTING DOCUMENT, S
OR YOUR COMPLAINT WILL BE RETURNED TO YOU.

DATE: _'1/9/2016 CASE NUMBER: [/ db/H (assigned by GLVAR® staff)
1. The undersigned, by becoming and remaining a member of the Greater Las Vegas Association of

REALTORS®,(or participate in its MLS), has previously consented to arbitration through the Association under its
Rules and regulations. -

- Each person named below is 2 member in good standing of the Association or was a member at the time the dispute
arose.

A dispute arising out of the real estate business as defined by Article 17 of the Code of Ethics exists between me
(or my firm) and (list all persons and/or firms you wish to name as respondents to this arbitration): *

PLEASE NAME RESPONDENTS:
Judith Sullivan - » Principal Broker of _Nevada Real Estate Corp. Company

Wayne Wu _ » Agent of Nevada Real Estate Corp. _ _ Company

(Note: Arbitration is generally conducted between REALTORSS® (principals) or between firms comprised of
REALTOR® principals.)

There is due, unpaid, and owing to me (or I retain) from the above named person(s) the sum of § 13,79532 My
-claim is predicated upon the statement attached, marked Exhibit “1 7, and supporting documents which are
incorporated by reference into this application. DO NOT STAPLE your packet - turn in original complaint form

~ and copies of supporting documents.

disputed funds are held by First American Title:Escrow No. 112-24908656

v

Parties are strongly encouraged to provide any and all documents and evidence they intend to introduce during the
hearing to the other party(ies) and to the association prior to the day of the hearing. Providing documents and
evidence in advance can expedite the hearing process and prevent costly, unnecessary continuances,

I request and consent to arbitration through the Association in accordance with the Code of Ethics and
Arbitration Manual (alternatively, “in accordance with the professional standards procedures set forth in the
bylaws of the Board”). I agree to abide by the arbitration award and, if I am the non-prevailing party, to, within ten
(10) days following transmittal of the award, either (1) pay the award to the party(ies) named in the award or (2)
deposit the funds with the Professional Standards Administrator to be held in an escrow or trust account
maintained for this purpose. Failure to satisfy the award or to deposit the funds in the escrow or trust account
within this time period may be considered a violation of a membership duty and may subject the member to
disciplinary action at the discretion of the Board of Directors consistent with Section 53, The Award, Code of
Ethics and Arbitration Manual,

In the event 1 do not comply with the award and it is necessary for any party to obtain judicial confirmation and

enforcement of the award against me, 1 agree to pay that party costs and reasonable attorney’s fees incurred in
obtaiming such confirmation and enforcement. \Q

o
Page 2 \\\
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6} Thave enclosed my check in the sum of $500.00 for the arbitration filing deposh of commissions of $501.00 and
above. 1have enclosed my check in the sum of $100.00 for the arbitration filing deposit of commissions $500.00
and below which I understand is refundable to the prevailing party or if arbitration does not take place.

7. Tunderstand that I may be represented by counsel and that I must provide written notice no less than (15) fifteen
days before the hearing of the name, address and phone number of my attorney to all parties and the Association.
Failure to provide this notice may result in a continuance of the hearing, if the Hearing Panel determines that the
rights of the other party (ies) require representation.

Al parties appearing at a hearing may be called as a witness without advance notice.

Notice of witnesses and legal and/or REALTOR® Counsel must be submitted at least 15 days prior to the
hearing date. Each party shall arrange for his witnesses to be present at the time and place designates for the
hearing. The following REALTOR® non-principal (or REALTOR-ASSOCIATE® nonprincipal) affiliated with my
firm has a financial interest in the outcome of the proceeding and has the. right to be present throughout the
hearing:

8. Tdeclare this application and the allegations contained herein are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and
belief and this request for arbitration is filed within one hundred eighty (180) days after the closing of the
transaction, if any, or within one hundred eighty (180) days after the facts constituting the arbitrable matter could
have been in the exercise of reasonable diligence, whichever is later.

9. If either party to an arbitration request believes that the Grievance Committee has incorrectly classified the issue
presented in the request (i.e., mandatory or voluritary), the party has twenty (20) days from the date of receipt of
the Grievance Committee’s decision to file a written appeal of the decision. Only those materials that the
Grievance Committee had at the time of its determination may be considered with the appeal by the Board of
Directors. :

10. Are the circumstances giving rise to this arbitration request the subject of civil litigation? ** Yes No

11. Important note related to arbitration conducted pursuant to Standards of Practice 17-4 (1) or (2): Where arbitration is
conducted between two (or more) cooperating brokers pursnant to Standards. of Practice 17-4 (1) or (2), the amount in
dispute and the amount of any potential resulting award is fimited to the amount paid to the respondent by the listing
broker, seller, or landlord and any amount credited or paid to a party to the transaction at the direction of the
réspondent.

12. Address of the property in the transaction given rise to this arbitration request
477 Cabral Peak Street, Las Vegas, NV&9138

13. The sale/lease closed on: May 2720i6

Agreements to arbitrate are irrevocable except as otherwise provided under state law.

By submission of this complaint and / or response, 1 consent to receive communications sent from the Greater Las
Vegas Association of REALTORS® via U.S. Mail, e-mail telephoneé or facsimile at the numbers and locations poted by
you on this form. This permission includes all future U.S. mailing address, ¢-mail, telephione, which 1 might supply to
the Greater Las Vegas Association of REALTORS®. Permission continues until 7 unless specifically revoked, in

writing, to the Greater Las Veﬁj Associa’tioy of REALTORS®, ) % ) 5
. / w ’é’ 2" . . " ‘
Signature (Broker): vy T Signature (Agent): i _ _
Broker’s Name (print):_ Betty Chan 4/ _ Agent’s Name (print); __ Betty Chan / / I
Company: Asian American Realty & Propen&"Manag@em Company: Asian American Realty & Pr\e[{cny Management
Address; 4651 Spring Mountain Road, Las Vegas, NV 89102 Address: 4651 Spring Mountain Road. Las Vegas, NV 89102
Page 3

—u
P0002 3 Apr 000577 /'}/

.



Telephone: (702 ) 222-0078

Telephone: (702 ) 222-00s3

NOTE: This Association offers voluntary mediation, binding only if parties reach a written, signed settlement.

Rev 2/5/16 IK

Page 4
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Greater Las Vegas Association of REALTORS®
1750 E. Sahara AV., Las Vegas, NV 89104
Phone Number (702) 784-5052

DESIGNATION OF LEGAL COUNSEL

(ARBITRATION)
DATE:_!1/972016 CASE NUMBER:
COMPLAINANT(S): RESPONDENT(S):
Betty Chan v, Judith Sullivan
Wayne Wu
o I do not wish to designate counsel at this time

OR

o 1, Betty Chan _ ; do hereby designate the following LEGAL counsel* for
representation in all aspects of these proceedings:

Attorney Name: _Avece M Higbee

Firm Name: Marquis Aurbach Coffing
Address: 10001 Park Run Drive, Las Vegas, NV 89145
Phone: ( 702 ) 942-2194

attorney as his/her agent and spokesman in these procgedings

0 )
Date: __11/9/2016 _ : LUy T e ,
Signature of Broker /

Betty Chan

Name (please print)

Asian American Realty & Propety Management
Company | | |

*REALTOR® counsel (a Jellow REALTOR ®who may offer guidance or advice) may be used in ¢

thics hearings only, not
in arbitration hearings. Exhibir 12

Page 5
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*

, Form #A-7
g Greater Las Vegas Association of REALTORS®
1750 E. Sahara Ave., Las Vegas, NV 89104

702-784-5052
Case#

Notice of Right to Challenge Hearing Panel Members
Notice is given herewith to parties in the matter of:

Betty Chan v vs. Judith Sullivan/Wayne Wu

an arbitration Pproceeding, that a party has a right to0 challenge the qualifications of any individual who
a Hearing Panel or the Board of Directors. A list of such individuals is provided below. If yo

copy of same with a letter the Professional Standards explaining your resson (“canse

sufficient to suppert your challen » the individual challenged will not be appointe
Qualification for Tribunal, challenges must be fled with the Board within fifteen ¢15)

See names crossed out below _

» Please indicate by checking the appropriate blank, and return this form or
e®) for challenge. I your teason is deeme
d to the Tribunal, Pursuant to Section 27
days from the date’ the list of names is Miailed

Challenge: [x¥ Yes [ N
i e Challenge:  [] Yes [ No
Challenge: [} Yes [ No
RogerSisin. Banay-Gengette Jackie Porter Linda Tunnadg
Joan-Kupts -Emest-Gonadles- Douglas Proudfit Tom Uribe
Nancy Anderson Minee Haekeit Bes-Ramirez ’ Susann Wejsse
Hongy Borla Jennie-Holder— Micheel-Reiss BOD-Appeal Purposes
~ferthryrBovard Barbara-Hoeland & inbe; Jillian Batchelor
Pamen-Caldiall Erie-Humes- Bradford Roberts —Seott-Besudsy
Feresd-Chapinan Jeari Sharon Jones Louise Rozich “andana-Bhalle
‘Elaine: Christensen Melissa Jones Donna A. Ruthe Chris'Bishop.
Lisa-Cobb Keith Kelley Sandra Salsbury : b
iha Cok Myma Kingham Rennie Schwartz Janet Carpenter
Walt Coffey- Danald Laimer Gm-ol-Sevqa i LR
Peggy Cook Patrick-Eebovic Tim Shaw- Kolleen Kelley
Chuck Doty CharlesMartin Peggy Siman mar-Lopa
Ross Fabrizio PatrieleMartino Susan Sippe] Keith Lynain
Mina Farah Ashley McCormick Nord-Slagle-. Aldo-Martines—
<Rishard-Eoster Eric Mendoza Jora-Steracsi— Torres Ramey
Brtney-Gaitan Tedd-fditer Robert Sweeney Brandon Robeits
Eonmie-Garvin Mithele Mittemilter David Tina Sr. Krystal Shervy
1ddo-Gavish EafiaMoore- Melissa Towbin Mark Sivek
, David Tina J.
&Z,Wr IUJ&MS 7Y Nagves L,(f(;va.c,e/
OR
1 have no challenges: v _
(Print N Gignatire)
I have no clzallengesf
<’//////' Page 6
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April 27,2018

Nevada Real Estate Corp.
Mr. Wayne Wu (Agent) and
Judith Sullivan (Broker)
3512 Wynn Road

Las Vegas, NV 89103

VIA EMAIL and CERTIFIED MAIL

RE: Arbitration Case #16201A

Dear Mr. Wayne Wu,

Enclosed is a amended letter referencing the actual Award of Arbitrators decision for the
above-referenced case. Please reference the “Award of Arbitrators” that actually states that
$3,448.83 to be paid by Respondent to Complainant, and the remaining $10,346.49 be paid to
Respondent from the title company.

‘The award must be paid no later than 5:00 p.m. on May 7, 2018, either directly to the
Respondent or to the Greater Las Vegas Association of REALTORS®. The funds will be deposited
in a GLVAR escrow account and are held by GLVAR pending the outcome of a procedural review
and/or legal challenge. A request for procedural review must be filed within twenty (20) days
of the award. Alternatively, a notice of legal challenge must be received within that same
twenty (20) day period.

The appeal period runs until 5:00 p.m. on May 17, 2018. If no appeal is received by that date
at the offices of the Greater Las Vegas Association of REALTORS®, 6360 S Rainbow Blvd., Las
Vegas, NV 89118, a letter will be sent to all named parties and the file will be closed.

4

Please note our new location at 6360 S. Rainbow Boulevard, Las Vegas, NV 89118. If you should
have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

GREATER LAS VEGAS ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS®

The Thece for Real Gstate in Jowuthern Aevada

EQUAL HOUSING
OPPORTUNITY




Thank you for participating in the Arbitration process.

Sinc rely,

zt

"‘"'“‘Ingrld illo, Difector
GLVAR Professional Standards

Enclosures:

A12 Award of Arbitrators

A13 (Appeal) Request for Procedural Review (Arbitration)

A7 Notice of Right to Challenge Tribunal Members
Designation of Counsel

Cc: Todd Kennedy, Esq., Black & Lobello
Michael Olsen, Esq., GoodsellOlsen
Judith Sullivan, Esq., Nevada Real Estate Corp
Betty Chan-Broker, Asian American Realty

GREATER LAS VEGAS ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS®
e T4 0/c5ﬁ/ /z’((l/ Oslate we Jézz// (287 !é(}(l[él

AF50-E-Sahara~-Aventre~ Las Vegas, Nevada *-894.04... (702)784

5000 - F

EQUAL HOUSING
OPPORTUNITY




Form #A-12

Greater Las Vegas Association of REALTORS®
1750 E Sahara Ave
Las Vegas, NV 89109
702-784-5000
Case #16201A

Award of Arbitrators
The undersigned, duly appointed as the Hearing Panel to hear and determine an arbitrable dispute between

Betty Chan, Asian American Realty and __ Wayne Wu and Judith Sullivan, Nevada Real Estate Corp
Complainant Respondent

certify that on__April 17th ,20.18 , we heard the evidence of the parties and having heard all the evidence and arguments

of the parties, a majority of the panel finds there is due and owing $3 I)‘IX ¥3 to be paid by 'Q(’,l %f\ﬁbﬂ{“ to
P\ ey o3 10039699 b prid 4 ad gordenk fov HiHle Compon
@ FATISRL oy M/L The noqﬂplevallmg, x party must, within ten (10) days following transmittal of the award, elther ( 1);
- pay the award to the party(ies) named in the award or (2) deposit the funds with the Professional Standards Administrator to be held in
an escrow or trust account maintained for this purpose. Failure to satisfy the award or to deposit the funds in the escrow or trust account
within this time period may be considered a violation of a membership duty and may subject the member to d1501plmary action at the
- discretion of the Board of Directors,

The deposits of the parties shall be used to cover the costs of arbitration or shall go into the general operating funds of the Association
of REALTORS™. In the event the award of the arbitrators is in an amount other than that requested by any of the parties, the
disposition of the deposits shall be directed by the arbitrators.

“Requests for procedural review of the arbitration hearing procedures must be filed in writing with the President within twenty (20) days’
atter the award has been transmitted to the parties* and must be accompanied by a depositof. ~$250,00 " o T e request for
- procedural review must cite the alleged procedural deficiencies or other irregularities the party believes constitute a deprivation of due
“process. If no procedural review is filed within twenty (20) days following transmittal of the award and the non-prevailing party does
not notify the Professional Standards Administrator that a legal challenge to the validity of the award has been initiated during that time,
_the award will be paid from the escrow or trust account. If a procedural review request is timely filed and the award is confirmed by
 the directors following the procedural review, the award will be paid from the escrow or trust unless the non—plevallmg party advises
the association in writing within fifteen (15) days from the transmittal of the directors’ confirmation that a suit challenging the validity
“of the award has been filed. If the directors invalidate the award, the funds shall be returned to the individual who made the deposit. -

Dated: April 17" 2018

Arbitrators:

Keith Lynam (Chair)

Chairperson
Type/Print

Ronnje Schwariz / ﬁ-« e Panel Member
Type/Print P W fﬂatune
David Tina Sr. £ v _Panel Member

Type/Print Signature

Panel Member
Type/Print Signature

Panel Member
Type/Print Signature

Many arbitration hearings are convened to determine questions of procuring cause. For purposes of arbitration conducted by Boards
and Associations of REALTORS™, procuring cause is considered to be the initiation of the unbroken chain of causal events that results
in a successful transaction, defined as a sale that closes or a lease that is executed.

(Revised 05/13)

*Award becomes final twenty (20) days from the date the award is transmitted absent a procedural review request being filed.

¥*Appeal deposits Cant Not exceed $500.
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Asian American Realty & Property Management

4651 Spring Mountain Road #B1 Las Vegas NV 89102
Office (702) 222-0078 Fax (702) 993-6866 Email: 702aar@gmail.com

May 17 2018

Chris Bishop
President, GLVAR
Via email: chris.bishop@cbvegas.com

Ingrid Trillo

Director, Professional Standards
GLVAR

Via email: itrillo@glvar.org

Copy sent via Certificate of Mailing on 5/17/2018 to
GLVAR

6360 S Rainbow Blvd

Las Vegas NV 89118

Re: Arbitration #16201 A —Betty Chan/Asian American Realty & Property Management
Vs. Wayne Wu, Agent and Judith Sullivan/Nevada Real
Estate Corp

I am responding to the amended letter for Notice of Award of Arbitrators from Ms. Trillo
dated 5/4/2018. Please be advised that I am going to continue my pending litigation case
No. A-16-744109-C in District Court to vacate the Arbitration hearing and Awards.

I will not engage a procedure review with GLVAR because:

1) Procedure deficiency

a) Ms. Trillo rejected my request for a new hearing and that I can only file a procedural
review. She said only items relating to procedural deficiency can be discussed.

There was only one item being arbitrated, “who deserves to be the procuring cause for the
commission” In my humble opinion, it should not be just discussing procedures. Every
words, every document, every procedure are essential to the decision of the Arbitration.

If there were a procedural deficiency, there would be a domino effect that will affect the
outcome of the whole hearing.

The panel members should be very familiar with the procedure or at least there should be

a little gathering or rehearsal type to refresh every one position or procedure before the
hearing.
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At the start of the hearing, Chairman mentioned that all parties present to refer to a
document explaining procedure for hearing. None of all 12 people in the room had a
copy of the document. Counsel went out for 10 minutes and came back with nothing.
However the arbitration went on.

I am not a frequent flyer for arbitration. Last one I attended was from 25 years ago. Do 1
need to understand how the procedure goes today, I am sure I needed that. It also show
how sloppy and unprepared GLVAR was for the hearing. Will the panel members also
adopt the same attitude that the whole hearing was just a business as usual?

May be that was not considered to be a big deal for some. It was still considered as a
procedure deficiency. To me, this is a very big deal. All of us came here to show respect
to the rules and regulations of GLVAR and took it seriously dressed up and spent time
assembling all the documents hoping to get a fair and professional arbitration. It is
supposed to be better than going to court as only Realtors ourselves know what we are
talking about.

That started out to be a joke.

b) I saw one panel member’s eyes automatically shut down for 30 seconds. Twice! How
much focus that member could offer throughout the long and tedious hearing under the
member’s physical condition.

How about another member, the arbitration material seemed to be fresh from the
envelope, did not seem even one page was ever turned. How much that member had
treated the hearing as important as I had?

The Chairman obviously seemed to be new at this. He constantly referred to the notes and
needed to be reminded by another member what was missing. Throughout the hearing he
had focused more how to be a good chairman following the agenda rather than paying
attention of what I said and he stopped me twice from speaking. No offence. I just
reported how I felt about the arbitration.

The Counsel, whom I did not know who he was, spent half of his time texting and
working on his iphone when none of us was allowed to have our phone on.

Another member for personal reasons had to leave early.
One member suddenly walked in and asked if the arbitration had finished.

OMG!
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2) I was denied a due process and right to defend myself.

As I have mentioned above, Chairman had stopped me from speaking twice. Of course
he should stop me if I was talking something irrelevant, but I was trying to challenge the
respondents’ accusation in their response to the Arbitration. He lied about how much
effort he had contributed to help the buyer selecting between two lots. The truth was there
were no 2 lots. It was only one lot available for purchase when the buyer put a deposit
down on that only one lot less than 24 hours after my showing.

Chairman stopped me from speaking so I could not finish explaining why that was a
significant evidence proving their lies. I also could not finish challenging the rest of their
fake statements. The right to defend myself was deprived of because of Chairman’s
interruption.

That was why later in the end, Chairman came back with a question “which lot would 1
recommend” He should not ask that question if he understood or allowed me to continue
my defense. There was only one lot available to purchase, Respondent brought up two
lots just to confuse or cover up the truth that he did nothing to contribute the purchase. I
believed Chairman’s misunderstanding had played an important role to the panel's
decision.

3) It was not just a clerical mistake!

Not to mention that the award letter was sent out erroneously, as Ms Trillo said it did not
change the outcome; it was just a clerical mistake on the cover letter that she made. (In
other words, no big deal?)There was no apology and no explanation that went with the
letter.

I could not see how much respect and responsibility had been given to this arbitration
hearing. Overall speaking, it was not done properly, respectfully and professionally. How
could the panel arrive a fair and accurate conclusion based on all of the above?

Coupled with the above mentioned deficiencies, that was not just a clerical mistake. It

was a significant error more than harmless, a new hearing should be granted but I was
told no way.

Redacted Settlement Discussion

. Obviously I did not do this just for money. My attorney fees were already gone
above and beyond the commission.

Being in Service for 28 years, I felt obligated

a) to myself- protect my integrity and professionalism in the industry and restore my
self esteem. I was so insulted by the greedy buyer and the lying agent.
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b) to buyers- they have to respect the Realtors that they work with

c) to fellow Realtors- offering a kickback to steal other Realtors business is totally stupid
and unethical. To sign a registration lying about being the one showing the buyer at
his first visit so as cheating Builder for commission, that is a new low for all Realtors.

I am totally disappointed GLVAR has not changed a bit since my first arbitration 25
years ago. For whatever happened in the arbitration hearing, I could not trust GLVAR
would be capable of providing a professional hearing any more. As such, I resort to legal
action to fight for my obligations. I want that to be a known public record.

Thank you

Respectfully submitted,
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Electronically Filed
8/15/2018 5:16 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
Ry .
Todd E. Kennedy, Esq. '

Nevada Bar No. 6014

Maximiliano D. Couvillier 111, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 7661

KENNEDY & COUVILLIER, PLLC
3271 E. Warm Springs Rd.

Las Vegas, NV 89120

Tel: (702) 605-3440

Fax: (702) 625-6367
tkennedy@kclawnv.com
mcouvillier@kclawnv.com

Attorneys for Laboratory Medicine Consultants, Ltd.

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

BETTY CHAN and ASIAN AMERICAN | Case No.: A-16-744109-C
REALTY & PROPERTY MANAGEMENT,
Dept.: XX

Plaintiffs, REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO
VACATE OR MODIFY ARBITRATION
v. AWARS AND OPPOSITION/MOTION
TO STRIKE IMPROPER
WAYNE WU, JUDITH SULLIVAN, | COUNTERMOTION

NEVADA REAL ESTATE CORP., JERRIN

CHIU, KB HOME SALES-NEVADA, INC., | Date of Hearing: - August 22, 2018

Defendants. Time: 8:30 a.m.

And Related Counterclaims.

INTRODUCTORY COMMENT
This matter was stayed, at Plaintiffs’ (hereafter “Chan’) request, for the licensed relator
parties to participate in the Greater Las Vegas Association of Realtors binding arbitration process
to determine procuring cause. The purpose of that arbitration was, clearly, to determine which

of the two agents involved was the procuring cause of the underlying home sale under Nevada
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law and entitled to the buyer’s agent’s commission being paid by KB Homes.! The arbitration
took place and the GLVAR entered an award which not only failed in its entire purpose
(determining the procuring cause) but entered an award that is a legal impossibility: awarding
part of the commission to Wu and part to Chan.

Chan properly and timely notified the GLVAR that she intended to pursue a challenge to
the obviously defective award in Court.? Further, Chan timely exercised her right under Nevada
law to pursue a petition to the Court to vacate or modify the award, providing points and
authorities explaining why the award was defective and must be modified or vacated.

Defendants Wu, Sullivan and Nevada Real Estate Corp. (“Wu”)® did not seek
confirmation of the award pursuant to NRS Ch. 38. Instead, they have filed a rogue “counter-
motion for summary judgment” which is not an appropriate countermotion under E.D.C.R. 2.20.
If what Wu was actually seeking was court confirmation of the award, Wu should have so moved
rather than clutter the docket with improper, unnecessary and procedurally deficient counter-
motions. But even that would be unnecessary and wasteful in light of Chan’s motion, because
the end result of the matter before the court is limited to an order (1) modifying the award; (2)

vacating the award or (3) confirming the award. NRS 38.241(4) (providing that if the court

' The purpose and issue to be arbitrated was plainly stated even in the Motion to Stay filed Jan
13, 2017.

2 In a document filled with rhetoric and invective against Chan but lacking legal basis or
authority, Defendants also seem to suggest that Chan failed to follow GLVAR procedure.
Except that is wholly untrue. The GLVAR procedure provides that she can pursue a procedural
review OR file a “legal challenge” in court. See Motion Exhibit 5 (Letter from GLVAR clearly
stating that a party wishing to challenge the award may file an internal GLVAR “procedural
review” or “alternatively” provide notice of seeking a legal challenge (under which the time
frames provided by NRS Ch. 38 clearly apply)). Chan elected the latter. Exh. 7.

3 Defendant Wayne Wu is the agent who usurped Chan’s client, never disclosed he was not the
first agent to show the KB homes to the buyer, Mr. Chiu, and wrongfully claims to be the
procuring cause. Sullivan and Nevada Real Estate Corp. is the broker under whom he works.
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denies a motion to vacate, it “shall confirm the award unless a motion to modify or correct the
award is pending.”). As such, it is Wu, not Chan, that is filing unnecessary, improper and
wasteful motions (in this instance, counter-motions) with this court.

ARGUMENT
A. Nevada Law Is Clear, When Two Brokers Claim A Commission, Entitlement Is

Decided By Determining Procuring Cause And The Panel Exceeded Its Authority

By Never Actually Deciding Procuring Cause and Then Splitting The Commission

Wu suggests that the issue submitted to arbitration was not “procuring cause” but, rather,
whatever the Panel wanted to decide. Nevada law is clear. A broker or agent is only entitled to
a commission on a sale for which he or she establishes that he or she is the procuring cause.
Shell Oil Co. v. Ed Hoppe Realty, Inc., 91 Nev. 576, 580, 540 P.2d 107, 109 (1975): Flamingo
Realty, Inc. v. Midwest Development, Inc., 110 Nev 984, 989, 879 P.2d 69, 72 (1994),
Carrington v. Ryan, 109 Nev. 797, 801-02, 858 P.2d 29, 32 (1993); Morrow v. Barger, 103 Nev.
247,253,737 P.2d 1153, 1157 (1987).

Wu argues that arbitrators may abandon and not even decide the very issue presented to
them because the GLVAR (and/or its national association) has an “Arbitration Manual” that
grants them unfettered authority to ignore controlling law. But the GLVAR does not have the
power to override Nevada law. And it is patent from the GLVAR ethics rules that when there
are two competing brokers*, the issue to be decided is procuring cause, which by operation of
Nevada law, decides who is entitled to a commission and who is not.

Wau relies heavily on commentary in the Association of Realtor’s Arbitration Manual to

suggest that the panel did not need to determine “procuring cause” and did not exceed its

4 See Motion Exhibit 1, at Standard of Practice 17-4 (providing that arbitration is to determine
procuring cause when two competing brokers dispute entitlement).
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authority by effectively ignoring that core determination and splitting the baby by ruling both
were entitled to a portion of the commission.

Again, neither the GLVAR nor its national association have the power to dictate or
change or ignore the law. The GLVAR is not the Nevada Legislature or a judge. They have no
policy making power, nor any power to alter or change the law. Manifestly, if the Panel fails to
meet its charge of determining the procuring cause and enters an award that cannot exist because
there can only be one procuring cause, that Panel has exceeded its authority.’

The Panel exceeded its power because in Nevada and elsewhere, procuring cause is an
either/or proposition, not a sliding scale which allows for more than one procuring cause. There
is no such thing as partial procuring cause. See Morrow v. Barger, 103 Nev. 247, 253, 737 P.2d
1153, 1157 (1987) (“If a real estate broker has been a “procuring” or “inducing” cause of a sale,
he or she is entitled to the agreed commission irrespective of who makes the actual sale or terms
thereof.”); Bartsas Realty, Inc. v. Leverton, 82 Nev. 6, 9, 409 P.2d 627, 629 (1966) (“Faced with
competing brokers, a court must decide which was the ‘procuring’ or ‘inducing’ cause of the
sale.”); Van C. Argiris & Co. v. FMC Corp. 494 N.E.2d 723, 727 (1ll. App. 1986) (“The law is
well settled in Illinois that only one commission will become due when a ready, willing and able
purchaser has been found, and the commission will be due only to the broker who can show that
he was the procuring cause.”); Briden v. Osborne, 184 S.W.2d 860, 863 (Tex. App. 1944)
(“Whether there be but one broker involved, or more than one independent broker, the one who

is the procuring cause of the sale is the one entitled to a commission.”); Salamon v. Broklyn Sav.

> Wu declares there is no clear and convincing evidence of exceeding authority. But the only
evidence necessary is the showing of the dispute, what issue (procuring cause) was submitted for
decision, and the legal impossibility of the award.
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Bank, 44 N.Y.S.2d 420, 421 (N.Y. Sup. Ct. 1943) (allowing interpleaded of commission for
determination between competing claimants: “[O]nly one could have been the procuring
cause.”); Lundburg v. Stinson, 695 P.2d 328, 335 (Haw. App. 1985) (“When there are many
brokers involved in a transaction, there can be only one ‘procuring cause ...”).

Wu’s only response to this compelling and uncontradicted legal authority is to quote
extensively from the “Arbitration Manual.”® But this only proves Chan’s point. The Arbitration
Manual excerpts cannot change the law and how it is to be applied. @ Wu’s citation to the
Arbitration Manual suggesting a split award may be possible does not change or otherwise
supplement the law regarding procuring cause. Indeed, the quoted excerpt clearly states a
caveat to the speculation that such a result may be allowed: ‘“except where prohibited by state
law.” Wu has failed to cite to a single legal authority that would allow the determination of joint
procuring causes and a split award in Nevada.” The Arbitration Manual is simply wrong legally

(and to the extent it matters at all, it makes clear that an award cannot be contrary to law).

Rather than supporting Wu, the quoted excerpt underscores that the Panel here did not follow the

® Wu does cite to basic cases on procuring cause and declares that Chan must have abandoned
the project and the panel must have decided Wu was the procuring and predominating cause.
But Wu’s assumptions and factual argument is apropos of nothing. The Panel award splits the
commission without explanation. Since Nevada law precludes entitlement to a commission
without the claimant showing they were the procuring cause, Chan necessarily was the procuring
cause and there was no interruption or abandonment finding by the Panel.

7 Wu cites to several non-Nevada cases which apply a “predominating cause” standard. There
does not appear to be any actual difference but to the extent there is, Nevada obviously applied
procuring cause, and, as such, the cases are not persuasive authority since they are not applying
the proper standard. Interestingly, Carmichael v. Agur Realty Co., Inc., 574 So0.2d 603, 609
(Miss. 1991) notes that while a claimant to a commission must be a procuring cause “how much
of a cause he must be is a function of contract.” Hence, even Wu’s cited cases demonstrate that,
because Wu’s contract with KB and Chiu required him as a threshold matter to have
accompanied Wu on his first visit as well as being the first agent to bring him there, he cannot be
the procuring case under the clear contract applying to this case.
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law (or even its own procedures) because it entered an award that cannot legally exist, thereby
going beyond its authority.
B. The Award Must Be Vacated or Modified Because The Award Is Not Supported By
The Applicable Contract And The Panel Acted Arbitrarily And In Disregard For
The Law
Wu’s primary response on this point is to argue (improperly) the facts of the case (from
his perspective) and raise a straw-man argument that the decision was supported by “substantial
evidence.” Wu either mistakenly misunderstands Chan’s point or 1is intentionally
mischaracterizing it.
Chan has established that when two competing brokers claim a commission, entitlement
is determined by deciding who is the procuring cause and that as a matter of law, there can be
only one procuring cause. As part of this showing in the Motion, Chan also demonstrated that

Wu cannot possibly be the procuring cause because the very agreement that they executed with

KB Homes (that provides for a commission) makes it exceedingly clear as a matter of law that

Wu cannot be the procuring cause because the contract expressly precludes payment of a
commission to him if he was not the first agent/broker to bring Chiu to the development (which
he indisputably was not because Chan was). See D0054 (paragraphs 2-3).

Thus, Chan’s motion is not to re-argue the case or whatever factual determinations the
Panel made in reaching its improper award. Rather, the award is defective because the Panel did
not determine procuring cause (contrary to law) and entered an award that is a legal impossibility
(contrary to law) and violates the very agreement that provides for a cooperating broker
commission at all.  Problematic here is that the Panel was made up of long-time and
experienced brokers. It is obvious they knew what they were to decide and that there can only be
one procuring cause. The GLVAR ethics rules also make it clear that the issue is procuring
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cause. Indeed, the Arbitration Manual expressly says that there is only one procuring cause, but
suggests there may be exceptions, but then limits that power to being only if allowed by the law.
Simply put, the law does not allow to do what Panel did, the Panel knew as well, and the
Arbitration Manual precludes this split award unless specifically authorized by state law, which
it is not. That the Arbitration Manual recognizes that splitting a commission cannot be done if
not allowed by law establishes all that is necessary to show arbitrary action by the Panel and
manifest disregard for the law.

Were that not enough, the Arbitration Manuel further admits that GLVAR arbitrators are
encouraged to violate the law (unless they are told expressly to follow it). Wu quotes another
excerpt attempting to support the Panel’s actions which encourages the Panel to make a decision
“upon broad principles of justice and equity, and in doing so may expressly or impliedly reject a
claim that a party might successfully have asserted in a judicial action.” Opp. Atp 17 1l. 13-14
(emphasis added). Hence, this particular organization, and the Panel, have expressly admitted to
manifest disregard for the law as a matter of GLVAR policy by admitting they can and will (as
here) enter awards as they see fit regardless of what might be the compelled result under the law.
The Court should take this opportunity to make it exceedingly clear to the GLVAR and its
arbitrators that they are not the law unto themselves, that they must follow Nevada law, and their
internal operating manuals inviting arbitrary action and disregard for the law through improper
result-driven adjudication in derogation of Nevada law is not acceptable.

As noted, in attempting to argue the Panel did not act arbitrarily or contrary to the
agreement, Wu extensively argues the facts (at least those he believes supports his claim to being
the procuring cause). But Wu again misses the issue. Each side has conflicting views of the
facts and who did what which resulted in Chiu purchasing the property in question and which
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properly was for the Panel to sort through and decide in reaching a procuring cause
determination. Chan’s primary issue with the Panel decision is primarily that the Panel acted
contrary to law an in excess of its power by failing to actually do that and determine who was the
procuring cause (instead entering an award that cannot legally stand).

Moreover, regardless of the facts about what Wu may have done to help select tile, carpet
and other things after Chan introduced Chiu to the property and he sufficiently determined to
buy to place a $10,000 deposit down (the very next day), and regardless of the fact that it was a
short time between his viewing with Chan that Chiu signed the final contract (while Chiu
deceived Chan and delayed her to buy Wu time to “close the deal” Chan had started without
interference) as well as the alleged but unsubstantiated claim that Chan somehow abandoned
Chiu,® the Panel acted arbitrarily and contrary to the operative contract. The three-party
cooperating broker agreement with KB Homes expressly and conclusively precludes Wu from
receiving any part of a commission unless he was the first broker to bring Chiu to the property.
It is undisputed that he was not.

Hence, it does not matter what Wu did, or did not do. See Morrow v. Barger, 103 Nev.
247, 253, 737 P.2d 1153, 1157 (1987) (“If a real estate broker has been a “procuring” or
“inducing” cause of a sale, he or she is entitled to the agreed commission irrespective of who

makes the actual sale or terms thereof.””); Clark County Educ. Ass’n v. Clark County School

8 This was the flagship position of Wu. It is based upon Chiu’s claim that he and/or his father
were calling Chan but she was not responding. Of course, this alleged failure to respond—if it
happened at all--lasted all of a couple of days (over the New Year holiday). There is no actual
evidence of these calls beyond self-serving statements and Chan received only one message on
January 3, 2016. Chan was not allowed to play the voicemail by the Panel but did tell the panel
what was said: Mr. Chiu’s father called her and, in a very calm voice (i.e., not someone upset
because they could not reach her) that she must be on vacation and asked her to call him. See
Supplemental Chan Declaration, attached as Reply Exhibit 8 at 2.
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Dist. 122 Nev. 337, 131 P.3d 5 (2006). See also Carrigan, 109 Nev. at 799, 858 P.2d at 31
(contract terms regarding commission entitlement prevail).” Here, Wu (and Chiu) contracted
with the party paying the cooperating broker commission and created an overarching threshold
requirement for Wu to be the procuring cause; since he was not the first to show Chiu the
development, Wu could not be entitled to any part of the commission (Wu may seek some
compensation from Chiu eventually, but he contractually waived any right to the KB Homes
paid commission). The Panel manifestly disregarded this contract and the law by allowing him
any portion of the commission at all. Moreover, this contractual provision renders Wu’s factual
arguments wholly moot; he failed to meet the one threshold requirement necessary for him to
have any commission entitlement. While a separate point, this further shows why there is fraud
here. Wu and his star witness, Chiu, contracted with KB establishing that Wu could only have a
right to some or all of a commission if he were the first agent to bring Wu to the property and
was with him the first time Wu visited the property. Wu and Chiu know this was not the case.
That Wu is claiming entitlement to a commission at all is necessarily fraudulent in light of this
clear limitation he agreed to.

C. Although It Is Difficult To Follow Defendants’ Point, Defendants Continue To
Erroneously Charge Chan Of Violating Arbitration Obligations Or Procedure

Throughout the Opposition, Wu continues to claim Chan has acted inappropriately in
filing a lawsuit before proceeding to arbitration against Wu under GLVAR ethics requirements.
Wu also charges Chan of doing something incorrectly by not pursuing “procedural review” with
the GLVAR but, instead, pursuing her right under Nevada law to seek modification or vacation

of the award judicially.

? Even Wu'’s cited cases hold that what qualifies for being the procuring cause can be limited by
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Attacking Chan and her procedural choices is not a new endeavor for Wu. Indeed, in
response to Chan’s Motion to Stay this proceeding so that the arbitration could be pursued, Wu
made essentially the same incorrect arguments that Chan violated the GLVAR rules by filing
suit or otherwise acted improperly procedurally and therefore, should be denied a right to be
heard. See Opposition to Motion to Stay Pending Arbitration and Countermotion to Dismiss
with Prejudice or in the Alternative for Summary Judgment, filed Feb. 2, 2017.'° The Court
rejected Wu’s procedural complaints and request for summary judgment and denied Wu’s
countermotion in an order entered March 30, 2017. Wu again raised similar arguments before
the Panel, this time arguing Chan should be thrown out of court because she commenced a
litigation and then sought arbitration, and because they argued, she did not timely seek
arbitration. That motion also failed and was denied by the Panel.

Here, Wu repeats his often-made charges of procedurally incorrect conduct. But Wu is
wrong, just as they have been the other times they have made this argument.!! Chan acted
procedurally correct. The GLVAR notice provides two avenues for challenging the award. First
there is a limited “procedural review” which is an evaluation of procedure and due process. The
other alternative is the “legal challenge” which necessarily is what is taking place before this
Court. Chan gave timely notice to the GLVAR and timely filed her motion. There is no basis

for whatever complaint Wu is attempting to make. '?

contract. Carmichael v. Agur Realty Co., Inc., 574 So.2d 603, 609 (Miss. 1991).

10 Like here, Wu again used a counter-motion improperly to seek summary judgment declaring himself
the “procuring cause.” Id.

't is, of course, improper to repeatedly seek reconsideration.

12 Indeed, Wu’s criticisms are curious since Wu filed a counterclaim in this action (rather than moving to
compel arbitration which would have been the procedurally correct route). If Wu is held to the same
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As for Wu’s often repeated lament of the bringing of a court action, there is nothing
wrong with that as well. Chan had several parties she (through prior counsel) elected to sue.
While there was, through GLVAR membership, an obligation to arbitrate with Wu, such
obligation did not exist for Chui or KB Homes. Chan had every reason to commence a court
action because there would be no arbitration involving them—or claims Chan had asserted that
were not subject to arbitration--and it was important all parties were on notice of her claims.!?
To avoid argument of failing to bring all of her claim, or failing to name a necessary party, Chan
also included Wu in the suit, but properly moved the Court to stay so arbitration could proceed.
What Wu decries as abuse is simply procedurally wise lawyering. In any event, these issues
have been raised previously and rejected. They unnecessary impose cost and time consumption,
and confuse the issues actually before the Court and serve no purpose with respect to the actual
issues to be decided other than to serve Wu'’s desire to cast dirt.

These issues do raise an important issue regarding the arbitration itself. As is evident,
members of the GLVAR are required to adhere to their rules to be members. The standards and
rules make it clear that a member who does not submit such disputes to mandatory binding
arbitration would be subject to penalties by the organization. As such, Chan had no choice but to
execute the request and agreement to arbitrate, which necessarily was extracted by the coercive
requirements that a member must agree to arbitrate or suffer the consequences. NRS 597.995

renders void arbitration agreements lacking “specific authorization for the provision which

standard he advocates against Chan, Wu should be determined to have acted improperly, multiplied
proceedings, acted frivolously and should have judgment against them entered.

13 KB Homes caused the commission to be held in escrow as a result until the dispute resolved. It
has since been transferred to the GLVAR.
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indicates that the person has affirmatively agreed to the provision.”!'* This evidences that the
policy of Nevada is that an obligation to arbitrate should not be unwittingly made or coerced.
Here, as is clear, the GLVAR arbitration was coerced through the threat of penalties and
sanctions if Chan did not submit the claim to them for arbitration. While she signed a request
and agreement to arbitrate, it was only because she believed there was no choice.

D. The “Counter-Motion” For Summary Judgment Is Procedurally Improper And
Moot

The sole points and authorities offered by Wu as part of the “counter-motion” (aside from
the rhetoric and invective disparaging Chan) is comprised of exactly one paragraph, in which Wu
says that summary judgment should be granted because of the arbitration award. No case
authority is cited (beyond summary judgment standards).

This “counter-motion” is a non-sequitur and, at best, incorrectly characterized and
premature. NRS Ch. 38 prescribes what is to happen after an arbitration concludes with an
award. The prevailing party has the right to ask a court to “confirm” it. NRS 38.329. Only
after an order confirming an award has been entered does the Court then have authorization to
enter a judgment on the award. NRS 38.243. It is procedurally improper to move for entry of
judgment prior to the determination of Chan’s motion since no award has yet to be confirmed.
Even then, the Motion fails to identify what, exactly, would be subject to summary judgment.
Chan asserted more than one claim, and the Motion to Stay makes it clear there were claims
against non-arbitrating parties, and Wu for his contractual interference, which were not subject to

arbitration and were reserved for later litigation after procuring cause was determined.

4 Nevada case law also shows hostility to forced arbitration where the obligation to arbitrate was
not freely and knowingly consented to in advance. See Burch v. Second Jud. Dist. Ct., 118 Nev.
438 (2002) (adhesion arbitration provision found unenforceable).
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Moreover, it is axiomatic that the Court should not be independently considering “summary
judgment” on anything submitted to binding arbitration because the Court’s power is limited to
accepting the decision, modifying it, or vacating it.">

Additionally, pursuant to E.D.C.R. 2.20, a “counter-motion” is only authorized as part of
a response to a motion if it is related to the “same subject matter.” Here, the motion at hand is
challenging the arbitration award and seeking that it be vacated or modified. NRS Ch. 38 makes
it clear what the available “counter-motions” that would be the same subject matter, and a only a
motion to confirm the award under NRS 38.239 would fit. Wu’s “motion for summary
judgment” is a non-sequitur and, whatever is being sought, is not proper because one does not
grant “summary judgment” on an arbitration award. It is either confirmed, modified or vacated.
But as to confirmation, the countermotion is also moot and improper. If the Court grants Chan’s
motion in any way, then there can be no confirmation of the award. But pursuant to NRS
38.241 and 38.242, the was no basis for a countermotion; those statutes already mandate
confirmation of the award if Chan’s motion is denied.

Because what Wu is seeking to accomplish through this entirely superfluous
countermotion is not entirely clear (unless the goal is to simply add complexity and use the
“counter-motion” device improperly to obtain the “last word”), in an abundance of caution and
to show that there are ample issues of material fact concerning procuring cause, as well as ample

issues requiring discovery under NRCP 56(f) such that denying summary judgment is

appropriate here, attached is the declaration submitted by Chan the first time Wu sought

5 'Wu seems to be inviting the Court to enter judgment that he was the procuring cause and
entitled to the entire commission. Wu cannot do this, of course. He failed to bring a timely
motion to modify or vacate the award and, while there are ample grounds why Wu cannot be the
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summary judgment on procuring cause as well as her supplemental declaration attached as
Exhibit 8. To the extent it is needed, this amply demonstrates the existence of a question of
material fact regarding the procuring cause (inherently a factual question) and the many subjects
or which discovery would produce evidence material to the question of procuring cause. This
would include depositions of KB Homes which would confirm the contractual limitation against
Wu ever being considered a procuring cause and entitled to a commission paid by KB.'®  To the
extent needed, Chan submits there are questions of fact precluding summary judgment and that
alternatively, it should be denied pursuant to NRCP 56(f) so discovery may proceed for formal
discovery to take place (the matter was stayed prior to commencement of discovery).!”

E. Defendants’ Countermotion For Attorneys’ Fees Is Unwarranted And Itself
Frivolous

Wu seeks an award of attorneys’ fees pursuant to two grounds. First, Wu cites to
E.D.C.R. 7.60(b) and alleges an entitlement to fees declaring Chan’s motion “frivolous,
unnecessary, or unwarranted” or “so multiplies the proceedings in a case as to increase costs
unreasonably and vexatiously.” It is astonishing that Wu would make such a motion in light of
Defendants’ own clearly improper counter-motion for summary judgment. NRS Ch. 38
expressly authorizes Chan’s motion to vacate or modify the arbitration award post arbitration. It
states the proper standards and cites supporting case authority for the arguments raised.

Generally the standard would be lacking any legal or factual support whatsoever. It was done

procuring cause and the panel acted improperly in awarding him even part of the commission, he
certainly has failed to establish that he rather than Chan is the procuring cause.

16 See Carrigan, supra (procuring cause is a question of fact).
17" The discovery would necessarily entail obtaining the evidence from KB Homes, Wu, Chiu

and Chiu’s father regarding the alleged “abandonment” dispute as Chan believes discovery
would reveal this to be a fabrication.
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timely, and while the Court will decide whether to grant it or not, is far from frivolous or
vexatious.'®

The second ground is based upon the agreement to arbitrate Chan was compelled to
execute to commence the arbitration (which, as Wu likes to point out, was compulsory and
potentially subjected Chan to penalties if she did not execute the agreement). Wu quotes the
following provision in the agreement as entitling Wu to fees:

In the event I do not comply with the award and it is necessary for any party to
obtain judicial confirmation and enforcement of the award against me, I agree to
pay that party costs and reasonable attorney’s fees incurred obtaining such
confirmation and enforcement.

Opp./Countermotion, at p. 25. First, of course, a contractual attorneys fees provision is a
collateral matter and such requests are not properly made as a counter-motion under E.D.C.R.
2.20. They are sought after entry of final judgment as a post-judgment matter. Second, Chan
has not failed to comply with the award. Chan has properly challenged the award as allowed and
expressly authorized by the GLVAR procedures and Nevada law. Third, Wu has not sought
judicial confirmation (and any effort by him for “enforcement” necessarily must come after the
Court rules on Chan’s motion and then there is some failure to comply). While Chan has filed,
as is her right, her Motion asking for the award to be modified and/or vacated, which if denied
would result in an order confirming the award, that is a result of Chan taking action, not Wu
moving to confirm.

As such, the provision simply is not applicable here under these circumstances by its very

18 1t is sadly becoming somewhat common for parties to append unnecessary, improper or duplicative
“counter-motions” to responses to motions to manufacture a basis to file the “last word” as a “reply” in
support of their “counter-motion” but what really is a sur-reply to the underlying motion to deprive the
moving party to their right to the last word. Of course, any reply submitted by Wu here would be
untimely and should be stricken and not considered on that basis because it was due 5 days prior to the
hearing.
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terms.

Finally, while the fees counter-motion cites Brunzell, they have provided no actual
evidence in support of the request for fees or under which the Court could evaluate the request.
No affidavit has been submitted supporting the request. No time records have been submitted.
The “counter-motion” is meritless to begin with, but must also be denied as a result of the failure
to attach any evidence supporting fees.

KENNEDY & COUVILLIER

/s/ Todd E. Kennedy

Todd E. Kennedy, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 6014
3271 E. Warm Springs Rd.
Las Vegas, NV 89120

Tel: (702) 605-3440

Fax: (702) 625-6367
tkennedy@kclawnv.com

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that I served the foregoing reply in support of Plaintiff’s motion to modify or
vacate the arbitration award and opposition to the countermotions for summary judgment and
fees on August 15, 2018, on all counsel of record in the action pursuant to the Court’s efile and
serve service.

/s/ Todd E. Kennedy

An employee of Kennedy & Couviller
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SUPPLEMENTAL DECLARATION OF BETTY CHAN

1. I make this declaration in support of my motion to vacate or modify the GLVAR
arbitration award and in opposition to the “counter-motion” for summary judgment and for fees
filed by Defendants. I have personal knowledge of the facts stated here and am competent to
testify.

2. On January 3, 2016, I received a telephone message from Defendant Jerrin Chiu’s
father. His father was assisting him in looking for a new home, although Jerrin was my client.
That one message is the only message either of them left for me since we were together
December 30, 2015 for the home viewings. I was not allowed to play the message for the
arbitration panel but I was allowed to state what the message was:

“Hello betty, yeah, its Dr. Chiu. Today is Sunday, January 3rd, right now it’s about 12
noon. Uh ... [ know you probably on vacation, when you get this message please give me a call.
Ok, Thanks.”

3. The message was not in any way indicated in tone or content any urgent need to
speak to me. There was no expression of annoyance or exasperation as you would expect if he
or Mr. Chiu were really calling me many times but were unable to reach me. I believe if
allowed to conduct discovery in the litigation, the deposition of Mr. Chiu’s father would
demonstrate that the claim that I was unresponsive or abandoned them was simply not true,
particularly when confronted with his voicemail message and the lack of any documents showing
efforts to call me beyond the December 31, 2015 conversation about asking me for a commission
kick-back and the January 3, 2016 message. This would show that the excuse offered by Chiu
for going to Wu was false and support a finding that I was the procuring cause, not Mr. Wu.

4. It is interesting that Mr. Chiu and Mr. Wu suggest that Mr. Wu was instrumental

Page 1 of 3

3 Appx 000609




KENNEDY & COUVILLIER, PLLC
3271E. Twain Ave, & Las Vegas, NV 89120

Ph. (702) 605-3440 & FAX: (702) 625-6367

www. kclawnv.com

= W N

O 00 -] N L

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

in helping Mr. Chiu choose a lot. KB homes was not a party to the arbitration so I was not able
to ask them questions or obtain documents. When we visited the development, it appeared in the
sales office that there were only two lots available for “plan 2 (which Mr. Chiu bought). There
were other lots available for other plans, but only those two for “plan 2.” However (and I
testified to this) I investigated later and asked the owner of the other lot (designated for “plan 2*)
that Mr. Chiu and Mr. Wu said they “decided against” in favor of the one supposedly Wu
recommended. The owner informed me that he had signed the purchase contract for the lot in
late December, 2015, so the only lot for “plan 2” that was actually ever available was the one
Mr. Chiu purchased. So what Mr. Wu claims was his major contribution, selecting the lot, was
nothing because the only other lot available for the “plan 2” Mr. Chiu wanted had already been
sold. If allowed to do discovery, I believe KB records would show that there was no “lot”
decision to be made. I also believe the deposition of Chiu and Wu, as well as getting their email
and other records, would show that | was the procuring cause and this was all an effort to get a
kickback and/or give a commission to a friend over me.

5. While they have claimed that Mr, Wu was helpful in the sale, it does not matter. I
am aware, as is Mr. Wu, that KB Homes only pays a cooperating commission to the first agent to
bring the client to the development (and it must be the client’s first visit). This is clear by the
contract Wu, Chiu and KB signed. Everybody agrees I brought Mr. Chiu to the development
first. 1am at a loss as to how Mr. Wu can claim a right to any commission when his contract
with KB Homes states he cannot have one if he wasn’t the first, or how Mr. Chiu could have
signed that agreement knowing it was a lie because I was the first. Discovery, depositions and
documents from KB Homes would show KB’s policy was enforced and, had they truthfully
disclosed to KB that Mr. Chiu visited the property with me before going again with Mr. Wu, KB
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would only have paid a commission to me.

6. I cannot produce a registration card because KB has lost or mishandled it. But
any agent who has ever worked with KB knows—including Mr. Wu—knows that KB pays only
the first one and so I am the only one who could ever claim the commission. The commission
card is simply KB’s means of establishing of who was there first. Nobody, not even Mr. Chiu
has ever disputed I was the first one. [ need the ability to do discovery with KB as well to get all
of their records and depose the person who was there the day [ visited.

7. I at no time abandoned efforts or was ineffective. Mr. Chiu never even
considered buying a new house in that area until I convinced him to consider it. He deposited
$10,000 less than 24 hours after we were there. He signed a contract just a few days later. From
my experience working with Mr. Chiu on other purchases, they like to do a lot of family
discussion and thinking before making any decision and there was nothing about this time that
suggested they were in any particular rush. [ showed the houses and let him think. After the
January 3, message from Jerrin’s father, I did follow up with my client. He ignored me for
many days and then lied to me by trying to conceal what he was doing with Wu and it is
completely contrary to long established local ethical practice and standards in Southern Nevada
for Wu to proceed without even asking about other agents and whether another agent had shown
Mr, Chiu the KB development already. I, and every broker I know, know that it is a violation of
Realtor standards of practice to intervene in another broker’s transaction.

I declare under the penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

o

Dated this 15" day of August 2018.

Betty Chan ﬂ
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Marquis Aurbach Coffing

Avece M. Higbee, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 3739

10001 Park Run Drive

Las Vegas, Nevada 89145

Telephone: (702) 382-0711

Facsimile: (702) 382-5816

ahigbee@maclaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff/
Counterdefendant, Betty Chan .
and Asian American Realty &
Property Management

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

BETTY CHAN and ASIAN AMERICAN
REALTY & PROPERTY MANAGEMENT,
Case No.: A-16-744109-C

Plaintiff, Dept. No.: XII

V8.
WAYNE WU, JUDITH SULLIVAN, NEVADA
REAL ESTATE CORP., JERRIN CHIU, KB
HOME SALES - NEVADA INC., DOES |
through X, and ROES I through X,

Defendants.
WAYNE WU, JUDITH SULLIVAN, NEVADA
REAL ESTATE CORP., JERRIN CHIU, KB
HOME SALES - NEVADA INC.,

Counterclaimants,
Vs,

BETTY CHAN and ASIAN AMERICAN
REALTY & PROPERTY MANAGEMENT,

Counterdefendant.

DECLARATION OF BETTY CHAN IN SUPPORT OF REPLY TO QPPOSITION TO
MOTION TO STAY PENDING ARBITRATION AND OPPOSITION TO
COUNTERMOTION TQ DISMISS WITH PREJUDICE OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE
FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

Betty Chan declares as follows:

1. This Declaration is made in support of Plaintiffs’ Reply to Opposition to Motion
to Stay Pending Arbitration and Plaintiffs’ Opposition to Countermotion to Dismiss with
Prejudice or in the Alternative for Summary Judgment.

2. T am the broker of record for Asian American Realty & Property Management.
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3. ['worked as the real estate agent for Defendant Jerrin Chiu (“Defendant Chiu”) on
the purchase of his first home in 2013.

4, In 2014, Defendant Chiu again requested my assistance in purchasing a second
home.

5. In 2014, I showed some homes to Defendant Chiu but he did not find anything he
wanted to purchase,

6. In March 2015, I showed houses again and Defendant Chiu made an offer on a
home in Desert Shores; Defendant Chiu determined again not to purchase the home.

7. On or about October 2, 2015, Dr. Kwang Chiu contacted me to make an
appointment for him and his son, Defendant Chiu, to see homes in December 2015.

8. I agreed to represent Defendant Chiu as the buyer.

9. I requested updated financial information for Defendant Chiu’s loan pre-approval.

10, On or about quember 11, 2015, Defendant Chiu emailed Me regarding his
intention to purchase a house and listed out the criteria.

11. On or about November 28, 2015, Defendant Chiu emailed Me concerning the
location of a particular house he wanted to see.

12. On or about November 29, 2015, I responded concerning the viewing of the
particular house.

13. On or about December 29, 2015, I prepared for the showing of homes to the Chiu
family by pulling listings around Boca Park area.

14.  Five resale homes were targeted to fit Defendant Chiu’s criteria and 1 contacted
the listing agents for the resale homes to set appointments,

15, lincluded the model homes in both a Toll Brothers development and a KB Home
development that [ had previously viewed.

16, I checked the status of the listings, printed the information and arranged a route
for the efficient showing of the properties.

17. On or albout December 30, 2015, I picked up the Chiu family and showed the

resale homes, the Toll Brother models and the KB Homes models.
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18. KB Homes offered to compensate brokers for bringing buyers to KB Home
Developments at Buyer’s first visit,

19. At the front office of KB Homes, 1 spoke to Cheryl and picked up a price sheet.

20. I then showed the model homes to the Chiu family and Defendant Chiu liked the
first and second model homes.

21.  Back at the KB Homes model home office, I requested a floor plan and explained
the buying process for a new home including the standards, elevations, prices, location of the
site, etc. to the Chiu family.

22. I'located a buyer registration card and Defendant Chiu filled in the buyer portion
and I filled in the realtor portion.

23. No KB Homes representative was to be found so I left the registration card on the
table in the KB Home front office to hurry to get the Chiu family to the next appointment.

24, 1 emailed Dr. Kwang Chiu the four resale listings that were viewed.

25. On or about December 31, 2015, Dr. Kwang Chiu called me and asked if T could
“kick back 1% of the commission” like the other agent offered him.

26.  Isaid I can offer a reduction of %% and Dr. Kwang Chiu said he would call me
back and tell me which property Defendant Chiu wanted to buy.

27.  On or about January 5, 2016, I followed up with Defendant Chiu about the KB
Home properties.

28. Defendant Chiu did not respc;nd.

29.  Contrary to Defendant Chiu’s statements, he did not try to contact me several
times,

30.  Onor about January 15, 2016, Defendant Chiu admitted that he was using another
agent.

31. On or about January 22, 2016, I went to the KB Homes office and learned that
Defendant Chiu had indeed signed a contract on the property 1 had shown him with another agent

on January 8§, 2016.
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32.  On or about January 30, 2016, I went to the KB Homes office to address the

commission; both KB Homes representatives, Cheryl and Jana, stated that Defendant Chiu told

them I had introduced him to KB Homes but that he was determined to use another agent.

33.  On or about May 27, 2016, Defendant Chiu closed on the purchase of a home in

the KB Home community known as 477 Cabral Peak, Las Vegas, Nevada (“Property™).

34.  Pursuant to NRS § 53.045, I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of

the State of Nevada that the foregoing is true and correct.
th
Dated this’j day of February, 2017.

o

Betty Chan
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08/22/2018 | All Pending Motions (8:30 AM) (Judicial Officer Johnson, Eric)

Minutes
08/22/2018 8:30 AM

- AS TO: PLAINTIFF'S REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO VACATE
OR MODIFY ARBITRATION AND OPPOSITION/MOTION TO
STRIKE IMPROPER COUNTERMOTION: Arguments by Mr. Kennedy
and Mr. Olsen in support of their respective positions. Following, Court
stated its FINDINGS and ORDERED, Motion DENIED. Mr. Olsen to
prepare the Order. DEFENDANTS AND COUNTERCLAIMANTS
WAYNE WU, JUDITH SULLIVAN, NEVADA REAL ESTATE CORP.,,
AND JERRIN CHIU'S OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO VACATE OR
MODIFY ARBITRATION AWARD AND COUNTERMOTION TO
RECOGNIZE WU AS THE PROCURING CAUSE, FOR SUMMARY
JUDGMENT AND FOR ATTORNEY FEES: Arguments by Mr. Olsen
and Mr. Kennedy in support of their respective positions. Mr. Olsen to
supplement the billing records. Following, COURT ORDERED, the
following briefing schedule: Mr. Olsen to file supplement as to the
Motion for Summary Judgment and attorney fees by 9/5; Mr. Kennedy
to reply by 9/19 and matter CONTINUED for argument. PLAINTIFF'S
MOTION TO VACATE OR MODIFY ARBITRATION AWARD:
Arguments by Mr. Kennedy and Mr. Olsen in support of their
respective positions. Following, Court stated its FINDINGS and
ORDERED, Motion DENIED. Mr. Olsen to prepare the Order. Mr.
Olsen stated in regards to his Motion for Summary Judgment, there is
still a claim against KB Homes for Breach of Contract. Court directed
counsel to talk about this issue. 10/10/18 8:30 AM DEFENDANTS
AND COUNTERCLAIMANTS WAYNE WU, JUDITH SULLIVAN,
NEVADA REAL ESTATE CORP., AND JERRIN CHIU'S OPPOSITION
TO MOTION TO VACATE OR MODIFY ARBITRATION AWARD AND
COUNTERMOTION TO RECOGNIZE WU AS THE PROCURING
CAUSE, FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT AND FOR ATTORNEY FEES
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Las Vegas, Nevada, Wednesday, August 22, 2018

[Case called at 10:33 a.m.]

THE COURT: Betty Chan versus Wayne Wu, Case Number
A744109. Counsel, please note your appearances for the record.

MR. KENNEDY: Good morning, Your Honor, Todd Kennedy
on behalf of the Plaintiffs Betty Chan and Asian American Realty.

THE COURT: Counsel, why don’t you go ahead since -- re-
note yourself for the record.

MR. OLSEN: Michael Olsen on behalf of the Defendants
Wayne Wu, Jerin Chiu, Judith Sullivan, and Nevada Real Estate.

THE COURT: Okay. We’re here on Plaintiff
Counterclaimants Wayne Wu’s, et cetera, Opposition to Motion to
Vacate -- oh, let’s see. Plaintiffs’ Reply in Support in Motion to Vacate or
Modify Arbitration Award and Opposition to -- Motion to Strike Improper
Countermotion. Defendant and Counterclaimants Wayne Wu, et cetera,
Opposition to Motion to Vacate or Modify Arbitration Award and
Countermotion to Recognize Wu as the Procuring Cause, for Summary
Judgment, and for Attorney’s Fees.

Let me just -- let me -- since this was an arbitration done by --
oh, | can’t remember the formal name, but essentially the realtors --

MR. OLSEN: Yeah, it's GLVAR, the Greater Las Vegas --

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. OLSEN: -- Realtor’s Association.

THE COURT: Realtor’s Association. I’'m looking, do we agree
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that the standard review of this is arbitrary and capricious, unsupported
by the agreement or amounts to manifest disregard for the law?

MR. KENNEDY: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. OLSEN: By clear and convincing evidence, yes.

MR. KENNEDY: We disagree with that, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You disagree with that, okay. All right.

MR. KENNEDY: Yeah, | haven’t seen a case that applies that
to each and every element of the statute or to the common law grounds,
but, Your Honor, our position is it's clearly established under the order
and the relevant information as clear and convincing in any event.

THE COURT: All right. well, | mean, if, you know, in terms of
the issue of arbitrary and capricious, | guess -- | don’t know, we can
argue the procuring cause here, but | tried to do some research on my
own yesterday that -- on this issue that there can only be one and that’s
where | haven’t found anything too definitive on that and in fact, | did find
a couple cases where they found an individuals was a procuring cause
and then found that they could share in the commission.

They didn’t make a specific ruling, you know, it was just sort of
one of the things where they said we find so and so is -- was a procuring
cause and -- that consequently could share in the ruling -- or share in the
commission and those cases that | did -- the two or -- the couple that |
did find, it wasn’t really clear, you know, if they were saying procuring
cause, you -- it makes it sharable or that under sort of the agreements
that they were working with that they could share.

But, you know, certainly this started out with Betty Chan and
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then sort of moved to Mr. Wu and you can make a pretty good argument
that but for either one of them that there wouldn’t have been a sale. So |
sort of see where the arbiter came out with his decision that he did and,
you know, absent, you know, some clear case law saying that there can
only be just one procuring cause, that that trumps any other work in the
case, it would seem that the arbitrator’s decision was not arbitrary and
capricious.

And so, with that sort of general thought in mind, I'll let you go.

MR. KENNEDY: Sure, Your Honor, and context is important
here. Ms. Chan was hired by Mr. Chiu to show her -- show him homes
in the area and she did that on -- in December of 2015. They went to a
number of resale homes and she convinced him to go to this KB home
sale.

And whatever she did -- and, Your Honor, | -- we’re not here to
argue the facts because that’s what arbitration panels do, we’re here to
argue what the law allows. You know, whatever she did, the next day,
Mr. Chiu put down $10,000 of a deposit on that piece of property.

Now, over the next few days he then -- a handful of days later
he signed a contract with KB Homes to actually purchase that lot. So,
one thing, we have a very compressed timeframe here. You don’t have
months and months and months going on in between where there’s
some sort of cutoff between one procuring cause. And I'll get to the
issue, the legal analysis, but | want to make sure we have some context
here. And of course Mr. Wu and Mr. Chiu signed a contract with KB

Homes.
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Now, KB /Homes is a seller, KB Homes is the one paying the
commission. They signed a contract, Your Honor, and that's why where
we get to arbitrary, they -- the standard’s really arbitrary and/or manifest
disregard of the law.

They signed a contract. Mr. Chiu signed it, Mr. Wu signed it.
It says we don’t pay -- we will not pay broker commission unless you
were the first broker to show our community to that client. Thatis --in
the record it's part of Exhibit 3, at Document D-0054, Paragraph 2. It's
incredibly clear.

Mr. Chiu -- Mr. Wu himself agreed by contract with the party
paying, | do not get -- | recognize that you will not -- and I’'m not entitled
to a commission if | didn’t -- was not the first -- if | was not with Mr. Chiu
when he first saw the community. It was undisputed he was not, Ms.
Chan was.

So, first thing you have here is when we’re talking about
procuring cause and the legal issue is you have a -- and Nevada law’s
very clear, if you have a contract that talks about who and when
someone’s entitled to a commission, those control over the common law
analysis of procuring cause. You have a contract that says Mr. Wu
could never receive this commission. And that's where we get the
problem with the split commission, Your Honor. They’ve obviously
decided Ms. Chan had responsibility here.

And | believe the panel was acting like mediators as opposed
to arbitrators and said well, this is -- yeah, we’ll do this. In fact, if you

look at their arbitration manual, they’re encouraged to enter what they
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think is a fair result, notwithstanding the law, which of course is
effectively an admission they’re going to manifestly disregard the law.

But the main point there, Your Honor, is Mr. Wu could not
receive any of this commission, he signed a contract saying hey, | know
| can’t be considered the procuring cause here, that’s really what it’s --
what it -- that’s really what it means is one, we’re not going to pay you
any commission to you unless you are the person who was with Mr.
Chiu the first time he was there, there’s only one person left, it's Ms.
Chan.

Now, in terms of the legal issue of okay, procuring cause, | do
believe the law is -- is fairly clear. Nevada'’s never specifically taken this
issue up, but if you look at the Morrow case, which it’s pretty clear, which
talks about -- and let me see -- let me make sure if | quote it correctly to
Your Honor, the -- if a real estate broker has been the procuring or
inducing cause of a sale, he or she is entitled to the agreed commission
irrespective who makes the actual sale or terms there -- or terms
thereof.

Again, Your Honor we obviously have to interpret a little bit,
but that case makes it pretty clear, there can only be one and it doesn’t
matter, we -- what happens is you -- just because someone else finished
the sale doesn’t mean they are the procuring cause. And that case
specifically provides, look, if you're the procuring cause, you're the
procuring cause and that someone else stepped in and did stuff, doesn’t
make them also a procuring cause.

And of course, Your Honor, the only party --
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THE COURT: But if -- | mean -- and | take -- but | sort of take
it from this that the arbitration panel saying if Mr. Wu didn'’t step in, there
wouldn’t have been a sale and so that's why he’s entitled to a substantial
amount -- | mean, I'm not -- | mean, we can argue whether or not he --
what, you know, amount he did, but | -- that’s what | essentially read is
they’re saying is he’s -- you know, but for him stepping in, there wouldn’t
be a sale and his stepping in is worth --

MR. KENNEDY: Well -- and, Your Honor --

THE COURT: 70 -- | guess 75 percent of the commission, so
| mean -- or the sale. So, | -- you know, the -- | -- you know, in the
case -- you know, when we’re looking at these cases, | mean -- like |
said, | haven’t found anything that said, you know, someone who doesn’t
step -- who steps in later and makes a material contribution to the
completion of the sale is not entitled to anything if they’re not the first
one to put the buyer and seller together.

MR. KENNEDY: Well, Your Honor, the -- | think the -- my
response to that is that -- there is no case law I've been able to find,
absent some contract allowing the splitting of commissions that allows
for multiple procuring causes. | mean, if you look at the Bartis Realty
case, these are Nevada cases.

THE COURT: And I'll agree with you. | mean, | couldn’t find
any case --

MR. KENNEDY: And --

THE COURT: -- that had multiple procuring causes. At the --

MR. KENNEDY: And he --
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THE COURT: And at the same time | haven’t found any case
that said that being the procuring cause absolutely precludes anyone
else from getting any proceeds from the --

MR. KENNEDY: | think, Your Honor, that’s the --

THE COURT: A portion of the commission.

MR. KENNEDY: -- a necessary import of the case law. In
Nevada, as well as elsewhere it says look, we -- when you have
competing brokers saying I’'m the procuring cause, I'm the person
entitled to it, the Court uses procuring cause to determine which one
gets it and which one does not.

There is no -- when there’s no stat -- case law authority saying
you can split, then you’ve got -- it's an either/or proposition and that’s the
way the cases come down. And of course here we have a contract that
irregardless of what -- we don’t know what those arbitrators were saying
because they didn’t enter any findings.

But what we do know is what they entered was an illegal
impossibility. Even their own arbitration manual, and this was quoted in
the Opposition, says hey, you know, there may be some occasion where
you would split it, but only if allowed under that State’s law and you
should follow the law. The law here just simply does not allow for this
splitting of a commission.

And then you add in that contract. The one thing they couldn’t
do, even if they thought he had some benefit -- he provided some benefit
there is KB Homes is the party who is paying and agreed to pay the

commission. They said we won't pay a commission. And Mr. Wu
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signed an agreement committing to this, I'm not entitled to a commission
unless | was the first -- | was with Mr. Chiu when he came here first and
we all know that’s not the case.

So that’s what we’re really stuck with, Your Honor, is we have
a panel who made a decision which necessarily recognizes Chan as a
procuring cause because they wouldn’t have given her -- they couldn’t
have given her anything if she wasn’t a procuring cause and awards her
at least some of the commission.

But where it needs to be modified or vacated is it splits the
commission in an illegal impossibility and gives it to someone who's
contractually barred by the act -- the party actually paying the
commission from receiving it. That is where you get to arbitrary conduct
because they have not followed the controlling contract. The contract
that provides for a commission, it all says we can’t get one here, under
these facts, as everyone agrees.

So they -- it has to be either modified or vacated because the
only other person who had any procuring cause involved here, which
they’ve already found because they’ve awarded her something, is Ms.
Chan.

And that’s really where we’re at because it, again, is the
contract. But also again, Your Honor the law -- and if you look at other
jurisdictions, they’re very clear, they’'ve actually had the issue come in
front of them. You only have one. You can have lots of real -- you can
have lots of brokers, realtors involved, but when it comes down to

deciding who gets the commission, it's got to be one.
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And those are the cases -- those are the only cases cited by
any party to you.

THE COURT: Okay. All right.

MR. OLSEN: Your Honor, thank you. Your Honor, of course
these arbitrators -- you had three -- a panel of three arbitrators,
professional real estate agents. We conducted an arbitration over four
hours where all of the facts and all of the evidence was vetted. The
credibility of the witnesses was tested, which became quite an issue in
this case | would say.

They had an ability to take in all of the evidence, which the
Court does not have that advantage, especially since be -- the Plaintiff
has not attached a transcript of the proceeding for the Court to
determine whether there’s been a manifest disregard of the law or
arbitrary and capricious ruling.

Your Honor, throughout the course of that four hours, not one
time have | ever heard this argument about the contract between KB and
Wayne Wu. This is the first time I've heard it and therefore the Court
must disregard it. It's a new argument being made after the arbitration.

There’s another three reasons that that argument doesn’t fly.
It's the first time it's been raised, number one.

Number two, they’re not in privity in that contract. Ms. Chan is
not in privity of that contract. KB Homes is not here saying that Wayne
Wu is not entitled to his commission. In addition, Your Honor, at the
arbitration hearing, the evidence taken and the testimony given by Mr.

Wu was he didn’t know that Dr. Chiu had gone to the Tavares
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Development with another agent.

By the way, Your Honor, when Ms. Chan took Dr. Chiu to the
Tavares Development, Mr. Chiu testified that they never even looked at
the lot and home combination that he ultimately purchased. She was
pushing a different model and a different lot than what he ultimately
decided to purchase.

He also testified that he was concerned about KB Homes,
their quality. He was concerned about the location. He had all kinds of
reservations, he was not ready to buy. Why did he go back the next
day? Well, he made multiple calls to Ms. Chan, who wasn’t returning the
calls, and testified at the arbitration she turned her phone off so she
could spend time with her daughter for the holidays, despite the fact that
she’d been told that they only had four days at the end of the year to
look at homes while Dr. Chiu’s parents were in town, so time was of the
essence.

She testified, | turned off my phone and -- so he -- they can’t
get ahold of her. He goes back to look at the development and they say
hey, we’re jacking the prices on all these lots, if you want to hold the
price, you have to put a deposit down, it’s fully refundable. That’s the
only reason he put any deposit down at all, he still hadn’t made up his
mind.

In fact, the day after that he puts a question out on a blog site
asking about the quality of KB Homes. He’s still concerned about that.
So, Your Honor, that argument doesn’t fly.

Let me go to the standard of review real quick because there
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is a case directly on point and it is binding on this court. The case is
Health Plan of Nevada versus Rainbow Medical. It's a 2004 case and
it's on point because it’s -- it deals --

THE COURT: What's the citation?

MR. OLSEN: -- with the exact same two issues; whether
there’s been an excess -- the arbitrators exceeded their power and
whether there was a manifest disregard of the law.

Here’s what the Supreme Court said: Nevada recognizes
both common-law grounds and statutory grounds for examining an
arbitration award. However, the scope of judicial review of an arbitration
award is limited and is nothing like the scope of an appellate court's
review of a trial court's decision. The party seeking to attack the validity
of an arbitration award has the burden of proving, by clear and
convincing evidence, the statutory or common-law ground relied upon
for challenging the award.

They go on and very specifically address what is required to
have an arbitration award set aside based on excessing authority.

It says: The courts presume that arbitration -- arbitrators are
acting within the scope of their authority. Parties moving to vacate an
award on the ground that an arbitrator exceeded his or her authority
have the burden of demonstrating by clear and convincing evidence how
the arbitrator exceeded that authority. Absent such a showing, courts
will assume that the arbitrator acted within the scope of his or her
authority and confirm the award.

Arbitrators -- this is very critical.
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Arbitrators exceed their powers when they address issues or
make awards outside the scope of the governing documents.

There’s not even an allegation of that.

However, allegations an arbitrator misinterpreted the
agreement or made factual or legal errors do not support vacating an
award as being in excess of the arbitrator's powers. Arbitrators do not
exceed their powers if their interpretation of an agreement, even if
erroneous, is rationally grounded in the agreement. The question is
whether the arbitrator had the authority under the agreement to decide
an issue.

In other words, under the arbitration agreement, did they have
authority to act?

Not whether the issue was correctly decided. Review under
excess-of-authority grounds is limited and only granted in very unusual
circumstances. An award should be enforced so long as the arbitrator is
arguably construing or applying the contract. If there is a colorable
justification for the outcome, the award should be confirmed.

Now, as to manifest disregard they also state: Manifest
disregard of the law goes beyond whether the law was correctly
interpreted, it encompasses a conscious disregard of applicable law.

What does that mean, Your Honor? Well, Your Honor, you
just stated that you looked this over yesterday and I'm glad you did
because I've looked at it extensively and I've read all the cases cited by
Counsel. Nevada -- under Nevada law -- there are a handful --

Counsel’s correct on one thing, there are handful of states who had
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taken the next step in procuring cause and they have said you can only
have one.

And there -- a couple that said you can’t split the commission.
Nevada is not one of those states. In fact, I'm really glad that Counsel
cited the Morrow case because the Morrow case not only refutes that
you can only have one, the Morrow case brings up the concept of
predominate cause. That opens the door to split commission.

The Morrow case, quoting: A finding of procuring cause
requires that the broker demonstrate conduct that is more than mere
trifling. In non-exclusive brokerage situations -- which is what we have
here; in fact, there’s no contract between Ms. Chan and Dr. Chiu --
merely introducing the eventual purchaser is not enough.

To constitute the predominating cause of the sale, it is not
enough that the broker contributes indirectly or incidentally to the sale by
imparting information which tends to arouse interest. The broker must
set in motion a chain of events which, without break in their continuity,
cause the buyer and seller to come to terms.

Well, Your Honor, applying this standard, that’s clearly Mr.
Wu. Ms. Cahn merely showed him the development. Mr. Wu overcame
all of the concerns about KB Homes’ quality, he negotiated the contract,
he put the lot and the home together with a view of the mountains. Ms.
Chan wanted to emphasize a view of the strip, which Dr. Chiu was not
interested in. He’s the one that got the deal done and that’s reflective in
the arbitrator’s award.

Now, very importantly, Your Honor, Counsel just made an

3 Appx 000631

Page 14




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

attempt to shift the burden to my client to show that there’s no case law
that allows splitting of commission. Well, it's not my client’s burden.

Here’'s what the manual says. By the way, it's undisputed that
Ms. Chan signed an arbitration agreement that said she agreed to
arbitrate in accordance with the manual. That'’s significant because the
manual says this: While awards are generally for the full amount in
question -- no doubt -- (which may be required by state law).

Whoever wrote the manual is smart enough to know that in
some states, yeah, it may be required that the commission goes to one
or the other. Again, Nevada’s not one of those states.

In exceptional cases, awards may be split between the parties
(again, except where prohibited by state law).

It's their burden to show this court a case -- a Nevada law
case that says you can’t split commission. Or you can’t have more than
one procuring cause. And in all of their briefing and in all of my review of
Nevada case law, | can’t find that, Your Honor.

So, the arbitrators were merely acting under the agreed upon
contract, under the manual -- they weren’t thumbing their nose at the
state or at the legislature, as Counsel suggests in his Reply. They’re
saying, except if there’s a law that says we can’t split commission, we
can and that’s what they did here.

So, Your Honor, with regard to that issue, procuring cause,
there’s a whole bunch of other arguments | could make about
abandonment. There'’s a ton of case law out there that if you abandon

the process, if you don’t return phone calls when you know the client’s
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only going to be in town for four days, you can’t turn around and claim
the commission.

And | think Ms. Chan needs to be a little bit careful here what
she’s asking for because if this Court is inclined to find that procuring
cause means that you can only one, then it should go to Mr. Wu
because he’s the one that did all the work. He’s the one whose name is
on the contract, he’s the one that resolved all the concerns, he’s the one
that put the lot and the home together that gave Dr. Chiu the views he
wanted, and he’s the one that closed the deal.

All she did is spend one rushed day running around looking at
multiple properties and introduce him to the Tavares Development.
That'’s it.

So if there’s one cause, if we’re going to modify, then let’s give
it to Mr. Wu because he put all the hours in to get the deal closed.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

MR. KENNEDY: Well, Your Honor --

THE COURT: Short response.

MR. KENNEDY: We’re certainly not here to argue the facts,
although Counsel spent most of the time arguing about the facts,
criticizing me for not attaching a transcript, but he then talked about a
bunch of facts, of course which -- for which Counsel has no support.

If you'd like to know what really happened, Your Honor, | invite
you to read Ms. Chan’s declarations attached to our Reply, which belie
everything -- nearly everything. That says -- what -- you know, it’s -- you

have disputed facts about who did what.
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The reason | didn'’t attach the transcript, Your Honor, is
because one, a transcript was not made, they did a recording. | would
have -- my client would have to pay -- we’re talking about a $14,000
case and --

THE COURT: I'm not --

MR. KENNEDY: -- it doesn’'t matter what the testimony is.

THE COURT: -- criticizing you for not tran -- a transcript.

MR. KENNEDY: Importantly, Your Honor -- you know, again,
the contract -- you know, saying that Ms. Chan wasn’t a party to the
contract, it's because they conspired to exclude here. Mr. Chiu signed
that agreement. Their star witness, in fact, represented by Counsel
knew who the first person was to take him to that property and it was
Ms. Chan.

He signed that contract and actively committed fraud against
KB Homes because if he had said no, | had another person there, we
know what KB Homes would say well, that broker’s entitled to the
commission. But Ms. Chan was never given the opportunity because
they lied to her about what they were doing. That’s also part of the
record.

So -- and it’s not whether she was a party to the contract.
That contract, as the Nevada Supreme Court has said, applies to the
determination of procuring cause. Mr. Wu contractually said, | am not
the procuring cause, unless | was the first person to bring it there.
That’s part of the agreement. That’s a contract KB Homes has said you

don’t get any commission.
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That's where we end up with and that’s why you have an
arbitration decision splitting the baby, giving it to somebody who
contractually cannot have it. And that’s why you do get to this arbitrary
standard and that’s why you do get to the manifest disregard.

And I'd like to talk about that a little bit. It's interesting, you
know, what -- you know, the -- | guess the concept is well, that which
has been prohibited must be allowed. Well, Nevada case law talks abut
procuring cause and says you need to decide when you have two
people saying I’'m entitled to the commission, you decide which one’s the
procuring cause. | think that tells us what the standard is. There’s going
to be one.

| believe, Your Honor -- and unless this Court’s going to now
create new Nevada law, until the Supreme Court were to say no -- you
know, it's not the law to say, well, it hasn’t been expressly prohibited.
The law says there’s one procuring cause, that's why we do all these
things.

So, unless there is some law that says there can be more than
one, you should only -- they should only be deciding one. And that
manual, | know Counsel thinks it helps him, but | think it helps me.

When you have a provision that says, you know, well sometime -- you
generally apply the full amount in question, which may be required by
state law. And it constantly states follow the law, follow the law.

What we know is, there is no law that authorizes them to split
it here. Their own manual told them to follow the law. But more

importantly and where we get to manifest disregard, if we're going to use
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that manual for anything, let’s use it as them admitting that they engage
in manifest disregard.

Arbitrary -- and this is another portion quoted by Counsel.

Arbitrators, unless specifically required to act in conformity
with the rules of the law.

They always are. And their own provisions, their own manual
says hey, follow the state law on the subject.

May base their decisions on broad principles of justice and
equity and doing -- so expressly or impliedly reject a claim that party
might successfully have asserted in a judicial action.

What does that tell us? That the court -- the association of
realtors are telling their arbitrators, do what you want, even if that party
would -- in court would have won. You can disregard that, you can
disregard those arguments and do what you feel is fair.

Your Honor, even arbitrators are supposed to follow the law,
not -- they’re not mediators. It's not an equitable claim. They’re
supposed to follow the law. The law says that Mr. Wu certainly cannot
have a part of this commission.

Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. As | said, | actually even tried to look a
little bit yesterday on my own in terms of this issue. And in terms of
Nevada | don’t find anything that says that there can only be one
procuring cause. And what little | found seems to suggest that, you
know, the procuring cause definitely entitles a person to receipt of a

portion of the commission.
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Maybe it entitles it all, but at this point all | see is that it entitles
a portion of the commission.

Additionally, you know, and in looking at the arbitration
decision, which doesn’t give a lot of information in that regard, but |
mean, it is -- you know, what -- you know -- these issues that are noted
in terms of who was the first to show the -- | mean, is it sufficient to show
the development or is it necessary to show the house and the lot in order
to be technically considered the procuring cause?

You know, whether or not, you know, there was a fraud
scheme to deprive Ms. Chan of her commission because of Mr. Wu’s
relationship to the buyer? | -- those are all issues that are fact intensive
and get -- went before the arbitration board.

And | think that there’s nothing in the law that precludes them
in Nevada from dis -- to discerning that Mr. Wu, which is clearly what
they decided was Mr. Wu was the primary force behind this. If you were
to go with the idea of predominant cause over procuring cause, then Mr.
Wu would arguably be entitled to the whole amount.

But | can’t say that | find that the arbitrator’s decision is
arbitrary or capricious and | can’t say it is in manifest disregard for the
law and so | am going to deny the motion to Vacate or Modify the
Arbitration Award.

Do you want to prepare an order?

MR. OLSEN: | will prepare an order, Your Honor.

Given that, can -- may | proceed on our counterclaim because

we have asked for summary judgment and we’ve asked for attorney’s
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fees on our counter petition -- or countermotion?

And | can be very brief.

THE COURT: Go ahead and let me see what -- go ahead.

MR. OLSEN: Your Honor, let me just address attorney’s fees
very quickly. Itis undisputed between the parties that as a requirement
to join the GLVAR, you have to agree that all matters in dispute between
brokers will be handled by binding arbitration in front of the GLVAR.

Counsel has argued well, she was coerced into that. No, she
wasn’'t. She doesn’'t have to become a member of GLVAR, but in
choosing to do so, she agreed to be bound by arbitration. And the
manual is very clear.

It says: If the dispute is not resolved through mediation or if
mediation is not required, realtors shall submit the dispute to arbitration
in accordance with the policies of the board, rather than litigate the
matter.

So, Your Honor, I’'m asking for attorney’s fees in sort of two
different chunks. We have had to incur attorney’s fees beyond the value
of this commission because we have had to fight this battle on two
fronts; one in District Court and another in the arbitration.

So, all the attorney’s fees that we had to incur before we even
got to arbitration should be paid back because she violated her
contractual and ethical duty by filing litigation, without filing for arbitration
with the Greater Las Vegas Realtor’'s Association.

In addition to that, in the actual contract itself it says: In the

event | do not comply with the award and it is necessary for any party to
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obtain judicial confirmation and enforcement of the award against me, |
agree to pay that party costs and reasonable attorney’s fees incurred in
obtaining such confirmation and enforcement.

That’s what we’re doing here today.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. OLSEN: That’s what we're here for.

THE COURT: Are you prepared to respond today or -- | have
been focusing more on the --

MR. KENNEDY: Your Honor, | can respond --

THE COURT: -- well what | felt was the primary --

MR. KENNEDY: -- today, it was in my Reply Brief.

THE COURT: | saw it was in your Reply Brief.

MR. KENNEDY: Yeah, and it's simple. These are not proper
countermotions, number one, so they should be denied summarily.
They are not related to the subject matter.

Number two, this would be the third or the fourth time that
Counsel has tried to argue yeah, well you had to arb -- you had to
arbitrate this. We did. We did, Your Honor.

It -- what -- it is not improper when you have multiple parties,
some of which are not bound to arbitration, to bring a claim in court
when you are trying to assert your claims. There’s lots of reasons to do
it, including the fact that -- and | wasn’t the party that brought the claims.
The party that brought the claims had moved the court to stay -- let’s
remember, it was Ms. Chan that brought the action and then asked the

Court to stay so they could go arbitrate with those people who are

3 Appx 000639

Page 22




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

members of the GVLAR [sic].

And then they filed a response, they filed a Motion for
Summary Judgment, one, trying to get the Court to say not procuring
cause, but also saying hey, you violated these obligations.

It's funny, Counsel said well, Ms. Chan wasn’t compelled to do
this, she wasn’t coerced into arbitrating, she chose to do it. And then
say but oh -- but she had a contractual obligation to do this.

But it doesn’t matter, Your Honor. She did what a prudent
litigant would do, which is | have multiple claims against multiple parties.
| don’t want to be accused of leaving someone out. She brought her
action, she moved to have it stayed so she could the arbitration and
that's what happened here.

So that issue should -- it -- that issue -- not only has it been
raised before Judge Leavitt, it was raised to the arbitration panel, it's
now been raised to you. If anyone should be getting fees, it should be
my client for having to third time address that argument. But we're not
asking for that, Your Honor, because that’s what lawyers do, we raise
our arguments we make -- and you make a decision.

The second one, Your Honor, yes, there is a provision that
says if someone doesn’t comply. There’s no evidence of non-
compliance. That commission is sitting with the GVLAR [sic] because
GVLAR [sic] said it had to be there.

Took some time to get it there because the escrow company
said well, we need an instruction -- we finally -- we did do an instruction,

my client looked -- we finally agreed to give them instruction, but we're
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not a party to that escrow, we're simply claiming it. But we ultimately
did. It got there. No one’s failed to comply with it, we have a statutory
right to come to Your Honor and raise our arguments as to why it should
be done. That’s not failing to comply. Due process allows me to do that
and it shouldn’t be awarded.

And the main -- the operative language of -- in that language,
Your Honor, is if we don’t comply, they have to come to court for
confirmation. They have to come to court to enforce it. I’'m the one that
filed the motion, Your Honor. I’'m the one that says | don’t think this is
right. | think we should have to go back and there should be changes to
this.

Nobody has filed a Motion for Confirmation except what'’s
styled as a Countermotion for Summary Judgment, which makes no
sense. You don’'t move for summary judgment on an arbitration award,
you move to confirm. They never did. | did.

The other thing is, it was a useless motion. By operation of
statute, if | ask you to vacate an award or | ask you to modify an award
and you deny that motion, the statute says well, that then is confirmation
of the award. They didn’t make that motion, they shouldn’t be entitled to
that. | had a statutory right to challenge it and I'm the one that did all
that work. The -- by the very terms of that statute there is no basis for
attorney’s fees.

And, Your Honor, finally, the -- they aren’t -- they talked about
the standards for attorney’s fees, but they didn’t attach anything so this

one needs to be denied for failure of proof. There simply is nothing in
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there that they put in except talking about the standards for an award of
attorney’s fees, but they didn’t attach any billing records or anything like
that.

But there’s no basis for attorney’s fees here. Both those
motions should be denied because your order denying our motion is
going to end up confirming the award, but that is not something they
were forced to bring and it doesn’t fall within that provision that would
entitle them to claim fees here.

MR. OLSEN: Your Honor, if | could just be -- very briefly.

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. OLSEN: They didn’t file the Motion for Stay until we filed
our Answer and Counterclaim against them alleging that they are in
violation of the guidelines of GLVAR. And we had sent a threatening
letter informing them that they had agreed to arbitrate rather than litigate,
numb -- that’s number one.

Number two, of course we wouldn’t have to file a Motion to
Confirm our Arbitration Award if she had released the funds to us. |
mean, this provision in the contract only comes into play if the award is
being challenged, as it is here today. And they’ve lost on that and
contractually they’re bound to pay our attorney’s fees for having to be
here today.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. KENNEDY: Your Honor, if | could have one moment, my
client --

THE COURT: Sure.
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MR. KENNEDY: --indicates she needed to tell me something.

THE COURT: Sure.

If you want to step out in the anteroom, go ahead.

MR. KENNEDY: Oh, okay, thank you.

[Pause in proceedings]

MR. KENNEDY: Thank you, Your Honor, | apologize for that.

THE COURT: Oh, that’s okay.

MR. KENNEDY: My client has asked whether or not she
could address the Court and | said | simply can throw it up to the Judge
and it’s up to you.

THE COURT: Well, | mean, | -- we need to work through the
attorneys.

MR. KENNEDY: | understand, Your Honor, | had to ask.

THE COURT: | appreciate that. No. | mean, if there’s
something that your client wants, you feel appropriate to pass on to me
I'll be glad to hear it from you as the attorney in this case, but that’s -- |
don’t feel it’'s appropriate otherwise.

All right. | -- as | said I'm denying the Motion to Vacate or
Modify the Arbitrary Award. I'm -- that was where | had put most of my
time in terms of focusing on this. Let me -- I'll take under advisement the
Motion for Attorney’s fees.

But did you submit -- | can’t remember -- | don’t remember
seeing any billing records from you.

MR. OLSEN: | -- we haven'’t submitted the billing records yet,

Your Honor. In the event there was an award, we would -- | mean, |
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can -- I'll supplement and make it easy. I'll supplement and --

THE COURT: All right. | was going to say, | can’t order

reasonable attorney’s fees when | don’t know --

MR. KENNEDY: Well --

THE COURT: If I was to order them -- I'm not saying | am, but

I’'m saying | can’t order them unless | --
MR. KENNEDY: Well, Your Honor, and --
THE COURT: -- know what they are.

MR. KENNEDY: And, again, we approached this because it

was -- we felt it was an improper request not tied to the actual subject

matter of the motion which was confirming, as well as improperly -- if

they’re going to submit anything else, I'd like an opportunity to respond

to that.
THE COURT: That'’s fine.
MR. OLSEN: That'’s fine.
THE COURT: That'’s fine. You --
MR. OLSEN: We'll just submit --
THE COURT: All right, then what I'm --
MR. OLSEN: -- the invoices.

THE COURT: Rather than take under advisement, I’'m going

to continue the Motion for Attorney’s Fees.

MR. OLSEN: Okay.

THE COURT: [I'll give you a chance to -- how long do you

need to get -- to file a supplement?

MR. OLSEN: | -- give us two weeks.
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THE COURT: All right.

MR. OLSEN: It'll be sooner than that, but.

THE COURT: All right. I'll give you two weeks to file that and
how -- do you want two weeks to file a response?

MR. KENNEDY: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. OLSEN: Your Honor, with regard to our Motion for
Summary Judgment, | -- the only reason we raised it is because there’s
only three causes of action and one of them is declaratory relief which
has been determined by the arbitration award.

The other is unjust enrichment, which has been determined by
the arbitration award.

And the third is a breach of contract claim against KB Homes.
KB isn't even here. They admit that they don’t have the registration
card.

THE COURT: Is KB Homes a --

MR. OLSEN: KB Homes is a --

THE COURT: -- party?

MR. OLSEN: -- seller. Yeah. Yeah, they got sued as well,
Your Honor.

THE COURT: Oh, that’s right.

MR. OLSEN: Unfortunately. Everybody got sued.

THE COURT: Oh, okay, they did get sued. I'm -- apolog -- all
right.

MR. OLSEN: Everybody got sued. So there’s this breach of
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contract claim hanging out there against KB Homes; based on what
contract, | have no idea.

THE COURT: [I'll bring -- I'll look at the -- why don’t you talk
with Counsel in terms of the Motion for Summary Judgment because
that seems like at this point in time the litigation should be able to be --

MR. KENNEDY: Well, Your Honor, our position would be if
they’re going to bring a Motion for Summary Judgment on claims that --
you know, anything -- anything not pertaining to the arbitration, it should
be done by a separate motion, a properly supported one and -- that sort
of thing. We can certainly talk and try and find a way to avoid doing that,
but | don’t think it’s appropriately done as a countermotion here --

MR. OLSEN: Well, and this --

MR. KENNEDY: -- about what claim -- about other claims that
weren’t subject to the arbitration.

MR. OLSEN: And this is why we need fees, Your Honor. |
mean, we're winning the battle and losing the financial war here.

THE COURT: | understand what you're saying and | am
sympathetic to the fees issue. So.

All right. You got two weeks, we’ll -- and so I'll give you two
weeks to file anything. Additionally, you want to file as to your Motion for
Summary Judgment and for attorney’s fees.

MR. OLSEN: Okay.

THE COURT: You have two weeks after that to respond. |
don’t think you need a Reply, but do you want a Reply?

MR. OLSEN: | won't.
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THE COURT: All right.

THE CLERK: Do you want a Reply?

THE COURT: He said no.

MR. OLSEN: | do not want a Reply.

THE COURT: All right. So do two, two, and then set this for a
hearing a week after.

THE CLERK: Okay. So Mr. Olsen to supplement by
September 5.

MR. OLSEN: Okay.

THE CLERK: Mr. Kennedy to file by September 19", And
we’ll have a hearing September 26™ at 10:30.

MR. OLSEN: I'm out of town on the 26, could we do it --

THE CLERK: Okay.

MR. OLSEN: -- a week later than that?

THE CLERK: It'll have to go two weeks.

MR. OLSEN: Is that okay with you, Todd?

THE CLERK: Go to September 10%.

MR. OLSEN: Okay. Thank you.

THE CLERK: | mean -- I'm sorry, October 10,

MR. OLSEN: Okay. Yep --

THE CLERK: At 8:30.

MR. OLSEN: -- October 10,

Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you, guys.

Are you going to submit an order on the --
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MR. OLSEN: | will. I'll submit an order on the confirmation of
the arbitration award and the scheduling order basically.

THE COURT: Okay. Very good.

MR. OLSEN: I'll run it by Counsel.

[Proceeding concluded at 11:15 a.m.]

* %k k k k k%

ATTEST: 1do hereby certify that | have truly and correctly transcribed
the audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled case to the best of my
ability.

Brittany Mangelson
Independent Transcriber
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BETTY CHAN and ASIAN AMERICAN
REALTY & PROPERTY MANAGEMENT,

Case No: A-16-744109-C

)

)

) Dept. No:=xH _ XX
Plaintiffs/Counterdefendants, )

V. ) FIRST SUPPLEMENT TO

) COUNTERMOTION TO
WAYNE WU, JUDITH SULLIVAN, ) RECOGNIZE WU AS THE
NEVADA REAL ESTATE CORP., JERRIN ) PROCURING CAUSE, FOR
CHIU, KB HOME SALES — NEVADA INC., ) SUMMARY JUDGMENT, AND
) FOR ATTORNEY FEES
)
)
)
)

Defendants/Counterclaimants.

COMES NOW, Defendants and Counterclaimants, WAYNE WU (“Wu”), JUDITH
SULLIVAN (“Sullivan”’), NEVADA REAL ESTATE CORP. (“NREC”) and JERRIN CHIU
(““Chiu”) (collectively “Counterclaimants™), by and through their attorney, Michael A. Olsen,
Esq. of the law firm Goodsell & Olsen, LLP, submit their First Supplement to Countermotion to
Recognize Wu as the Procuring Cause, for Summary Judgment, and for Attorney Fees and state

as follows:
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BACKGROUND

This matter came on for hearing on August 22, 2018 regarding Betty Chan’s Motion to
Vacate or Modify Arbitration Award and Counterclaimants’ opposition and countermotion. The
Court denied Chan’s motion, and took the Counterclaimants’ countermotion under advisement
after requesting additional briefing be provided regarding the same.

With the Court’s confirmation of the arbitration award by way of the August 22, 2018
hearing on this matter and corresponding order, the underlying dispute, dispositive as to all
claims, has been resolved. Accordingly, the case may be summarily adjudicated.

Moreover, Counterclaimants should be awarded fees and expenses that they have been
forced to incur unnecessarily as a result of Chan’s improper filings before this Court. These fees
include those improperly incurred in this matter when it was launched before arbitration, as well
as fees incurred since the award was entered.

LEGAL ANALYSIS

I. SUMMARY JUDGMENT IS APPROPRIATE AT THIS TIME

This entire dispute has revolved around commission funds related to the sale of real
property located at 477 Cabral Peak Street, Las Vegas, Nevada 89138. This property was
purchased by Dr. Chiu on January 8, 2016, over two and a half years ago. After the purchase, it
became clear that Counterdefendants were intent on preventing disbursement of $13,795.32 in
commission proceeds held by the title company. Faced with Counterdefendants’ delays and
incessant challenges, the title company determined it would hold all commissions pending the
outcome of arbitration or court ruling. Following Counterdefendants successful outcome in
arbitration before the GLVAR, and pursuant to instructions by all parties, the title company
turned the commission proceeds over to the GLVAR for safekeeping and disbursement. And

through the Arbitration Award, confirmed by this Court, the GLVAR provided clear instructions
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regarding treatment of the commission proceeds: $10,346.49 (75%) is to be paid to Wu, while
only $3,448.83 (25%) is to be paid to Chan.

A party is entitled to summary judgment when there are no genuine issues of material
fact in dispute and the moving party is entitled to summary judgment as a matter of law.! A
factual dispute is “genuine” when the evidence is such that a rational trier of fact could return a
verdict for the nonmoving party.> Once the moving party has shown that there is no genuine
dispute as to material facts, the burden shifts to the nonmoving party to set forth specific facts
demonstrating the existence of a genuine issue for trial or have summary judgment entered
against that party.> In meeting this burden, the nonmoving party, “is not entitled to build a case
on the gossamer threads of whimsy, speculation and conjecture.”*

“This court’s duty is not to render advisory opinions but, rather, to resolve actual
controversies by an enforceable judgment.”® A matter that has become moot must not continue to
be litigated as it is no longer justiciable. “Thus, a controversy must be present through all stages
of the proceeding, and even though a case may present a live controversy at its beginning,
subsequent events may render the case moot.”®
“The general rule of issue preclusion is that if an issue of fact or law was actually

litigated and determined by a valid and final judgment, the determination is conclusive in a

subsequent action between the parties.”” Moreover, where a claim against a party has been

I NRCP 56.

2 See also NRCP 56.

3 NGA #2, LLC v. Rains, 113 Nev. 1151, 1156, 946 P.2d 163, 166 (1997).

4 Collins v. Union Federal Savings and Loan Association, 99 Nev. 284, 302, 662 P.2d 610, 621
(1983) (citations omitted).

> Personhood Nevada v. Bristol, 126 Nev. 599, 602, 245 P.3d 572, 574 (2010).

¢ Personhood Nevada, 126 Nev. at 602, 245 P.3d at 574.

7 LaForge v. Nevada, 116 Nev. 415, 420, 997 P.2d 130, 133, (2000) quoting Executive
Management Ltd. v. Ticor Title Insurance Co., 114 Nev. 823, 834, 963 P.2d 465, 473 (1998).
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decided, the doctrine of claim preclusion prevents the party from continuing litigation related to
that claim, including on grounds “that could have been asserted” previously.®
When a motion to vacate, modify, or correct an arbitration award is unsuccessful, “the court shall
confirm the award.” In the present matter, the Court has denied Counterdefendants’ attempts to
avoid the ultimate decision and associated implications of the Arbitration Award. Continued
litigation of this matter can only attempt to render an advisory opinion on moot issues as there is
no material factual issue that is not conclusively resolved by virtue of the Arbitration Award.
Thus, this matter should be summarily adjudicated.
The Complaint in this matter purports to allege three causes of action: declaratory relief,
breach of contract, and unjust enrichment.
As to declaratory relief, the Complaint seeks specific relief, adjudication of which is
controlled by the Arbitration Award. Specifically, Counterdefendants seek
1) “adeclaration from the Court that Plaintiffs are entitled to the commission on the sale of
the Property”;
2) “adeclaration from the court that Defendants Wu, Sullivan and Nevada Real Estate Corp.
are not entitled to the commission on the sale of the Property”;
3) “adeclaration from the court that Defendant KB Homes breached its obligation to pay the
commission to Plaintiffs”; and
4) “adeclaration from the court that the commission be released from the title company to
Plaintiffs and any shortfall be paid by Defendants.”!
Yet each of these claims related to the $13,795.32 commission have already been
conclusively resolved by way of the Arbitration Award. There is no question of material fact
remaining to prevent adjudication of this cause of action, which must be summarily adjudicated

by deferring to enforcement of the Award. These issues are resolved by the finding that

$10,346.49 (75%) is to be paid to Wu, while only $3,448.83 (25%) is to be paid to Chan.

8 Executive Management Ltd., 114 Nev. at 835, 963 P.2d at 473.
9 NRS 38.242(2); see also NRS 38.241(4).
10 Complaint, 9 52-55.

Page 4 of 13

3 Appx 000652




(GOODSELL & OLSEN

*

ATTORNEYS AT LLAW
10155 W. TWAIN AVE. STE. 100, LAS VEGAS, NV 89147

(702) 869-6261 TEL - (702) 869-8243 FAX

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

In their second purported cause of action, alleging breach of contract, the
Counterdefendants claim that “KB Homes failed to pay Plaintiffs the commission for the sale of
the Property” and that accordingly “KB Homes breached its obligation to pay a commission to
Plaintiffs.”!! Notwithstanding, the Arbitration Award already determined proper distribution of
the commission funds, the majority of which are to be transferred to Counterclaimants, not
Counterdefendants. Of course, neither KB Homes nor the title company could know that the
Arbitration Award would ultimately dictate that $10,346.49 (75%) of commission proceeds be
paid to Wu, with only the remaining $3,448.83 (25%) to be to Chan. Yet KB Homes properly
placed the commission funds in escrow with the title company,'? and the title company (not a

party to this litigation) properly transferred the disputed funds to the GLVAR after the

Arbitration Award was issued. Based on the Arbitration Award and delivery of the funds to the
GLVAR—similar to interpleading funds with the Court pursuant to NRCP 67—there is no
question of material fact as to Counterdefendants’ second cause of action, which must be
summarily adjudicated in favor of Counterclaimants.

It should also be noted that the entirety of Plaintiff’s claim for breach of contract against
KB Homes is based upon Plaintiff’s assertion that she had in her possession a copy of a
registration card that had been submitted to KB Homes. Plaintiff has now admitted during
arbitration that she has no such document and that KB Homes was unable to locate any such
document. In fact during testimony at arbitration Plaintiff testified that she left the card on a
table with other documents and did NOT provide it directly to a KB Homes representative.

Plaintiff has no claim for breach of contract with any of the other defendants.

' Complaint, at §963—64.
12 Complaint, at § 42 (“Upon information and belief, the commission is held with First American
Title Company.”); see also Complaint, at § 55 (seeking “the commission be released from the

title company to Plaintiffs”).
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In their third and final cause of action for unjust enrichment, the Counterdefendants assert
that “Plaintiff Chan did not receive a commission despite being the procuring cause of the sale of
the Property to Defendant Chiu,” and argues that “Defendant Wu’s receipt of any commission
would be unjust.”'® But Counterdefendants clearly were not the predominating or procuring
cause, as conclusively demonstrated by the Arbitration Award conferring seventy-five percent
(75%) of the commission to Mr. Wu. The GLVAR arbitration panel was enabled to take into
account equitable considerations and split the Award to the extent equitable considerations
justified the same.'* The arbitration panel did so, and its findings in the Arbitration Award have
been confirmed by this Court. Summary judgment should be entered as to the claim of unjust
enrichment, as no material fact (including equitable considerations) remains as to entitlement to
the commission proceeds. After a review of all matters presented to the arbitration panel—
including equitable considerations—the GLVAR awarded $10,346.49 (75%) of commission
proceeds to Wu, with only $3,448.83 (25%) to be paid to Chan.

Counterdefendants have indicated that they want to prolong litigation even further by
seeking discovery pursuant to NRCP 56(f) if the Court determines there are no factual issues
precluding discovery.!®> Although the Court may postpone adjudication of a motion for summary
judgment by exercising some discretion to grant additional time for discovery, said discretion is
not limitless.'®

Rule 56(f) is not a shield that can be raised to block a motion for summary judgment

without even the slightest showing by the opposing party that his opposition is meritorious.
A party invoking its protections must do so in good faith by affirmatively demonstrating

13 Complaint, at 9 72-73.

14 Code of Ethics and Arbitration Manual, Appendix II to Part Ten: Arbitration Guidelines
(Suggested Factors for Consideration by a Hearing Panel in Arbitration), at 158; Moncharsh v.
Heily & Blase, 3 Cal. 4th 1, 1011, 832 P.2d 899, 903—-04 (1992) (noting that arbitrators “may
base their decision upon broad principles of justice and equity”).

15 See Reply in Support of Motion to Vacate or Modify Arbitration Award and
Opposition/Motion to Strike Improper Countermotion, at 14:7-10.

16 See NRCP 56(f) (requiring that party describe in an affidavit the “facts essential to justify the

party’s opposition” which are unavailable to it pending discovery).
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why he cannot respond to a movant’s affidavits as otherwise required by Rule 56(¢) and
how postponement of a ruling on the motion will enable him, by discovery or other
means, to rebut the movant’s showing of the absence of a genuine issue of fact. Where,
as here, a party fails to carry his burden under Rule 56(f), postponement of a ruling on a
motion for summary judgment is unjustified.!”

“[A] motion for a continuance under NRCP 56(f) is appropriate only when the movant
expresses how further discovery will lead to the creation of a genuine issue of material fact.”!8 A
review of Counterdefendants’ rant attempting to leave this matter open reveals nothing more
than the same type of vitriol against Counterclaimants already presented to the GLVAR.
However, discovery related to these baseless accusations cannot prevent summary judgment: the
GLVAR arbitration panel weighed all the allegations and determined the appropriate Award.

Counterdefendants advance three causes of action. But the remedy for each inevitably
relates to Counterdefendants’ ability to successfully claim the $13,795.32 of commission
proceeds. Because the Arbitration Award has been confirmed by the Court, Counterdefendants’
cannot prevail in such an endeavor under any of their causes of action, and summary judgment
should be entered.

II. COUNTERCLAIMANTS SHOULD BE AWARDED FEES AND COSTS

Counterclaimants were forced to incur fees and expenses to prepare and file an Answer
and Counterclaim when Counterdefendants improperly initiated this action. Counterclaimants
incurred these and additional fees demonstrating that Chan had neglected her duty as a Realtor to
seek arbitration of her purported claims from the onset. As late as May 1, 2017 months after

filing their Opposition to Motion to Stay Pending Arbitration and Countermotion to Dismiss with

17 Bakerink v. Orthopedic Associates, Ltd., 94 Nev. 428, 431, 581 P.2d 9, 11 (1978) (citation
omitted).

1% Francis v. Wynn Las Vegas, LLC, 127 Nev. 657, 669, 262 P.3d 705, 714 (2011) (citation
omitted) (emphasis added).

Page 7 of 13

3 Appx 000655




(GOODSELL & OLSEN

*

ATTORNEYS AT LLAW
10155 W. TWAIN AVE. STE. 100, LAS VEGAS, NV 89147

(702) 869-6261 TEL - (702) 869-8243 FAX

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Prejudice or in the Alternative for Summary Judgment Counterclaimants still had no word of any
arbitration action being taken by Chan. '

Defendants/Counterclaimants must be awarded their costs in this matter. In certain cases,
the prevailing party must be awarded his costs, including any “reasonable and necessary expense
incurred in connection with the action.”’

Cases in which costs allowed prevailing party. Costs must be allowed of course to the

prevailing party against any adverse party against whom judgment is rendered, in the
following cases:

3. In an action for the recovery of money or damages, where the plaintiff seeks to recover
more than $2,500.%!

In other words, when a party seeking more than $2,500.00 in damages prevails, “an
award of costs under NRS 18.020(3) [is] mandatory.”?? Interest is awarded on the costs incurred
by the prevailing party.?

Counterclaimants sought and ultimately obtained more than $2,500.00 in damages,
despite Counterdefendants’ attempt to prevent them from receiving the commission. Indeed, they
were awarded seventy-five percent (75%) of the Arbitration Award. Accordingly, they must be
awarded their costs in this matter.

Counterclaimants request that the Court award their attorney fees related to this litigation.
The Court is vested with statutory authority to award attorney fees to a prevailing party “When
the prevailing party has not recovered more than $20,000.”** Thus, any party obtaining a

judgment of $20,000.00 or less can be awarded all his attorney fees.

19 Exhibit “A”.

20NRS 18.005(17).

2I'NRS 18.020(3).

22U.S. Design and Construction Corp. v. International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, Local
357, 118 Nev. 458, 463, 50P.3d 170, 173 (2002).

23 Gibellini v. Klindt, 110 Nev. 1201, 885 P.2d 540 (1994).

24 NRS 18.010(2)(a).
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EDCR 7.60(b) allows the Court to “impose upon an attorney or a party any and all
sanctions which may, under the facts of the case, be reasonable, including the imposition of
fines, costs or attorney's fees when an attorney or a party without just cause” “[p]resents to the
court a motion or an opposition to a motion which is obviously frivolous, unnecessary or

unwarranted” or “[s]o multiplies the proceedings in a case as to increase costs unreasonably and

vexatiously.”?

Honestly from day one i met you my focus is not the commission, i felt insulted and
humiliated, another agent dared challenge me and he really do not know who I am. I
have been really sad more than i am angry. Last night i read many court cases. Even
though my card has disappeared, it wont hurt me winning. I liked to teach them a lesson.
Life is not about money. So happen i do have few hundred thousand in hand that i can
use. If they are willing to go along with me to spend equal amount of money, then I will
be very happy to play their game. I got my direction last nite, so i felt peaceful now. All i
need KB to understand I don’t hate kb for this, and i need them to work with me on my
plan. Jana, i dont blame you either and take care of yourself.?®

Moreover, in the Agreement to Arbitrate Chan explicitly agreed that “In the event I do
not comply with the award and it is necessary for any party to obtain judicial confirmation and

enforcement of the award against me, I agree to pay that party costs and reasonable

attorney’s fees incurred obtaining such confirmation and enforcement.”>’” Although

Counterclaimants have attempted to discredit the applicability of this provision, the necessity of
the present briefing to preempt continued challenges to the relief provided to Counterclaimants
by the Arbitration Award demonstrates that the provision applies. In fact common sense dictates
that this is EXACTLY the type of scenario where the award of attorney’s fees must apply. It
was NOT incumbent on Counterclaimants to have to seek confirmation of the arbitration award.
Ms. Chan could simply have agreed to abide by the binding arbitration award and instructed
GLVAR to distribute the commission as dictated by the award. No Court intervention was

necessary. However, instead of doing that Ms. Chan elected to proceed with her declared intent

25 EDCR 7.60(b)(1), (3).
26 Exhibit “C”.
27 Exhibit “B”, P0001, 9 5 (emphasis added).
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to waste tens of thousands of dollars in litigation costs, because, after all, this is not about the
commission, but rather about the fact that another real estate agent dared to represent a client she
had neglected.

Counsel for Counterclaimants has invested considerable time to defend against
Counterdefendants’ allegations and prosecute Counterclaimants claims in order to obtain a
favorable judgment. The attorney fees award should reflect the extensive work performed by
Counterclaimants’ counsel.

“[I]n determining the amount of fees to award, the court is not limited to one specific
approach; its analysis may begin with any method rationally designed to calculate a reasonable
amount, including those based on a ‘lodestar’ amount or a contingency fee.”?® “The lodestar
approach involves multiplying ‘the number of hours reasonably spent on the case by a reasonable
hourly rate.””” Reasonable hourly rates for purposes of a lodestar calculation in Nevada include
$425.00-$475.00 for partners, $250.00-$325.00 for associates, and $100.00 for paralegals.*®

In Scott v. Zhou, a tortfeasor appealed a $10,000.00 attorney fee award to the plaintiff.’!
The plaintiff had retained counsel on a contingency fee basis and obtained a jury verdict
awarding $4,215.00 based on damages caused by the tortfeasor. The attorney fee award was
affirmed.

The court considered that [plaintiff]'s case was handled on a contingency fee basis;
[plaintiff]'s attorney normally charges $200 per hour for non-contingent fee matters, which
the district court found to be reasonable. The court further considered that [plaintiff]'s
counsel estimated that he had expended 75 hours from preparation through the jury trial,
which the district court also concluded was reasonable, considering the nature of the case
and the difficulties associated with [it] . . . .3

28 Shuette v. Beazer Homes Holding Corp., 121 Nev. 837, 864, 124 P.3d 530 (2005).

29 Shuette, 121 Nev. at 864 n.98.

30 Plaza Bank v. Alan Green Family Trust, 2013 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 58657, at *4, 2013 WL
1759580 (D. Nev. 2013).

31 Scott v. Zhou, 120 Nev. 571, 572, 98 P.3d 313, 313 (2004).

32 Scott, 120 Nev. at 574.
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Thus, a court exercising its discretion to award an attorney fee considers numerous
factors, including the amount of time the prevailing party’s attorneys had to invest in the case,
and the normal hourly rate charged by the prevailing party’s attorneys.>*

Counterclaimants initially failed to submit this matter to binding arbitration, preferring
instead to launch the present litigation. And after the arbitration award was finalized,
Counterclaimants have preferred to drive up costs by attempting to continue litigating issues that
have already been finally determined or rendered moot. All to satisfy promised vindictive
behavior.

Chan’s vindictive attitude has resulted in significantly increased time required to
prosecute Counterclaimants’ allegations and defend against Counterdefendants’ spurious
contentions. Counsel’s redacted time entries for this case reflect the following amounts of time
spent to prosecute this matter, which should be compensated by an award against

Counterclaimants.*

POSITION AT FIRM HOURS (through REASONABLE TOTAL
August 2018) RATE?®
Partner 65 $450.00 $29,250.00
Associate 62.8 $250.00 $15,700.00
Law Clerk 22.8 $150.00 $3.,420.00
Paralegal/Legal 4.5 $100.00 $450.00
Assistant

33 Scott, 120 Nev. at 574.

34 Exhibit “D”. Michael A. Olsen, Esq. is a founding partner of Goodsell & Olsen, LLP. Roman
C. Harper, Esq. is an associate at Goodsell & Olsen. Julian Campbell worked on this matter as a
paralegal. Former employee worked on this matter, including Daniel R. Ormsby, Esq. as a law
clerk, and Laura Myers as a paralegal.

35 Plaza Bank v. Alan Green Family Trust, 2013 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 58657, at *4, 2013 WL
1759580 (D. Nev. 2013).
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TOTAL HOURS: 155.1 TOTAL FEES: $48,820.00

As reflected in the attached time entries, Counterclaimants’ counsel has expended
reasonable amounts of time to ensure a favorable judgment in this matter given its complexity
and Counterdefendants’ conduct. Through the efforts of Counterclaimants’ counsel, this matter
ultimately proceeded to arbitration, which resulted in an Award in their favor that has now been
confirmed. The time needed to successfully prosecute Counterclaimants’ claims was increased
due to Counterdefendants’ litigious nature.

Counsel for Counterdefendants continues to invest reasonable amounts of time in this
matter in furtherance of post-judgment motion practice (including preparation of the present
supplement) and to secure fulfillment of the Arbitration Award. Based on the time already
invested in this matter, charged at reasonable rates, a $48,820.00 attorney fee award is
appropriate.

The fees incurred before this Court have been completely unnecessary. Chan, as a
Realtor, should have never initiated this matter on September 27, 2016 because she had not taken
any effort to comply with her obligation as a Realtor to submit to binding arbitration before the
GLVAR. Yet Chan did indeed launch a lawsuit in an attempt to avoid arbitration. After
Counterclaimants incurred nearly 80 hours for legal services before the District Court, Chan
finally submitted a claim for arbitration.

Arbitration presumably finalized this matter by way of the conclusive Arbitration Award,
especially since Chan spurned her opportunity to present a procedural challenge of the Award to
the GLVAR. Notwithstanding, Counterdefendants not only challenged the Arbitration Award
before this Court without meeting their burden of proof, they also now insist that they must be
allowed to continue litigating issues that have already been conclusively determined.

Counterclaimants should be awarded their attorney fees incurred after the Arbitration Award was
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entered, which already consists of 75.4 hours of legal services and will surpass 80 hours by the
time of the hearing.

None of the time set forth above was incurred in preparing for or attending the arbitration
but is solely related to this instant litigation. The time was spent reviewing the complaint filed by
Chan and preparing an answer, negotiating with different attorneys (Chan has had three) on
numerous occasions in an attempt to reach a settlement, and engaging in motion practice related
to the complaint. Moreover, since the arbitration award was entered, time for legal services has
been expended as counsel has been required to enforce the Arbitration Award, which Chan
continues to disregard.

CONCLUSION

The Award properly disposed of the underlying issues in this matter in accordance with
the Arbitration Manual and the Agreement to Arbitrate submitted by Chan to the GLVAR. In
doing so, any factual issue in this matter was conclusively resolved, making summary judgment
appropriate at this time. Counterdefendants should be ordered to pay the fees, unnecessarily
caused by them, and which Chan also agreed to pay by way of the Agreement to Arbitrate.

WHEREFORE, Counterclaimants request the following relief:

1. That this Court enter an Order Granting Summary Judgment;
2. That this Court award Defendants the fees and costs they have been forced
to incur by Chan; and

3. For such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper.

DATED this 5th day of SEPTEMBER 2018.

/s/ Roman C. Harper, Esq.
MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6076
ROMAN C. HARPER, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 14374
GOODSELL & OLSEN, LLP
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Betty Chan, Plaintiff(s) vs. Wayne Wu, Defendant(s)

https://www.clarkcountycourts.us/Secure/CaseDetail.aspx?CaselD=11720168&HearinglD=19256377 1&SingleViewMode=Minutes
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Cask No. A-16-744109-C
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Date Filed:

Location:
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Other Contract
09/27/2016
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A744109
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Counter
Claimant

Counter
Claimant

Counter
Claimant

Counter
Claimant

Counter

Defendant

Defendant

Defendant

Defendant

Defendant

Defendant

Plaintiff

Plaintiff

Chiu, Jerin

Nevada Real Estate Corp

Sullivan, Judith

Wu, Wayne

Chan, Betty

Chiu, Jerin

KB Home Sales-Nevada Inc

Nevada Real Estate Corp

Sullivan, Judith

Wu, Wayne

Asian American Realty & Property

Management

Chan, Betty

Lead Attorneys

Michael A. Olsen
Retained

7028696261(W)

Michael A. Olsen
Retained
7028696261(W)

Michael A. Olsen
Retained
7028696261(W)

Michael A. Olsen
Retained
7028696261(W)

Todd E. Kennedy
Retained
702-605-3440(W)

Michael A. Olsen
Retained
7028696261(W)

Janice M Michaels
Retained
702-251-4100(W)

Michael A. Olsen
Retained
7028696261(W)

Michael A. Olsen
Retained
7028696261(W)

Michael A. Olsen
Retained
7028696261(W)

Todd E. Kennedy
Retained
702-605-3440(W)

Todd E. Kennedy
Retained
702-605-3440(W)
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Status Check: New Counsel For Plaintiffs

Minutes
05/01/2017 8:30 AM
- Mr. Kennedy advised he did not file a notice yet, however, he is
confirming as counsel for Plaintiffs today. Mr. Olsen advised this case
was stayed, however, arbitration proceedings have not happened yet.
Court stated that is up to Plaintiff. Court advised defense counsel if
Plaintiff does not proceed, a motion to stay may be filed. COURT
ORDERED, matter OFF CALENDAR.

Parties Present
Return to Register of Actions
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3 Greater Las Vegas Association of REALTOI:‘-.,@

1750 E. Sahara AV., Las Vegas, NV 89104
(702) 784-5052

REQUEST AND AGREEMENT TO ARBITRATE (MEMBER)
PAGES 2, 3, 4 AND 5 MUST BE COMPLET. ED, SIGNED AND SUBMITTED
WITH A SUMMARY AND SUPPORTING DOCUMENT, S
OR YOUR COMPLAINT WILL BE RETURNED TO YOU.

DATE: _'1/9/2016 CASE NUMBER: [/ db/H (assigned by GLVAR® staff)
1. The undersigned, by becoming and remaining a member of the Greater Las Vegas Association of

REALTORS®,(or participate in its MLS), has previously consented to arbitration through the Association under its
Rules and regulations. -

- Each person named below is 2 member in good standing of the Association or was a member at the time the dispute
arose.

A dispute arising out of the real estate business as defined by Article 17 of the Code of Ethics exists between me
(or my firm) and (list all persons and/or firms you wish to name as respondents to this arbitration): *

PLEASE NAME RESPONDENTS:
Judith Sullivan - » Principal Broker of _Nevada Real Estate Corp. Company

Wayne Wu _ » Agent of Nevada Real Estate Corp. _ _ Company

(Note: Arbitration is generally conducted between REALTORSS® (principals) or between firms comprised of
REALTOR® principals.)

There is due, unpaid, and owing to me (or I retain) from the above named person(s) the sum of § 13,79532 My
-claim is predicated upon the statement attached, marked Exhibit “1 7, and supporting documents which are
incorporated by reference into this application. DO NOT STAPLE your packet - turn in original complaint form

~ and copies of supporting documents.

disputed funds are held by First American Title:Escrow No. 112-24908656

v

Parties are strongly encouraged to provide any and all documents and evidence they intend to introduce during the
hearing to the other party(ies) and to the association prior to the day of the hearing. Providing documents and
evidence in advance can expedite the hearing process and prevent costly, unnecessary continuances,

I request and consent to arbitration through the Association in accordance with the Code of Ethics and
Arbitration Manual (alternatively, “in accordance with the professional standards procedures set forth in the
bylaws of the Board”). I agree to abide by the arbitration award and, if I am the non-prevailing party, to, within ten
(10) days following transmittal of the award, either (1) pay the award to the party(ies) named in the award or (2)
deposit the funds with the Professional Standards Administrator to be held in an escrow or trust account
maintained for this purpose. Failure to satisfy the award or to deposit the funds in the escrow or trust account
within this time period may be considered a violation of a membership duty and may subject the member to
disciplinary action at the discretion of the Board of Directors consistent with Section 53, The Award, Code of
Ethics and Arbitration Manual,

In the event 1 do not comply with the award and it is necessary for any party to obtain judicial confirmation and

enforcement of the award against me, 1 agree to pay that party costs and reasonable attorney’s fees incurred in
obtaiming such confirmation and enforcement. \Q

o
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6} Thave enclosed my check in the sum of $500.00 for the arbitration filing deposh of commissions of $501.00 and
above. 1have enclosed my check in the sum of $100.00 for the arbitration filing deposit of commissions $500.00
and below which I understand is refundable to the prevailing party or if arbitration does not take place.

7. Tunderstand that I may be represented by counsel and that I must provide written notice no less than (15) fifteen
days before the hearing of the name, address and phone number of my attorney to all parties and the Association.
Failure to provide this notice may result in a continuance of the hearing, if the Hearing Panel determines that the
rights of the other party (ies) require representation.

Al parties appearing at a hearing may be called as a witness without advance notice.

Notice of witnesses and legal and/or REALTOR® Counsel must be submitted at least 15 days prior to the
hearing date. Each party shall arrange for his witnesses to be present at the time and place designates for the
hearing. The following REALTOR® non-principal (or REALTOR-ASSOCIATE® nonprincipal) affiliated with my
firm has a financial interest in the outcome of the proceeding and has the. right to be present throughout the
hearing:

8. Tdeclare this application and the allegations contained herein are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and
belief and this request for arbitration is filed within one hundred eighty (180) days after the closing of the
transaction, if any, or within one hundred eighty (180) days after the facts constituting the arbitrable matter could
have been in the exercise of reasonable diligence, whichever is later.

9. If either party to an arbitration request believes that the Grievance Committee has incorrectly classified the issue
presented in the request (i.e., mandatory or voluritary), the party has twenty (20) days from the date of receipt of
the Grievance Committee’s decision to file a written appeal of the decision. Only those materials that the
Grievance Committee had at the time of its determination may be considered with the appeal by the Board of
Directors. :

10. Are the circumstances giving rise to this arbitration request the subject of civil litigation? ** Yes No

11. Important note related to arbitration conducted pursuant to Standards of Practice 17-4 (1) or (2): Where arbitration is
conducted between two (or more) cooperating brokers pursnant to Standards. of Practice 17-4 (1) or (2), the amount in
dispute and the amount of any potential resulting award is fimited to the amount paid to the respondent by the listing
broker, seller, or landlord and any amount credited or paid to a party to the transaction at the direction of the
réspondent.

12. Address of the property in the transaction given rise to this arbitration request
477 Cabral Peak Street, Las Vegas, NV&9138

13. The sale/lease closed on: May 2720i6

Agreements to arbitrate are irrevocable except as otherwise provided under state law.

By submission of this complaint and / or response, 1 consent to receive communications sent from the Greater Las
Vegas Association of REALTORS® via U.S. Mail, e-mail telephoneé or facsimile at the numbers and locations poted by
you on this form. This permission includes all future U.S. mailing address, ¢-mail, telephione, which 1 might supply to
the Greater Las Vegas Association of REALTORS®. Permission continues until 7 unless specifically revoked, in

writing, to the Greater Las Veﬁj Associa’tioy of REALTORS®, ) % ) 5
. / w ’é’ 2" . . " ‘
Signature (Broker): vy T Signature (Agent): i _ _
Broker’s Name (print):_ Betty Chan 4/ _ Agent’s Name (print); __ Betty Chan / / I
Company: Asian American Realty & Propen&"Manag@em Company: Asian American Realty & Pr\e[{cny Management
Address; 4651 Spring Mountain Road, Las Vegas, NV 89102 Address: 4651 Spring Mountain Road. Las Vegas, NV 89102
Page 3
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Telephone: (702 ) 222-0078

Telephone: (702 ) 222-00s3

NOTE: This Association offers voluntary mediation, binding only if parties reach a written, signed settlement.

Rev 2/5/16 IK

Page 4
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Greater Las Vegas Association of REALTORS®
1750 E. Sahara AV., Las Vegas, NV 89104
Phone Number (702) 784-5052

DESIGNATION OF LEGAL COUNSEL

(ARBITRATION)
DATE:_!1/972016 CASE NUMBER:
COMPLAINANT(S): RESPONDENT(S):
Betty Chan v, Judith Sullivan
Wayne Wu
o I do not wish to designate counsel at this time

OR

o 1, Betty Chan _ ; do hereby designate the following LEGAL counsel* for
representation in all aspects of these proceedings:

Attorney Name: _Avece M Higbee

Firm Name: Marquis Aurbach Coffing
Address: 10001 Park Run Drive, Las Vegas, NV 89145
Phone: ( 702 ) 942-2194

attorney as his/her agent and spokesman in these procgedings

0 )
Date: __11/9/2016 _ : LUy T e ,
Signature of Broker /

Betty Chan

Name (please print)

Asian American Realty & Propety Management
Company | | |

*REALTOR® counsel (a Jellow REALTOR ®who may offer guidance or advice) may be used in ¢

thics hearings only, not
in arbitration hearings. Exhibir 12

Page 5
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*

, Form #A-7
g Greater Las Vegas Association of REALTORS®
1750 E. Sahara Ave., Las Vegas, NV 89104

702-784-5052
Case#

Notice of Right to Challenge Hearing Panel Members
Notice is given herewith to parties in the matter of:

Betty Chan v vs. Judith Sullivan/Wayne Wu

an arbitration Pproceeding, that a party has a right to0 challenge the qualifications of any individual who
a Hearing Panel or the Board of Directors. A list of such individuals is provided below. If yo

copy of same with a letter the Professional Standards explaining your resson (“canse

sufficient to suppert your challen » the individual challenged will not be appointe
Qualification for Tribunal, challenges must be fled with the Board within fifteen ¢15)

See names crossed out below _

» Please indicate by checking the appropriate blank, and return this form or
e®) for challenge. I your teason is deeme
d to the Tribunal, Pursuant to Section 27
days from the date’ the list of names is Miailed

Challenge: [x¥ Yes [ N
i e Challenge:  [] Yes [ No
Challenge: [} Yes [ No
RogerSisin. Banay-Gengette Jackie Porter Linda Tunnadg
Joan-Kupts -Emest-Gonadles- Douglas Proudfit Tom Uribe
Nancy Anderson Minee Haekeit Bes-Ramirez ’ Susann Wejsse
Hongy Borla Jennie-Holder— Micheel-Reiss BOD-Appeal Purposes
~ferthryrBovard Barbara-Hoeland & inbe; Jillian Batchelor
Pamen-Caldiall Erie-Humes- Bradford Roberts —Seott-Besudsy
Feresd-Chapinan Jeari Sharon Jones Louise Rozich “andana-Bhalle
‘Elaine: Christensen Melissa Jones Donna A. Ruthe Chris'Bishop.
Lisa-Cobb Keith Kelley Sandra Salsbury : b
iha Cok Myma Kingham Rennie Schwartz Janet Carpenter
Walt Coffey- Danald Laimer Gm-ol-Sevqa i LR
Peggy Cook Patrick-Eebovic Tim Shaw- Kolleen Kelley
Chuck Doty CharlesMartin Peggy Siman mar-Lopa
Ross Fabrizio PatrieleMartino Susan Sippe] Keith Lynain
Mina Farah Ashley McCormick Nord-Slagle-. Aldo-Martines—
<Rishard-Eoster Eric Mendoza Jora-Steracsi— Torres Ramey
Brtney-Gaitan Tedd-fditer Robert Sweeney Brandon Robeits
Eonmie-Garvin Mithele Mittemilter David Tina Sr. Krystal Shervy
1ddo-Gavish EafiaMoore- Melissa Towbin Mark Sivek
, David Tina J.
&Z,Wr IUJ&MS 7Y Nagves L,(f(;va.c,e/
OR
1 have no challenges: v _
(Print N Gignatire)
I have no clzallengesf
<’//////' Page 6
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6/29/2016 Gnail ~ {no subject)

Betty Chan <aaroffer@gmail.corm>

(no subject)

7025251268@mms. att.net <7025951268@mms.att.net> Fri, Feb 5, 2016 at 6:01 PM
To: aaroffer@gmail.com

Honastly from day one i met you my focus is not on the commission, i felt insulted and humiliated, another
agent dared challenge me and he really do not know who | am. | have been really sad more than i am angry.
Last night i read many court cases. Even though my card was disappeared, it wont hurt me winning. | liked to
teach them a lesson. Life is not about money. So happen i do havwe few hundred thousand in hand that i can
use. lf they are willing to go along with me to spend equal amount of money, then | will be very happy to play
their game. 1 got my direction last nite, so { felt peaceful now. All i need KB to understand | dont hate KB for
this, and i need them to worl¢ with me on my plan. Jana, i dont blame you either and take care of yourself.

hilps#imaiil.g cogle.comvimailiui tui=28ike=2efdbebabbiMew=pt&g =jenadqs=truedsearch=querybmsg= 152644fa333a34058s it = 152b44{a333a3405 \9\ n
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(GOODSELL & OLSEN

*

ATTORNEYS AT LLAW
10155 W. TWAIN AVE. STE. 100, LAS VEGAS, NV 89147

(702) 869-6261 TEL - (702) 869-8243 FAX

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Electronically Filed
9/12/2018 4:41 PM
SUPP Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ. : 4 { g

Nevada Bar No. 6076

ROMAN C. HARPER, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 14374

Goodsell & Olsen, LLP

10155 W. Twain Ave., Suite 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89147

Tel:  (702) 869-6261

Fax: (702) 869-8243
mike@goodsellolsen.com
roman@goodsellolsen.com

Attorneys for Defendants/Counterclaimants
Wayne Wu, Judith Sullivan, Nevada Real Estate Corp.
and Jerrin Chiu

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
BETTY CHAN and ASIAN AMERICAN ) Case No: A-16-744109-C
REALTY & PROPERTY MANAGEMENT, )
) Dept. No: XII
Plaintiffs/Counterdefendants, )
V. ) SUPPLEMENT TO FIRST
) SUPPLEMENT TO
WAYNE WU, JUDITH SULLIVAN, ) COUNTERMOTION TO
NEVADA REAL ESTATE CORP., JERRIN ) RECOGNIZE WU AS THE
CHIU, KB HOME SALES — NEVADA INC., ) PROCURING CAUSE, FOR
) SUMMARY JUDGMENT, AND
Defendants/Counterclaimants. ) FOR ATTORNEY FEES
)
)
)

COME NOW, Defendants and Counterclaimants, WAYNE WU (“Wu”), JUDITH
SULLIVAN (“Sullivan”), NEVADA REAL ESTATE CORP. (“NREC”) and JERRIN CHIU
(“Chiu”) (collectively “Counterclaimants”), by and through their attorney, Michael A. Olsen,
Esq. of the law firm Goodsell & Olsen, LLP, and submit their Supplement to First Supplement to
Countermotion to Recognize Wu as the Procuring Cause, for Summary Judgment, and for

Attorney Fees and state as follows.

Page 1 of 2
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(GOODSELL & OLSEN

*

ATTORNEYS AT LLAW
10155 W. TWAIN AVE. STE. 100, LAS VEGAS, NV 89147

(702) 869-6261 TEL - (702) 869-8243 FAX

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Attached hereto as Exhibit “D” is the Affidavit and corresponding invoices referred to in
the First Supplement to Countermotion to Recognize Wu as the Procuring Case, for Summary
Judgment and for Attorney Fees.

The exhibit demonstrates time invested by Counterclaimants’ counsel, as well as costs

totaling $796.39.

DATED this _12th day of SEPTEMBER 2018.

/s/ Roman C. Harper, Esq.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 6076

ROMAN C. HARPER, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 14374

GOODSELL & OLSEN, LLP

10155 W. Twain Ave., Suite 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89147

Attorneys for Defendants/Counterclaimants
Wayne Wu, Judith Sullivan, Nevada Real Estate
Corp. and Jerrin Chiu

Page 2 of 2
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10155 W Twain Ave, Suite 100

Las Vegas, NV 89147 US

INVOICE #
10598

SERVICED
06/17/2016

06/20/2016

06/24/2016

07/06/2016

08/31/2016

10/06/2016

10/13/2016

10/18/2016

10/19/2016

10/24/2016

10/25/2016

11/03/2016

11/04/2016

11/10/2016

11/14/2016

11/15/2016

11/15/2016

11/16/2016

Wu, Wayne et. al. adv. Chan, Betty

DATE TOTAL DUE

09/10/2018 -

DESCRIPTION

Kimberly Gray:$100
Email to Jeff Hall, Esq. requesting broker registration.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Draft emails to opposing counsel re: missing documents and fact
that our client is the broker/agent of record.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.;

Kimberly Gray:$100
Finalize demand letter to FATCO, assemble exhibits and send.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Follow up on call with Avece Higbee, Esq. re: whether she has
documents in support of her client's claim.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Telephone calls (2) with opposing counsel re: our offer to settle
case for 70/30 split of the commission.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review offer from opposing side proposing my client gets
$3,000.00 and her $10,000.00; counter with 60/40 for my client.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review documents again and place multiple calls to opposing
counsel in an attempt to settle the case.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review documents again and place multiple calls to opposing
counsel in an attempt to settle the case.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review and counteroffer.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Follow up on counter offer to settle for $5,000.00

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review counter offer and counter again at $4,000.00.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Follow up on status of counter offer.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review and respond to email from opposing counsel.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review and respond to email from opposing counsel.

ROMAN HA

seni packets 1or mediation

and arpitration to and LLM
MICHAEL A. O]

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Last offer to settle with opposing attorney; draft emails to
opposing counsel; review facts an

ey -

eet

RATE
100.00

450.00

450.00

100.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

250.00

450.00

450.00

Invoice

ENCLOSED

QTY
0:12

0:30
0:36

0:48

0:30
0:36
1:00
0:24
0:18

0:30
0:18
0:30
0:24
0:30
0:36

1:42

1:48

0:48

AMOUNT
20.00

225.00

270.00

80.00

225.00

270.00

450.00

180.00

135.00

225.00

135.00

225.00

180.00

225.00

270.00

425.00

810.00

360.00
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SERVICED
11/17/2016

11/18/2016

11/22/2016
11/28/2016
11/28/2016

11/29/2016

11/30/2016

11/30/2016

12/01/2016

12/06/2016
12/09/2016
12/12/2016
12/13/2016

12/15/2016

12/19/2016
12/19/2016

12/20/2016

12/29/2016

01/02/2017

01/03/2017

01/03/2017

01/04/2017

DESCRIPTION
MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Last offer to settle with opposing attorney; draft emails to
opposing counsel; review facts and d eet
nd Wayne Wu re:

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Last offer to settle with opposing attorney; draft emails to

opposing counsel; review facts and d eet
and Wayne Wu re:

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ES

Review email from client,

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Form strategy for answering complaint.
MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ES

Review email from client
legal re: letter to OppoSINg counse

MICHAEL A. OLSEN,

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Review and send em esponse

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review and esponse

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review and esponse

. |

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Review, re-draft and revise Answer and Counterclaim.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Follow up on filing o digital

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Follow up on email to opposing counsel re: whether his client is
going to withdraw the District Court Complaint.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review and analysis of file from Title.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Review and analysis of email from Higbee, Esq. indicating that
her client would drop the district court case and proceed with
GLVAR.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review filing of Reply to Counterclaim.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review filing of Reply to Counterclaim.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Follow up on getting matter dismissed with prejudice and
moving forward in arbitration.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review and analysis of correspondence from Avece Higbee,
Esq. re: stipulation to dismiss Civil Case; respond to the same.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review and respond to email from Avece Hi
on moving forward.

ﬁh p on

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review and respond to email from Avece Hi
on moving forward.

,jh p on
MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Follow up on status of getting Stip and Order for Dismisal from
Avece; draft email re: same.

RATE
450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

QTY

0:24

0:42
0:30

0:36

0:36

0:24

0:24

0:36

1:06

0:24

0:36

0:36

0:24

0:24
0:24

0:30

0:24

0:18

0:42

0:12

0:36

AMOUNT
585.00

180.00

315.00

225.00

270.00

270.00

180.00

180.00

270.00

495.00

180.00

270.00

270.00

180.00

180.00

180.00

225.00

180.00

135.00

315.00

90.00

270.00
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SERVICED
01/05/2017

01/09/2017

01/09/2017

01/10/2017

01/10/2017

01/12/2017

01/16/2017

01/17/2017

01/17/2017

01/18/2017

01/19/2017

01/19/2017

01/19/2017

01/19/2017

01/20/2017

01/20/2017

01/24/2017

01/24/2017

01/24/2017

01/26/2017

01/26/2017

01/26/2017

01/26/2017

01/27/2017

01/27/2017

01/31/2017

DESCRIPTION
MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Review email from opposing counsel and draft response asking
for status of Stip and order for Dismissal with prejudice. No
response.

Kimberly Gray:$100

Check e-file queue and download pleading to client file;
Attention to calendaring

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Review email from opposing counsel re: refusal to dismiss with
prejudice; review email re: withdrawal and execute Stip and
Order agreeing to continue 16.1 conference.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Review email from opposing counsel re: refusal to dismiss with
prejudice; review email re: withdrawal and execute Stip and
Order agreeing to continue 16.1 conference.

Kimberly Gray:$100

Assist with e-filing Notice of Non-Opposition; Prepare and e-file
certificate of service; Check e-file queue and download
pleadings to client file; Attention to calendaring.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Follow up on status of Avece Higbee withdrawing as counsel.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review and analysis of Motion to Stay litigation pending
outcome of Arbitration.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review Motion to Stay and commence outline for Opposition
and Countermotion to Dismiss w/ prejudice.

Kimberly Gray:$100
Check e-file queue and download pleading to client file;
Attention to calendaring.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:

nce with associate re:

Kimberly Gray:$100

Lenny Whiting:$150

|

Lenny Whiting:$150
LM regarding

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:

|

Lenny Whiting:$150

Phone call with Kwang Chiu

Lenny Whiting:$150

commenced drafting the opposition and countermotion to
dismiss

Lenny Whiting:$150

research on procuring cause

Lenny Whiting:$150

continued working on the opposition to motion to stay

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.;
C
t

=]

Lenny Whiting:$150

continued researching for|
MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Fol
fo
Lenny Whiting:$150

spoke to Jerrin Chiu

|

and Jerrin to-

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Complete outline of Opposition and Counterclaim for law clerk.
Lenny Whiting:$150

continued working on the opposition and countermotion

Lenny Whiting:$150

Finished a draft of the opposition and countermotion to dismiss.

RATE
450.00

100.00

450.00

450.00

100.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

100.00

450.00

100.00

150.00

150.00

450.00

150.00

150.00

150.00

150.00

450.00

150.00

450.00

150.00

150.00

450.00

150.00

150.00
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QTY
0:36

0:12

0:36

0:48

0:12

0:36

0:36

1:00

0:12

0:48

0:42

2:36

0:30

0:42

0:18

2:48

1:24

0:36

1:48

0:36

0:36

0:54

2:30

AMOUNT
270.00

20.00

270.00

360.00

20.00

270.00

270.00

450.00

20.00

360.00

70.00

390.00

75.00

315.00

45.00

420.00

180.00

210.00

270.00

270.00

270.00

180.00

90.00

405.00

375.00

480.00



SERVICED
02/01/2017

02/02/2017

02/02/2017

02/06/2017

02/08/2017

02/09/2017

02/10/2017

02/15/2017

02/24/2017

02/28/2017

03/01/2017

03/02/2017

03/09/2017

03/27/2017

03/30/2017

04/03/2017

04/17/2017

04/18/2017

04/24/2017

05/01/2017

05/03/2017

05/04/2017

05/04/2017

05/09/2017

06/14/2018

DESCRIPTION
MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Review, re-draft and revise Opposition to Motion to Stay and
Countermotion to Dismiss or for Summary Judgment.

Jerrin's review

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

w of final draft; notes from client-.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Travel to and attend hearing on Motion for Leave to Amend
Pleading.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Review and respond to email from opposing counsel; review
calendaring deadlines; review and execute Stipulation to move
hearing to February 27; insure filing of Supplemental affidavit.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Follow up on continuance of hearing set for Monday.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review and analysis of status of setting hearing on Motion to
Withdraw as counsel; follow up on getting Reply brief.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Review Reply to Opposition and Opposition to MSJ.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Print out and commence review of all pleadings in preparation of
Oral Argument for Monday Morning on Motion for Summary
Judgment.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Follow up on getting draft of Order.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review notice of withdrawal by Avece Higbee, Esq.; follow up
to determine if Arbitration has been set with GLVAR.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review status of Order Staying action; review notice of hearing
for Avece Higbee, Esq. to withdraw as counsel.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review and approve proposed order.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review email from opposing counsel re: holding 16.1
conference; review status of Order being signed by the Court.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Review and respond to email from opposing counsel re: 16.1.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Confirm hearing for Avece Higbee, Esq.'s withdrawal as counsel
of record; follow up with getting arbitration going.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Review Notice of status check re: withdrawal of counsel; review
Notice of Entry of Order re: same; case analysis re: strategy for
dealing with the fact that Betty Chan has not filed for arbitration
with GLVAR.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Conference with paralegal re: her contact with GLVAR and lack
of filing by Betty Chan; review strategy for Dist Court case.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review of Court schedule; note status check re: withdrawal of
counsel.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Travel to and attend hearing on Status check re: Plaintiff
obtaining new counsel; inform Court we intend to lift the stay
and renew our MSJ if Arbitration is not filed immediately.

Kimberly Gray:$100
Check e-file queue and download pleading to client file.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review notice of appearance of counsel.

Kimberly Gray:$100
Check e-file queue and download pleading to client file.

Kimberly Gray:$100
Check e-file queue and download notice of entry of order to
client file.

Julian Campbell:$100
Scanned and Served Documents to the Server, Conducted
Correspondence

RATE
450.00

150.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

450.00

100.00

450.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

QTY

1:30

1:06

1:30

0:36

0:30

0:36

0:48

1:06

0:24

0:36

0:42

0:36

0:24

0:18

0:42

0:42

0:30

0:24

1:36

0:12

0:24

0:12

0:12

0:18

AMOUNT
585.00

225.00

495.00

675.00

270.00

225.00

270.00

360.00

495.00

180.00

270.00

315.00

270.00

180.00

135.00

315.00

315.00

225.00

180.00

720.00

20.00

180.00

20.00

20.00

30.00

3 Appx 000682



SERVICED
07/19/2018

07/25/2018

07/27/2018

07/30/2018

07/30/2018

07/31/2018

07/31/2018

08/01/2018

08/01/2018

08/01/2018

08/01/2018

08/02/2018

08/03/2018

08/06/2018

08/06/2018

08/06/2018

08/06/2018

08/07/2018

DESCRIPTION
MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ES

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$250
Reviewed motion to vacate filed by opposing party; conducted
precursory legal research and a quick review of documents cited
to by opposing party

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$250
Began working on outline for opposition and countermotion;
initiated legal research regarding potential main points

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$25

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$250

Continued work on outline of briefing to reflect findings in
continued legal research; began working on drafting analysis of
procedural errors being forced by Chan in response to the
arbitration award

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$250

Continued research regarding standard of challenging arbitration
in Nevada; reviewed record to identify parameters of agreement
to arbitrate and other helpful information regarding treatment of
arbitration

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$250

Worked on summary of facts and procedural history related to
litigation; used same to frame current status of matter in support
of posture of litigation

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Review Motion to Vacate; put together comprehensive outline of
arguments against the same; also review arguments for
Countermotion for Summary Judgment and/or to Dismiss the
case.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:Flat Fee
Continue work on research for Opposition to Motion to Vacate.

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$250

Drafted analysis of legal standard that applies to review of an
arbitration award, focusing on authorities that demonstrate the
very difficult nature of overturning or changing the same

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:Flat Fee

Finished drafting factual background to include description of
underlying agreement to arbitrate and subsequent reaction to
award by opposing party

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$250

Reviewed motion to vacate and identified additional grounds
purportedly invoked; drafted analysis demonstrating that
standard for fraud in the arbitration award has not been met in
this matter; worked on analysis demonstrating that the award
should not be vacated

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$250

Worked on identifying and drafting analysis to demonstrate the
broad authority conferred on the arbitrator that eviscerates
claims that the arbitrator exceeded authority

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$250

Finalized analysis and arguments related to statutory bases
claimed by Chan in her attempt to overturn the arbitration award;
worked on connecting arguments in opposition and related legal
analysis

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$250

Finalized analysis and arguments related to the common law
grounds for seeking a review of an arbitration award;
demonstrated that these grounds have not been properly invoked
in the case at hand; reviewed and finalized draft of opposition
and countermotion and forwarded to MAO for review

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$250

Finalized briefing by incorporating revisions by MAO to
opposition and countermotion; filed same with exhibits in
support thereof

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Review, re-draft and revise Opposition to Motion to Vacate and
Countermotion for Summary Judgment.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Review billings and ask paralegal to cull out entries related to
civil case in order to supplement our Countermotion for fees.

RATE
450.00

250.00

250.00

250.00

250.00

250.00

250.00

450.00

450.00

250.00

150.00

250.00

250.00

250.00

250.00

250.00

450.00

450.00

QTY
0:36

1:54

4:42

3:30

3:42

0:48

1:06

4:36

3:30

1:24

3:06

3:36

3:36

0:30

1:42

0:36

AMOUNT
270.00

475.00

575.00

1,175.00

875.00

800.00

925.00

360.00

495.00

1,150.00

525.00

350.00

775.00

900.00

900.00

125.00

765.00

270.00

3 Appx 000683



SERVICED
08/07/2018

08/10/2018

08/15/2018

08/20/2018

08/20/2018

08/21/2018

08/22/2018

08/22/2018

08/22/2018

08/24/2018

08/27/2018

08/28/2018

08/29/2018

08/29/2018

08/29/2018

08/30/2018

08/31/2018

08/31/2018

08/31/2018

09/04/2018

09/04/2018

09/05/2018

DESCRIPTION

Julian Campbell:$100
Prepared IAFD; Electronically filed and Served Documents on
the Court

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review time frame for Reply and Opposition to our
Countermotion for Summary Judgment and fees.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:Flat Fee
Review and analysis o

Summary iz, (N
Julian Campbell:$100
Prepared Hearing Binder

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:Flat Fee
Follow up on getting documents together for hearing on Wed.

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:Contingency

Review all pleadings and prepare oral argument in defending
Motion to Vacate and pursing Countermotion for Summary
Judgment and for Attorney's fees.

CLIENT COST REIMBURSEMENTS:Postage
Parking Fees

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$250

Reviewed results of hearing; prepared, edited and revised order
making findings and conclusions reached by court; sent same to
MAO for review

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:Contingency

Travel to and attend hearing on Motion to Vacate which was
denied; fees and Summary judgment take nt and
request for further briefing; consult with

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$250
Began outlining and drafting supplemental points and authorities
requested by court

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$250

Reviewed reply in support of motion to vacate and opposition to
MSJ; reviewed declarations by Chan in support of her reply/
opposition; reviewed complaint and the specific allegations
being pursued in the complaint; continued working on
supplement to motions for summary judgment and for fees

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$250

Conducted legal research regarding justiciability and mootness;
conducted legal research regarding issue and claim preclusion;
drafted analysis of these doctrines; worked on legal research
regarding ability to collect attorney fees and theories in support
of same; drafted argument in support of fees

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$2

|

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$250
Continued working on drafting legal and factual analysis for
supplemental briefing

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:Contingency
Conference with associate and paralegal to re

|

ROMAN HARPER, E

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:Contingency

Review status of supplemental briefing; work with bookkeeper
on gathering all invoice entries related to the civil case; follow
up on arguments for Summary Judgment.

CLIENT COST REIMBURSEMENTS:Court Filing Fee-Wiznet
Electronic Filing Fees

CLIENT COST REIMBURSEMENTS:Court Filing Fee-Wiznet
Electronic Filing Fees

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ
ence with associate re:
8; review invoices; follow up with accountant re. getting

111ing invoices redacted for production to the Court.

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$250

Revised and ountermotion;

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450
Review, revise and re-draft Supplemental Motion for Fees Costs
and SJ.

RATE
100.00

450.00

450.00

100.00

450.00

450.00

21.00

250.00

450.00

250.00

250.00

250.00

250.00

250.00

450.00

250.00

450.00

209.00

450.00

250.00

450.00

QTY
0:12

0:30

1:06

0:18
0:24

2:36

3:06

3:48

0:54

6:48

4:06

3:48

3:36

0:54

0:18

0:30

1:06

AMOUNT
20.00

225.00

495.00

30.00
180.00

1,170.00

21.00

775.00

1,710.00

225.00

1,700.00

1,025.00

950.00

900.00

405.00

75.00

225.00

209.00

270.00

725.00

495.00

3 Appx 000684



SERVICED
09/05/2018

09/05/2018

09/10/2018

09/10/2018

DESCRIPTION
ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$250

Reviewed billings; incorporated totals into supplement; revised
and edited supplement to opp and countermotion

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$250
Finalized supplement to Opp and counter-motion, incorporating
changes by MAO and making necessary revisions; filed same.3

MICHAEL A. OLSEN, ESQ.:$450

Follow up on status of supplement with our invoices.

ROMAN HARPER, ESQ.:$250
Worked with paralegal to obtain invoices that are needed to
support supplement

BALANCE DUE

RATE
250.00

250.00

450.00

250.00

QTY
1:54

1:00

0:30

0:12

AMOUNT
475.00

250.00

225.00

50.00

3 Appx 000685



10155 W Twain Ave, Suite 100 Invoice

Las Vegas, NV 89147 US

BILL TO
Wayne Wu

INVOICE # DATE TOTAL DUE ENCLOSED

8819 12/31/2016 -

SERVICED DESCRIPTION RATE QTY AMOUNT
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |

3 Appx 000686



SERVICED

12/31/2016

DESCRIPTION RATE
CLIENT COST REIMBURSEMENTS:Court Filing Fee-Wiznet 111.61
Electronic Filing Fees- ($334.84 divided by 3 clients)

PAYMENT

BALANCE DUE

QTY AMOUNT

1 111.61

111.61

3 Appx 000687



10155 W Twain Ave, Suite 100 Invoice

Las Vegas, NV 89147 US

BILL TO
Wayne Wu

INVOICE # DATE TOTALIDUE ENCLOSED

8862 01/31/2017 -

SERVICED DESCRIPTION RATE QTY AMOUNT
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |
] | | |

3 Appx 000688
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DESCRIPTION

pm

CLIENT COST REIMBURSEMENTS:Court Filing Fee-Wiznet
Electronic Filing Fees

PAYMENT
BALANCE DUE

RAT

TY AMOUNT

m
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10155 W Twain Ave, Suite 100 Invoice

Las Vegas, NV 89147 US

BILL TO
Wayne Wu

INVOICE # DATE TOTAL DUE ENCLOSED
8937 02/28/2017 -

DESCRIPTION RAT TY AMOUNT

m
/)

CLIENT COST REIMBURSEMENTS:Court Filing Fee-Wiznet 3.50 5 17.50
Electronic Filing Fees

CLIENT COST REIMBURSEMENTS:Court Filing Fee-Wiznet 1.75 1 1.75
Electronic Filing Fees- access fee

CLIENT COST REIMBURSEMENTS:Court Filing Fee-Wiznet 206.00 1 206.00

Electronic Filing Fees- Opposition Filing Fee

o o O 2]
ISEE I &
NN N =
& @ @ =
N 9 %

3 Appx 000690



Electronically Filed
9/18/2018 11:12 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERE OF THE COUEEI

3 Appx 000691

Case Number: A-16-744109-C
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